Lancashire County Council
Cabinet

Thursday, 15th June, 2017 at 2.00 pm in Cabinet Room 'B’ - The Diamond
Jubilee Room, County Hall, Preston

Agenda

Part | (Open to Press and Public)

No. Item

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary
Interests

Members are asked to consider any Pecuniary and
Non-Pecuniary Interests they may have to disclose to
the meeting in relation to matters under consideration
on the Agenda.

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 19 January 2017 (Pages 1 -4)

Matters for Decision:

The Leader of the County Council - County Councillor Geoff Driver

4, Annual Reports of the County Council's Former (Pages 5 - 20)
Champions 2016/17
5. Procurement Report - Request Approval to (Pages 21 - 28)

Commence Procurement Exercises

6. Report on the Outcome of the Office of Surveillance (Pages 29 - 86)
Commissioner's Triennial Inspection

The Deputy Leader of the County Council - County Councillor Albert Atkinson

7. Appointments to Outside Bodies 2017/18 (Pages 87 - 92)

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools - County
Councillor Susie Charles

8. Residential Strategy (Pages 93 - 118)

Lancashire
County ‘6;?9:‘-‘3.
Council (3&';.::?)



The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport - County Councillor Keith

Iddon

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Department for Transport (DfT) 2017/18 Highway
Incentive Fund

Accrington Townscape Heritage Initiative —
Proposed Public Realm Improvements to the Town
Square, Blackburn Road and Peel Street

40mph Speed Limit Revocation Order Branch Road,
Mellor Brook, Mellor

Upgrade of Existing Zebra Crossing to Puffin
Crossing - Broadway, Haslingden

Burnley Road and Goodshawfold Road, Loveclough
- Prohibition and Restriction of Waiting

Matters for Information:

14.

15.

Report of Key Decisions taken by the Leader of the
County Council, the Deputy Leader of the County
Council and Cabinet Members

Report of the Waiver of Procurement Rules by the
Deputy Leader of the County Council

Miscellaneous Matters:

16.

17.

Urgent Business

An item of urgent business may only be considered
under this heading where, by reason of special
circumstances to be recorded in the Minutes, the Chair
of the meeting is of the opinion that the item should be
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.
Wherever possible, the Chief Executive should be
given advance warning of any Member’s intention to
raise a matter under this heading.

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Cabinet will be held on
Thursday, 13 July 2017 at 2.00 pm at County Hall,
Preston.

(Pages 119 - 126)

(Pages 127 - 132)

(Pages 133 - 138)

(Pages 139 - 146)

(Pages 147 - 154)

(Pages 155 - 168)

(Pages 169 - 170)



18.

19.

Notice of Intention to Conduct Business in Private (Pages 171 -172)

Exclusion of Press and Public

The Committee is asked to consider whether, under
Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, it
considers that the public should be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of the following items of
business on the grounds that there would be a likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in the
appropriate paragraph of Part | of Schedule 12A to the
Local Government Act 1972 as indicated against the
heading to the item.

Part Il (Not open to the Press or Public)

The Deputy Leader of the County Council - County Councillor Albert Atkinson

20.

Acquisition of Household Waste Recycling Centre (Pages 173 - 190)
Infrastructure

(Not for publication — Exempt information as defined in
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972. It is considered that in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest
in disclosing the information.)

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport - County Councillor Keith

Iddon

21.

22,

National productivity Investment Fund - Approval to (Pages 191 - 200)
Submit a Funding Bid

(Not for Publication - Exempt information as defined in
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972. It is considered that in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest
in disclosing the information.)

Fleetwood to Knott End Ferry Service (Pages 201 - 204)

(Not for Publication - Exempt information as defined in
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972. It is considered that in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest
in disclosing the information.)



The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools - County
Councillor Susie Charles

23. Relocation of Youth Offending Team (Preston and (Pages 205 - 210)
South)

(Not for Publication - Exempt information as defined in
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972. It is considered that in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest
in disclosing the information.)

Jo Turton
Chief Executive

County Hall
Preston



ltem 3

Lancashire County Council
Cabinet

Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday, 19th January, 2017 at 2.00 pm in Cabinet
Room 'B' - The Diamond Jubilee Room, County Hall, Preston

Present:

County Councillor Jennifer Mein Leader of the Council
(in the Chair)

Cabinet Members

County Councillor Azhar Al

County Councillor David Borrow
County Councillor John Fillis

County Councillor Marcus Johnstone
County Councillor Tony Martin
County Councillor Matthew Tomlinson

County Councillors Albert Atkinson and Bill Winlow were also in attendance
under the provisions of Standing Order No. 19(4).

1. Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from County Councillor Geoff Driver CBE
2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
There were no interests declared

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 8 December 2016

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 December 2016 be confirmed as a
correct record and signed by the Chair

4. Executive Scrutiny Committee - Report of the Chair
County Councillor Bill Winlow, Chair of the Executive Scrutiny Committee, reported that
the recommendations set out in the reports for consideration by Cabinet had been

confirmed with no amendments or additional recommendations

5. The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council - Year Ended 31
March 2016

Karen Murray, Director, Grant Thornton, presented a report setting out the external

auditor's Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council for the year ended 31 March
2016. The report presented the audit of the Council's accounts, those of the Pension Fund,

Page 1



and also provided a Value for Money conclusion. It was noted that the report in full would
be considered by the Audit and Governance Committee on 30 January, although it
represented a summary of issues and reports already considered by that committee.

Resolved: That the key messages set out in the Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire
County Council for the year ended 31 March 2016 be noted

6. Money Matters - The Financial Strategy

Cabinet received a report providing an update of the forecast outturn Financial Position for
2016/17 on revenue and capital, the County Council's updated Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS) for the period 2017/18 to 2020/21, reflecting the provisional settlement
for 2017/18, and the position with regard to application of current reserves.

The continuing unprecedented financial challenge facing local authorities was noted, with
attention of the Cabinet being drawn to the proposal being made by Surrey County Council
for a 15% council tax increase.

Resolved: That
i.  the current forecast underspend of £15.298m on the revenue budget in 2016/17 be
noted

ii. the revised funding gap of £153.389m covering the period 2017/18 to 2020/21 as
set out in the revised financial outlook forecast for the Council be noted.

iii. the additional budget adjustments for 2017/18, and following years' increases,
included in the revised MTFS following the financial settlement, be approved.

iv.  Cabinet recommend to Full Council on 9th February 2017 the Band D Council Tax
for 2017/18 reflecting a 3.99% increase including 2% to be used for social care as
per the new flexibilities.

v. Note the contents of the County Council's Reserves position at 31st December 2016
be noted

vi. the specific capital programme as presented be approved

vii.  the increase in prudential borrowing identified within the Capital Programme report
be approved.

viii.  the advice of the Director of Financial Resources in relation to the robustness of the
budget and the adequacy of reserves be noted.

7. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000: Annual Report to Cabinet

Cabinet received a report presenting an updated Regulation of Investigatory Powers 2000
(RIPA) corporate policy for consideration. The report also requested Cabinet to consider
related policies in relation to non RIPA surveillance; the use of social media and the
internet in investigations; and a new draft CCTV Policy incorporating the codes of practice
issued by the Surveillance camera Commissioner and the Information Commissioner.

Resolved: That

i. the updated corporate policy on RIPA be approved with immediate effect
ii. the updated corporate policies on:

a. Non-RIPA surveillance

b. The use of Social Media and the Internet in investigations

Page 2



c. Use of CCTV
be approved with immediate effect
iii. the role of CCTV Manager be undertaken by the Head of Service, Legal and
Democratic Services

8. Report of Key Decisions taken by the Leader of the County Council, the
Deputy Leader of the County Council and Cabinet Members

Resolved: That the report of the Key Decisions taken by the Deputy Leader of the Council
and Cabinet Members be noted

9. Urgent Business
There was no urgent business
10. Date of Next Meeting
It was noted that the next meeting of the Cabinet would take place at 2pm on Thursday 9
March 2017 at County Hall, Preston
Jo Turton

Chief Executive

County Hall
Preston

Page 3



Page 4



ltem 4

Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 15 June 2017

Report of the Head of Service Legal and Democratic Services

| Part |

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Annual Reports of the County Council's Former Champions 2016/17
(Appendices 'A'- 'F' refer)

Contact for further information:
Janet Nuttall, (01772) 533110, Business Support Officer
janet.nuttall@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Appendices 'A' — 'F' set out, as follows, the annual reports of the County Council's
six Champions for 2016/17:

Appendix 'A' — Champion for Armed Forces Veterans

(former County Councillor Darren Clifford)
Appendix 'B' — Champion for Disabled People (County Councillor Steven Holgate)
Appendix 'C' — Champion for Digital Inclusion

(former County Councillor Sean Serridge)
Appendix 'D' — Champion for Older People (County Councillor Terry Aldridge)
Appendix 'E' — Champion for Parishes (former County Councillor Cynthia Dereli)
Appendix 'F' — Champion for Young People (County Councillor Kim Snape)

The report outlines the activities each Champion has undertaken between 1 April
2016 and 31 March 2017, in the respective roles they held, from the resources
previously allocated to them on an annual basis.

Recommendation

The Cabinet is asked to note the annual reports of the former County Council's six
Champions for 2016/17 as set out in appendices 'A' —'F'.

Background and Advice

The Leader of the County Council and Cabinet have established six "Champion"
roles, and has provided each Champion with an annual budget of £10,000 to support
the work of the Champions in their respective areas, making a total annual budget of
£60,000.

i
Lancashige
Page 5 Council ggﬂg



mailto:janet.nuttall@lancashire.gov.uk

The Champions for the year 2016-17 were:

Champion for Armed Forces Veterans - County Councillor Darren Clifford
Champion for Disabled People — County Councillor Steven Holgate
Champion for Digital Inclusion — County Councillor Sean Serridge
Champion for Older People — County Councillor Terry Aldridge
Champion for Parishes — County Councillor Cynthia Dereli

Champion for Young People — County Councillor Kim Snape

The annual budget of £10,000 for each Champion is allocated for use at their
discretion to finance their activities including organising and attending meetings,
seminars and conferences and other similar events; the payment of a grant or loan
to individuals and outside bodies or organisations within the scope of their remit; and
other incidental costs necessary to enable them to fulfil their roles.

Each Champion is required to submit an annual report to the Cabinet setting out how
their allocation has been spent.

Attached at Appendices 'A' — 'F' are the annual reports for 2016/17 for each former
Champion, which outlines the activities undertaken and expenditure incurred
between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 in their respective roles.

Consultations

N/A

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

It is considered that there are no risk management implications in this report.

Financial

Individual former Champions' underspends to be carried forward to the following
financial year are limited to a maximum of £2,500.

The following table shows the financial resources that were available for allocation

by the former Champions in 2016/17 and the level for funding being carried forward
to 2017/18 for the new Champions.

Page 6



Funding 2016/17 Total Spent in Funding
Brought Funding (£) available to 2016/17 (£) Carried
Forward from allocate in Forward to
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 (£)
Armed Forces 5 10,000 10,005 9,920 85
Veterans
Digital Inclusion 1,147 10,000 11,147 11,147 0
Disabled People 314 10,000 10,314 10,300 14
Older People 530 10,000 10,530 10,495 35
Parishes 680 10,000 10,680 10,680 0
Young People 342 10,000 10,342 10,342 0
Total 3,018 60,000 63,018 62,884 134
List of Background Papers
Paper Date Contact/Tel

Details of individual

proposals

April 2016 — March

2017

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 7

Janet Nuttall, (01772)

533110




Page 8



6 abed

Appendix ‘A’

Schedule of Expenditure for 2016/17

County Councillor Darren Clifford — Former Champion for Armed Forces
Veterans

Applicant Amount of Grant
Armed Forces Group Preston — Armed forces day events £3,000
Dig In North West (Preston) — Materials/Transportation to Tatton Flower Show £1,400
455 Morecambe and Heysham ATC — Upgrade IT and flight stimulator £2,000
Northern Angelz Project (Morecambe) — Wood carving tools and lessons £500
RAF Cadets Association Morecambe/Heysham — Squadron Training Courses £1,520
Lancaster Military Heritage Group — Armed forces day events £1,500
TOTAL SPENT | £9,920




Page 10



|| ebed

Appendix 'B’

Schedule of Expenditure for 2016/17

County Councillor Sean Serridge — Former Champion for Digital Inclusion

Applicant Amount of Grant
Communities In Action North West (Chorley) — Digital Inclusion Project £5,000

Go On North West Regional Meeting — Refreshment costs £235

Citizens Advice Lancashire West — Digital centre £2,200

Whitworth Historical Society (Rossendale) new pc and printer £750

Whitworth Town Council (Rossendale) — IT equipment £1,000

Bacup Family Centre (Rossendale) - IT equipment £1,962

TOTAL SPENT | £11,147




Page 12



¢ abed

Appendix 'C'

Schedule of Expenditure for 2016/17

County Councillor Steven Holgate - Former Champion for Disabled People

Applicant Amount of Grant
Danceasyndrome (Accrington, Chorley and Preston) — Weekly dance workshops £1,000
VICS Visually Impaired Children's Support (Accrington) — Children's Christmas party £500
Divine Days Community Arts CIC (West Lancashire) — Rental costs £500
East Lancashire Down's Syndrome Support Group — school support services £400
Sporting Challenge (West Lancashire) — fithess sessions £600
Outrageous Ambition (North Lancashire) — sessional staff, materials, refreshments, publicity £1,000
Visually Impaired People's Forum (Lancashire) — development community work/isolation event | £800
AFC Fylde Community Foundation — 6 week summer holiday programme £1,000
Sporting Challenge (West Lancashire) — dance sessions £500
South Lancashire Physical Disability Partnership — conference £500
Preston and Chorley Fibromyalgia Support Group — sitting yoga lessons £200
The Willow Garden Project (Wyre) craft equipment £300
Springfield Park Leisure Centre (Chorley) Trampoline hoist £1,000
Rossendale Rays Special Needs Swimming Club — children's Easter party £2,000
TOTAL SPENT | £10,300




Page 14



G| abed

Schedule of Expenditure for 2016/17

Appendix

County Councillor Terry Aldridge — Former Champion for Older People

Applicant

Amount of Grant

New Age Fitness for Older People (West Lancashire) — venue and refreshment costs £300
Burscough Seniors Luncheon Club (West Lancashire) — weekly lunch club £300
Divine Days Community Arts CIC (West Lancashire) — art materials and refreshments £200
Gt Eccleston Over 60's Group (Chorley) - venue costs £300
Coal Clough Lane Community Association (Burnley) — cooking equipment/new microwave £300
Brindle Over 50's Group (Chorley) — speakers and entertainer costs £300
Preston District Older People's Forum — activities for the older peoples day £300
Evermoor Hub (West Lancashire) — new freezer £300
Preston and District Model Railway Station — new amplifier and PA system £170
Welbourne and Peacehaven Residents Group (West Lancashire) — day trips to Blackpool and Liverpool | £500
P.U.L.S.E Older Peoples Group (West Lancashire) — set of group costs £200
Hilldale Community Association (West Lancashire) — venue costs £225
Helping Hands (West Lancashire) — entertainment, refreshments and chair exercises £300
Parkinsons UK (West Lancashire) — respite care £300
Sahara Group (Preston) — weekly luncheon clubs £320
Burnley and Padiham Over 50's Forum - sustainability project £300
Hyndburn Over 50's Forum — publicity materials £300
Longton Victory Memorial Sports and Social Club (South Ribble) — improvements to hall facilities £400
Stonemooor Bottom Residents Group (Burnley) — trip to Emmerdale £500
Building Bridges (Burnley) — Over 50's event £500
Hyndburn Cultural Association — Open day for the over 50's £500
Burscough Seniors Luncheon Club (West Lancashire) day trip to Liverpool £250
North West Older People's Network Meeting — cost of refreshments £147
West Skelmersdale Pensioners Social Club (West Lancashire) — games facilities £300
Adlington Luncheon Club (Chorley) — trip to Cleveleys £250
Fairweather Court Tennants Club (Burnley) — flower beds/shrubs £468
Layzee Dayzee Luncheon Club (South Ribble) — Larder fridge £500
Skelmersdale U3A Older Peoples Club — glass grinder £200
EMPOWER Older Peoples Club ( West Lancashire) — art and craft groups £590
Hapton Over 50's Lunheon Club (Burnley) — hire of a cook for the lunches £500
Crawshawbooth Over 50's Luncheon Club (Rossendale) — day trip to St Annes £475
TOTAL SPENT | £10,495

lEI



Page 16



/| abed

Appendix

Schedule of Expenditure for 2016/17

County Councillor Cynthia Dereli - Former Champion for Parishes

Applicant

Amount of Grant

Hilldale Parish Council (West Lancashire) — replacement fencing and pathway

£400

Barrow Parish Council (Ribble Valley) — signs for the playing field £300
Yealand Remayne Parish Council (Lancaster) — Defibrillator £400
Heath Charnock Parish Council (Chorley) — replacement notice boards £493
Over Kellett Parish Council (Lancaster) — bus shelter £300
Lea and Cottam Parish Council (Preston) — improvements to small garden £500
Stalmine with Staynall Parish Council (Wyre) — improvements to play facilities £300
Bickerstaffe Parish Council (West Lancashire) — car park resurfacing £400
Elswick Parish Council (Fylde) — CCTV upgrade £500
Read Parish Council (Ribble Valley) — new noticeboards £200
Scarisbrick Parish Council (West Lancashire) — war memorial biographies £500
Halsall Parish Council (West Lancashire) — noticeboard display cases £390
Coppull Parish Council (Chorley) — tree sculpture £350
Downholland Parish Council (West Lancashire) - water connection to the pavilion £400
Newburgh Parish Council (West Lancashire) — disabled toilet/baby changing for the fete £200
Altham Parish Council (Hyndburn) — parish website £450
Habergham Eaves Parish Council (Burnley) — landscape of common land £1,000
Little Hoole Parish Council — (South Ribble) — Outdoor Gym £1,000
Fleetwood Town Council — (Wyre) — Tools and equipment to garden buddies £1,000
Cabus Town Council (Wyre) — planting of cherry trees £400
Burscough Parish Council (West Lancashire) — summer planting £259
Bickerstaffe Parish Council (West Lancashire) — CCTV for security of defibrillators £500
Simonstone Parish Council (Ribble Valley) — clearance of disused railway track £200
Whitworth Parish Council (Rossendale) — CCTV heat seeking camera pilot scheme £238
TOTAL SPENT | £10,680




Page 18



61 abed

Appendix F

Schedule of Expenditure for 2016/17

County Councillor Kim Snape - Former Champion for Young People

Applicant Amount of Grant
AFC Fylde — 6 week summer activity programme £1,500
Leyland Playscheme (South Ribble) Mobile caving bus/sporting activities £750
Canine Education and Training CIC (West Lancashire) — live safely with dogs programme £750
Chorley School Sports Partnership - The Targeted Active Lifestyle Learning (T.A.L.L.) Programme £1,800
The Stop Smoking Cannabis Service (Lancashire) — promotional materials £400
ALFS Blackbelt Academy — attendance to Kick Boxing World Championships in Dublin £200
Brownedge St Mary's RC High School (South Ribble) — First Aid training £1,800
Chorley District Scout Council — update facilities to the Scout building £1,250
Divine Days (West Lancashire) — set up and running of Bickerstaffe youth club £600
Ormskirk Fire Station (West Lancashire) - ASDAN Fire Service Short Course £500
Sahara Asian Girls Project (Preston) — display boards, craft materials, indoor/outdoor activities | £400
Friends of Euston Street Park (Preston) — spring playground motorbike £391
TOTAL SPENT | £10,341




Page 20



ltem 5

Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 15 June 2017

Report of the Head of Service - Procurement

| Part |

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Procurement Report - Request Approval to Commence Procurement Exercises
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:
Rachel Tanner, (01772) 534904, Head of Service - Procurement
rachel.tanner@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

In line with the County Council's procurement rules, this report sets out
recommendations to approve the commencement of two procurement exercises for:

(i) Apprenticeship Levy Training and Assessment Providers and;
(i) The Supply of Liquid Fuels

These are deemed to be Key Decisions and the provisions of Standing Order No. 25
have been complied with.

Recommendation
The Cabinet is asked to approve the commencement of the procurement exercises

as set out in Appendix 'A' for the Apprenticeship Levy training and assessment
providers and the supply of liquid fuels.

Background and Advice

Appendix 'A' of this report sets out the details of the individual procurement
exercises, and the basis upon which it is proposed to carry out the processes
including:

the description of the service being procured;

the estimated annual contract value and the funding position;

the contract duration and;

the proposed basis for the evaluation of the tender submissions received.

Where approval has been received from the Cabinet to undertake a tender process
which is deemed to be a Key Decision, the subsequent award of the Contract on the

Lancashire

County =D
Page 21 Council ?‘&."@.’S‘{J



mailto:rachel.tanner@lancashire.gov.uk

satisfactory completion of the tender exercise shall not be deemed a Key Decision
and can be approved by the relevant Head of Service or Director.

On the conclusion of the procurement exercises, the award of the contracts will be
made under the County Council's Scheme of Delegation to Heads of Service, and in
accordance with the Council's procurement rules.

Consultations

Relevant Heads of Service and key operational staff have been consulted in drawing
up the proposals to undertake the procurement exercises included within this report.

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

Failure to take steps to lawfully procure new contracts and, where relevant,
continuing with current arrangements would contravene the council's procurement
rules and the Public Contract Regulations 2015. Furthermore, failure to award the
contracts may result in the county council facing difficulty in delivering these

services.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
Procurement Rules July 2016 Rachel Tanner/(01772
534904)

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 22



Appendix A

Cabinet Member
Leader of the County Council

Procurement Title
Procurement for the provision of Apprenticeship Levy Training and Assessment Providers

Procurement Option

Restricted (Invitation to Tender Stage)

A pre-qualification stage has already been conducted by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA) in order to create an initial list of approved Training Providers (based upon
specific selection criteria such as financial, economic and technical standing). The Invitation
to Tender stage will be open to any provider that has been awarded a place upon the SFA's
register.

New or Existing Provision
New

Estimated Annual Contract Value and Funding Arrangements

The projected annual contract value is approximately £3m per year. This contract value is
dependent on the salary bill of LCC (including Local Authority schools where LCC is the
employer) and may fluctuate, as the amount is determined on 0.5% of the current pay bill and
deducted by HMRC via PAYE.

Contract Duration
The Framework will be let for a period of 24 months, with an option to extend the contract
beyond the initial term to a maximum of a further 24 months.

Lotting

Associated relevant apprentice qualifications will be procured in relation to the area of training
specialism, and will deliver key areas for development within Lancashire County Council and
Schools, including but not limited to the training requirements listed below:

Adults Social Care

Childrens Social Care
Information Technology
Highways/Engineering
Leadership and Management
Business Administration
Legal/Procurement

Schools Support Staff
Business Improvement
Finance

The County Council will be seeking organisations that are able to work with us in order to
develop the apprenticeship framework and the training requirements throughout the contract
term.

Page 23




Appendix A

Cabinet Member

Leader of the Council

Evaluation

Quality Criteria 70% Financial Criteria 30%

Social Value will account for 10% of the evaluation criteria on the basis that the contract will be
delivered County wide.

Contract Detail

The Apprenticeship Levy will be a levy on UK employers to fund new apprenticeships. In
England, control of apprenticeship funding will be put in the hands of employers through the
Digital (Account) Apprenticeship Service. The levy will be charged at a rate of 0.5% of an
employer’s pay bill. The Levy arrangements were introduce in April 2017 (when HMRC took
the first monthly payment via PAYE schemes). The training funds will be available to spend
from approximately 22nd May 2017.

Through the Digital Account the training fund and procurement of training providers will be
managed by the County Council's Learning & Development team. The Digital Account will
record the details of all apprentices and their apprentice training and record the financial
transactions within the account.

To be eligible to deliver apprenticeship training for apprenticeships that start on 1 May 2017,
or after, training organisations must be listed on the Education and Skills Funding Agency's
register of apprenticeship training providers.

The ESFA's register of apprenticeship training providers has been created following on from a
Pre-Qualification stage conducted by the ESFA in 2016. It has been acknowledged by the
County Council, that in order to ensure compliance with the Procurement Contract Regulations
2015, that an Invitation to Tender stage should be completed (this will be restricted to those
organisations awarded a place on the register following successful completion of the PQQ) in
order to select the training providers that will deliver the requirements of the County Council.

The procurement will involve procuring for apprentice qualification (standard or framework)
training providers and the procurement for the end point (independent) assessment
requirements.

Page 24




Appendix A

Procurement Title
Procurement for the Supply of Liquid Fuels

Procurement Option
Call off contract from Crown Commercial Service (CCS) National Fuels Framework
RM3801

New or Existing Provision
Existing

Estimated Annual Contract Value and Funding Arrangements
£1,328,000* consisting of approximately:

£1,170,000 Lancashire County Council.
£131,000 Global Renewables Lancashire (Operations) Limited.
£27,000 Lancashire Schools.

Funding will continue to be met by service operational budgets.

*Please note: The delivered price of liquid fuels is very susceptible to changes in the oil
commodity market as the commodity element makes up a large proportion of the delivered
price. Therefore any changes to the commodity price will have a large impact on contract
value.

Contract Duration

The contract will be let for an initial period of 2 years (October 2017 to September 2019),
with the option to undertake a further competition at the latter end of the initial term for a
further two year contract (October 2019 to September 2021).

Lotting
The CCS National Fuels Framework is lotted regionally and nationally, with the County
Council accessing the lot for the North West region.

At fuel level, the contract will be lotted for both Vehicle Fuel and Heating Oils.

Evaluation

Quality Criteria 0% Financial Criteria 100%

The Crown Commercial Service will undertake further competitions on the County Council's
behalf between suppliers awarded to the framework, by the means of a reverse e-auction
which will be based on lowest supply margin.

Page 25




Appendix A

Contract Detail
The Liquid Fuels contracts supply the County Council with the following fuels:
Heating Oils:

Gas Oil Class A2 (BS2869:2010)
A standard gas oil which can be used for all inland applications (e.g. site and plant vehicles
such as tractors, bulldozers).

Kerosene class C2 (BS2869:2010)
C2, is used for heating oil in central heating systems. It does not carry duty in the UK, and
so is cheaper than gas oil.

Ultra 35 (blended to meet BS2869:2010 Class D)
An alternative for heating oil but cannot be used in combustion engines.

County Council sites that purchase heating oil include highway depots, outdoor education
centres, museums, libraries and care homes. Some schools sites as well as Global
Renewables Lancashire (Operations) Ltd (GRLOL) also purchase heating oils.

Vehicle fuels:
Biodiesel (EN14214 or equivalent)
Used for road vehicles. Highway depots are the only purchasers of vehicle fuel.

The current liquid fuels contracts expire on the 30th September 2017. The contracts require
re-procuring so that buildings can continue to be heated, and vehicles and plant remain
operational.

It is proposed that the CCS National Fuels Framework is utilised to procure two year
contracts (October 2017 to September 2019) for both types of fuel, with the option to repeat
the exercise in order to award a contract for a further two years (October 2019 to September
2021) in line with the framework guidelines.

CCS fuel frameworks have successfully been used for these contracts for the previous four
years with minimal complaints or issues over service quality.

Fuel prices from the CCS framework are made up of four elements:

Commodity price of the fuel
Duty

Supplier Margin

CCS Management Charge

Supplier margin and CCS management charge are fixed for the duration of the contract. The
current CCS management charge of 0.15 pence per litre will be increasing to 0.20 pence per
litre from the start of the new framework, increasing estimated current costs by £800 per

Page 26




Appendix A

annum. The supplier margin will be determined by the further competition and covers supply
costs, distribution costs, cost of credit, overheads, and profit.

The commodity price of the fuel is set by CCS using a weekly lagged price calculated in
conjunction with the Platts Index, an independent provider of information and benchmark
prices for the commodities and energy markets.

The CCS framework provides an OJEU compliant route to contracting with suppliers.
Benefits of using the framework include:

e accessing established terms and conditions,

e CCS undertaking the further competition on the Council's behalf (thus saving
procurement administration time),

e a lotted structure that provides access to regional and national suppliers,

e contract management undertaken by CCS, including monitoring KPIs, and clear and
transparent pricing.

As part of the further competition, separate lines will be included for Global Renewables
Lancashire (Operations) Limited (GRLOL) sites and approximately 25 Lancashire School
sites who have expressed an interest in accessing the framework following communication
via the Schools Portal.

Savings achievable in this category of spend are limited due to the unpredictability of the
commodity cost. CCS claim an approved methodology of using the index-linked Platts to set
weekly commodity prices against fixing them over a 12 month term achieves an approximate
3.5% saving. The methodology centres upon a weighted average risk premium that suppliers
would typically apply if prices were to be fixed for a year to protect themselves against the
risk of commodity prices rising during the contract term.

Page 27




Page 28



ltem 6

Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 15 June 2017

Report of the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services

| Part |

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Report on the Outcome of the Office of Surveillance Commissioner's Triennial
Inspection
(Appendices 'A' to 'C' refer)

Contact for further information:
lan Young, (01772) 533531, Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services
ian.young@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

On 28 February 2017 the Office of Surveillance Commissioners (OSC) undertook its
triennial inspection of the Council's use of covert surveillance in accordance with the
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA).

The Inspector's report is attached at Appendix 'A'. Please note that the report has
been redacted to remove sensitive or confidential information about specific
investigations. The Cabinet is asked to consider the suggestions and one
recommendation contained in the report and to agree amended policies to take
account of his comments. Cabinet is also recommended to agree the approach to
be taken in relation to the use of social media.

Recommendation
The Cabinet is recommended to:

(i) Note the OSC Inspection Report at Appendix 'A',

(i) Approve the amended corporate policies on RIPA and Shadow RIPA to take
account of the Inspector's comments, and

(iii) Agree that a policy for the use of social media in connection with
investigations be developed for appropriate services and presented to
Cabinet for approval.

i
Lancashire

Page 29 Council g‘gg



mailto:ian.young@lancashire.gov.uk

Background and Advice

On 28 February 2017 the Office of Surveillance Commissioners (OSC) undertook its
triennial inspection of the Council's use of covert surveillance in accordance with the
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 200 (RIPA).

The inspection report was received in March 2017. Taken as a whole the Inspector's
report is positive and the use of RIPA authorisation over the past 3 years since the
last inspection is believed to be appropriate.

However, there are a number of issues that the Council has been asked to consider
as follows:

RIPA and Shadow RIPA Authorisations

The RIPA regime is permissive, ie it is not necessary for a public authority to seek
authorisation to conduct Directed Surveillance or to use a Covert Human Intelligence
Source. However, if authorisation is obtained, conduct under that authorisation is
lawful for all purposes, and therefore provides protection to the Council in a case
where an allegation of infringement of human rights is made.

Local Authorities may only apply for authorisation on the grounds of prevention or
detection of crime for offences for which the penalty is at least 6 months
imprisonment, or offences involving the sale of alcohol and tobacco to under 18s,
and must also now obtain approval from the Magistrates' Court.

The current Corporate Policy and Guidance on RIPA requires that any Council
investigation not involving the prevention or detection of crime related to a public
function of the Council i.e. where the public authority is the prosecuting authority for
that investigation/offence, must use a "shadow RIPA" process if covert surveillance
is to be conducted. This requirement was introduced as a result of case law and
advice offered during a previous OSC inspection.

This has led to the development of a Shadow RIPA regime in cases which do not
meet the statutory criteria, for example where Council officers wish to carry out
investigations in relation to counter fraud or child protection. In those circumstances
the Council would not be the prosecuting authority and where evidence is uncovered
it would be passed on to the police or used in evidence in court proceedings under
the Children Act 1989.

The Shadow RIPA policy enables the Council to demonstrate that, when it uses
covert investigatory techniques for non-trading standards investigations, any
potential interference with an individual's human rights is addressed in accordance
with the principles laid down in RIPA so that issues such as necessity, proportionality
and impact on third parties are properly taken into account.

Page 30



However, the inspector who carried out the most recent inspection disagreed with
this aspect of the policy and considered that use of RIPA was not limited to statutory
functions involving the prevention and detection of crime. He recommended that
there needs to be a case by case assessment, and a recognition that some
investigations may meet the criterion of "preventing or detecting crime". The
inspector referred in particular to cases of child abuse or neglect but the comment
could be equally relevant to cases involving employee fraud, and abuse of
vulnerable people.

The policy has therefore now been revised to take account of the need for a case by
case consideration, and the Shadow RIPA Surveillance Policy has also been
amended to reflect these changes. It is still envisaged however that the majority of
surveillance that takes place outside the Trading Standards Service will be under the
Shadow RIPA policy.

Social Networking Checks and Surveillance Policy

The Inspector made a single recommendation in his report which relates to the
development in recent years of social media, and the availability of private
information on the internet, which can be accessed by Council officers in connection
with investigations.

It was recommended that the guidance provided in the Covert Social Networking
Checks and Surveillance Policy should be more detailed and should provide specific
information relevant to a range of Council functions. In view of the recommendation
it is proposed that further work be carried out in relation to this with the help of an
employee working group from selected services to develop an appropriate policy and
related guidance to be brought back to Cabinet for approval in due course.

Central Record of Authorisations

The inspector made a minor suggestion with regard to the central record of
authorisations, namely that the records for CHIS and Directed Surveillance should
be separate, and that Shadow authorisations should be maintained together with
RIPA authorisations. This suggestion has now been implemented.

Formal Oversight of Authorisations

The inspector suggested that there be closer objective oversight, despite the fact
that all authorisations are subject to magistrate's approval and therefore independent
scrutiny. In addition, the Director of Finance, Governance and Public services
already views the small number of authorisations on a quarterly basis, as well as
providing advice, together with the Director of Legal and Democratic Services, in the
event of any novel aspects of an authorisation. It is believed that this approach is
proportionate given the number of authorisations sought and their nature.

Consultations

N/A

Page 31



Implications:
This item has the following implications, as indicated:
Risk management

e Financial
There are no material financial implications at this stage.

e Legal/Human Rights/Crime and Disorder
Failure to consider necessity, proportionality and collateral intrusion in carrying out
covert investigations such as directed surveillance and use of CHIS may lead to
legal challenges under the Human Rights Act 1998 and potential investigation by the
Investigatory Powers Tribunal. The risks attached are therefore reputational and
also could involve the exclusion of relevant evidence in court proceedings.
In relation to the use of RIPA as opposed to Shadow RIPA: where the Council is
relying upon formal RIPA authorisation, this requires approval by the Magistrates
Court. Use of Shadow RIPA requires authorisation by the Director of Legal and
Democratic Services.
List of Background Papers
None

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 32



The Rt Hon. Lord Judge

Office of Surveillance
Commissioners

Chief
Surveillance
Commissioner

Official -Sensifive

14 March 2017

OSC Inspection
Dear OL/V\ME Exgokive,

| enclose a copy of the report dated 2 March 2017 prepared by Mr Graham Wright, Surveillance
Inspector, following his inspection of the arrangements made by the Council to secure
compliance with the statutory provisions governing the use of covert surveillance which fali
within the responsibilities of the OSC.

| have studied the report and endorse it.

Dealing with it generally, this is a positive report, which records that the specific
recommendations made following the last inspection in 2014 have been addressed and
compieted. Nevertheless a number of potential vulnerabilities are identified, and they are
discussed in some detail in the report. Just because Mr Wright believes that those with RIPA
responsibilities within the Council take their responsibifities very seriously and seek
conscientiously to discharge them, rather than set out a significant number of specific
recommendations, he has inciuded a number of suggestions which, when adopted, would
reduce vulnerabilities and improve standards. Like him, | believe that they will be addressed
conscientiously. | therefore agree with this approach, and do not propese to discuss them any
further.

There is a single specific recommendation. If relates to the use of social networking sites.

I understand that during the course of the OSC inspection in 2007, the Council was told that the
statuiory provisions were not available and should not be used in the context of child protection.
Unsurprisingly, the Council has followed this advice. There has been and now is a degree of
uncertainty about when and in what circumstances the statutory provisions apply.

The advent of social media sites and the Internet has produced a remarkable social change,
which at least in part is reflected in the context of covert surveillance. The Council has
responsibility for the welfare of children and indeed vulnerable adults. Social media sites are
available for use as part of an investigative process. The consequent issues have been
considered in depth by the OSC.

Page 33



We recognise the potential value of such investigations, particularly in the context of the
responsibility of the Council for the safety and welfare of children and vulnerable adults. Many
such investigations come to a natural end without any concerns, and just because the
investigation has been directed to what the individual in question has chosen to expose about
himself or herself there has been no interference with privacy. However on occasions it may
become appropriate for the investigative process into a particular individual or individuals to be
repeated or continue in some depth simply because concerns start to arise about criminal
offences like cruelty abuse and neglect. That is when the investigative process itself may start
to fall within the RIPA provisions. When it does the necessary RIPA processes are required.

The probiem which arises in authorities throughout the country is that conscientious officials,
acting in good faith to discharge their caring responsibilities, may not realise that investigations
through social media sites can fall within the protective statutory ambit. They cannot know what
they do not know. What is needed is for them to be made aware of the circumstances in which
such activities, if unauthorised, would become unlawful. It would not be a defence for them to
say that they had not appreciated that they were acting unlawfully, and the Council would be
liable for their unlawful activity.

This is the issue to which the recommendation at paragraph 10 is directed, and it is explained in
some detail at paragraphs 6.1 (iv) The Policy document should be updated to refiect the OSC
guidance at paragraph 289, on these issues, and then disseminated among Council staff so that
those using social media sites are aware of where they stand.

Yours sincerely,

e Ty
/

Ms Jo Turton,

Chief Execufive
Lancashire County Council
County Hall

Fisher Gate

Freston

Lancashire PR1 8XJ

PO Box 29105 London SWIV 120 Tel 020 7635 8127 Fax 020 7035 3114
Web: hups://oseindependentpovak/email:osemaitbox{@osc.gsi gov.uk

Page 34



O8CHNSPIOTE fo‘ ica af Su r*«mzlﬁaz‘zm

The Rt Hon. Lord Igor Judpe Lommissicners

hief Sunvalllance Comimissioner
Uifice of Survelliances Gommissioners

B0 Boy 29105
London
SWIV 12U
o™ March 2047
Q80 INSPECTION - LANCASHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

1. Date of iInspection

28" February 2017
2. nspestor

Granar Wright
S injroduction

31 Lancashire County Councltis an uppeartier authorily semning & county ares comprising
12 district councils. These include Praeston Cily Councll, which has not acquirad
unitary siztus. but excludes the unilary councils of Biackpool and Blackburn walh
Darwen.  The Counce emplovs approximately 10,000 siafl (not including teaching
staff) serving 2 popuistion of approvimaiely 1.2 miilion

.8 The Senior Comporale Management structure comprises the Ohisf BExeculive, twe
Corporate Directors and four Directors,

3.3 The previous OBC mspection of the Council was conducted by Sir David Clarke,
Assistant Surveiliance Commissioner, on 3 February 2044, Since that inspection
there have been bwo drecled survelllance suthorisations and five Covert Human
intelligence Source (CHIS) authorisations granted. None was concermned wih the
ikely acuuisition of confidential information and § was not informed oF sny breaches.

1.4 The Chisf Executive is Ms Jo Turton and the zaddress ior corespondence 5 County
Mail, Fishergate. Praston, Lancashire, PRT BX

4, Inspection approach

4% The purpose of the inspection was (o examing policies, procedures and aperalions in
respact of Part [l of the Regulation of lnvestigatory Powers Act {RIPA) 2000

4.2 My visit commenced with 2 meating with 1an Young, Corporate Director and Deputy
Chisf Exsoutive {1 had beep scheduled 1o meat With the Chigf Exscutive but she had
peen called away at short notice to be part of the selection pane! in connection with
the appoirtment of a new Chief Constable for Lancashire Conslabulary). We
diseuseed collaborafive working in the County and the recent spplication o cenlral
govemment for greater devolved powers, Ihe oulcome of which was awsiled. We
also discussed the Councll's use of covert aclivily, sosial networking sites [(GNG; and
the internet in support of i statutory funclions.

OFRCIAL - SENZITIVE
PO Hm. 28165 Lnnﬁnn SW:{‘E ‘iE{} 'E‘ﬂ. 020 7635 BI2T rax 020 7035 3114

gl email:ascmailbox@@ose. gt gov.uk




OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4.3 | then met with Laurz Sales, Direclor of Legal and Democralic Services, who has day
to day oversight of RIFPA matters, and Amanda Maxim, Trading Standards Manager,
WO i e main authonsing officer. Wea discussed the response 10 the previous
recommendations, reining provision, core authonsalion processes and | gave feed-
back on the pre-1ead material that | had been provided with, We were later ioined by
jan Young, Direclor of Governance Finance and Public Sarvices, who g the ‘senior
responsibie officer. | discussed with him his role as 5RO and engagement with
glecizd members.

4.4 { eyamined the Central Record of authorisations and severs! suthorisations granted in
e panod since the previols inspechion

4.5 There was a group mesling with the under mentioned steff during which we

discussed the use of covert aclivily, 8NE and the infernat by sitalf from the
tspanmants reprasenied:

4.6 | gave teed-back io Trading Standards staff on the authonsations that | ekaminad.

4.7  conchuded my islt by providing feed-back on the mzain findings to Laura Sales, lan
Young and Amanda Maxim.

8. Review of progrags on recommendations

8.1 The 2014 nispection mada four recormnmendations.

5.2 That Authorising Oficers be appointad 50 that the Senlor Responsible Officer no
jonger acts as an Auvthorsing QOffver bul exarcises 'he oversight responsibifily
daseribed in the Codes of Praclice; (this is effaciively a repeal recommendation)

The 3RO is no longer an authorising officer. Four Treding Standards Managers now
carry out this function. Completed,

5.3 That the extant CHIS aﬁiﬂﬂﬁéﬂﬁm shoiid e cancelled,

The case was cancellad a short ime afler the inspeclion. Sompleted.

h4 That LUG'S RIFA Rojiny be further revised in apcordance with this report

The ponts for revision have all been addressed in the latest policy document
Complated.

b5 Thal LEC consider Conducting s filure juvenile les! purchesse goeralions under
virectod surveiliance euthotisalion, the premises (o be lested being limited o a
managesbie number, addressing e issues of necessily and proporfionality In
refation f{:} Rach,

GFFIGIAL = BENGITIVE Z

Page 36



GRFICIAL - BENSITIVE

The Council has reconsidered its position in relation (o how | conducts undar-age test
purchase operations and consider that authordsations for directad surveiilance are not
appropriate as there is [itlle likelihood of acquinng private infonmation. it was agreed
that alf such operations should be considered on an individuzl basis (for more details
in this regard see his report seclion Direcled Strvefiance below), Completed.

8. Policies and procedures

8.1 2s | have mentioned above, | had besn provided with & copy of the policy and
quidance documents to examine prior to my visit and | gave fesd-back an them duning
the ingpection. Those documents and my comments in relation lo them are 285
foliows:

. Corporate Policy and Guidance on RIPA - the main policy document and in many
wavs it is comprehensive and useful. There is referance at paragraph 1.2.2 that
any child custodv/protection investigation must use & Non RIFPA process if covert
survelliance is to he conducted. When | querisd this | was foid thal several years
ggo during an 08¢ inspeclion stalf had bean toid that RIPA was not fo be used
for child protection matters. | can find ne reference in previous inspaction reports
bt | accept that there has been this interprelation pul on advice given during a0
inspection. 1 pointed oul that similar 10 many aspacis of RIPA, thera needs o be
a case by case assessment and i may be that some child care cases may not
mest the criterion of ‘preventing or delecting crime’ but many cases/investigations
wolld aitimately be o prevent or detect cruslly, abuse, neglect, other harm be
posed against 8 child and would thus be afforded the full protection o RIPA, |

Paragraph 4.2.8 refers o 8 mamber of staff making a lelephone call o a8 person
who doge not know the real idantily of the caller and a relationship baing formed,
in such case an authordsation for CHIS and directes sturvalllance will he mouirerd.
This is ot comrect: an autharisation for CHIS would suffice.’

i Shadow RIFA Surveilfanice Folicy — a recently revised policy intending to catsr for
covert activity in support of hvestigations inlo matters that are nol cnmingl, or
where the matlter under investigation does not meet the threshold imposed by the
Protaction of Freedoms Act 2012, There s a clear explanstion of the mtionzie
and orocedure i be adopled, which ig cioeely aligned 1o that for full BIPA
authonsalion.

ii. CCTV Policy — & comprehensive policy covering the usua! subjects of Dala
Protection Act compliance, sublect pocess, signage, retention of images ele.
There is very Hille reference to RIPA but the GCTV systems that the Councl
owns are nof city centre systems, they are highway melaled. Thers is a prolocol
with Lancashire Constshulary relating o the use of the system under a RiFA
authorigation.

v,  Covert Social Metworking Cheeks and Surveiance Policy — a racently drawn U
policy {November 2016} and described as ‘a plece of work in progress’. i
cordains basic and acourate advice and recogrises the potential that this form of
activily may meet the crileria for authorisation as directed surveiltance of GHIS.
What it lacks is more spagific and praciically based guidance fof practitioners and
hased upon my findings thare is 8 need for this and careful consideration as 1o

how such guidance is best disseminaled, 1 make 2 recommmendation in this
regard.

6.7 Tha core suthorisation procedure is that applizants would complete the requisite
forms, which are available in electronic format on the infranel.  There would usually
he discussion between the applicant, manager and autharizing officer prier t¢ an
application being generated. The appication is rwarded to an authorising officer for
compiation of hair input, Wnen this s done ne applicant will take the aothorisation 1o
a local Magisirates’' Court for approval. Ornginal documenis are retained by the

authorising officer and a copy iz sent to Information Governancs for completion of the
C | Record and secure retentinn, T

PR TR PR R TP, AR R

P GHIS Code of Practice paragraphs 324 and 3.25 refar
OFFIGIAL - SENSITIVE 3



OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

8,3 In relation o the Shadow RIPA process, applicants will complete {orms designed for
this purpose (basically RIPA formns but with all references to RIPA taken out) which
are avalabie electronically. As sbove, there would be discussion regarding the
proposed achivity with managesrs efc, The compladed form will ba submitted o the
Rirector of Legal ard Democralic Sarvices {who s irained as an authorising officer)
for approval and then s copy is forwarded o a Trading Standards Manager {who is an
authorising officer) who will retain the record and complate an entry on the Central
Record created for s purpose. | peinted cut that i would make more sense for there

to e a more aligned process for RIPA and Shadow RIFA authorisations {except for
the Magisteral approval),

8.4 The 'seniy responsible officer is the Direcior of Governance Finanee and Pubidic
Services. This officer is 8 frained authorising officer but no longer acls in this capacily.
He carrigs out quarlerly checks of the Ceniral Record and suthorisalions granted.
The SRO has provided RIPA refresher brefings o the Chisf Executive and Dapuly
Chief Executive,

6.5 Annual reparts on RIPA usage are provided by the 8RO o the Exscutive Scruting
Commities and Canined,

7. Related training

7.7 in 2015 authonsing officers, managers and applicants atlended 2 one day RIPA
Contarence in Leeds, Stall from counclis thwoughout the Noth of England atlended.

7.2 in September 2078 an axtarnagl frainer cwrried out & one day Toining event for
authaorising officars, the SRO and applicants from LOC. Staff from other councils in
the Coundy were also able (o altend, | saw the contents of the training and found it o

be comprehensive and accurate. There was good use made of sceparios periinent o
the audience.

3. Significant issues arising

Central Reecord snd Cuarsiolt

8.1 There is currently a singie Central Record of authorisations that containg detzils of
tiracied surveillznce and CHIS suthorizations. i is in the form of & computerised
spreadsheet. Whilst all the raquired informstion is recorded, | would be preferable

that separate records for GHIS and direcied sureellance be meginfained, When |
pointed this oul, it was acscepted and could be easilly implemented.

B2 Within the processes for authorisation thers 15 a lack of objactive ovarsight in 2 formal
manner, albeit thal | accepied that throughout the application and authorisation
process dialogue tuok place and advice would be soughi. Only the quarerly checks
made by the RO provides any quallly assurance byl thls can be several months
aiter an avthonisation is granted, which is a long time if there & a flaw in the

authansalion. This can shil happen nolwithstanding the reguirement for Judicial
approval by a Magistrate,

Diraoladd Surveliance

8.3  Tne usage of this form of covert activity has continued to decraase in recent years,
due {o stafiing culs and a reversion (o more overt enforcement aativily, In the group
meeling | was assured that no unauthorised adlivitly was being underizken. | did
question Trading Slandargs staff regerding the methodology for conducling under
age test purchace operations. | was lold thal cach premises o be vislied was
assessed regarding the dkelihood of oblalning privale information and in all cases the
member of staff sccompanied the volunteer as z safely measure and memsly
shserved the transaction invoivinglthe volunteer rather than any other activity tzking

piace side the promises, | advised thal if not alisady done so, that these
consigerglions should De recorded,

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 4



8.4

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Cd

There was some discussion of the use to be made of the Shaciow RIPA process and
it was apparent, from discussions as well as references in the policy dacument, that
there is 2 misconception that oenly Trading Standards investigations couid use RIPA,
fherefore all other investigations seeking o cany out covart surveliiznce should use
tha Shadow RIPA process. | pointed sut that any investigation thal maet the necessily
criteria of being ‘for the purpose of preventing or detecting crime’, and tha 'sericus
crime’ threshold, could seek authorisation under RIPA {(as long as other corditions
were mef, e.g. proporionality} no matler which depariment was underiaking the

investigationfoperation.

OFFICAL- SENSITIVE 5



8.8

B8

810

8.11

B.1¢

9.1

9.2

g
ziii

The cormmEits thet { ave I relation o ihe authorisations that | examined ara:

As is now recognsed, an authorisation should be for & single CHIS and should be
accompanied by 3 Risk Assesement for that CHIS;

Al reviews there was a8 lack of detail regarding what activity the CHIS had
underiaken:

At cancellation a similar lack of datall left one wondenng what exaclly a CHIS had

done and in the case where there were two CHIS authorsed there was aven
greater confision as o the extent of activity of each.

The purpese of CHIS records is that they should give a dlear picture of how g CHIS is
being salely managed and used, the intelligence or avidaniial product they oblain and
what use is made of that produet.

Use of Soeial Networking Siles (SNE)Y and the Internet

This issue Is increasingly a subject of detailed discussion during inspections of focal
authorities and this councék was no exceplion. | had specifically reguested that
representatives from departiments thet, whilst not carrying out 'conventlional covert
aclivity', experience has shown were making use of these media.

it became apparent during the group meeting that regular use is being made of SNS
and the internet in support of counclt business. Trading S8tandards do this on a regular
basis in suppor of invasiigations Into counterfeit goods and have sought
suthorisations for directed survelllance and CHIS I relstion o this sort of activity.
Other depariments such as Schools Admission, Litigation, Human Resources and
Chikiren's Gervicas use the media fo varying degrees. Among the siaff that | met
there is a mixture of overly cautious use and naivefinnocent usage, whereby the

aclivily might meel the criteriz for RIPA authorisation or &t the least might b2 an
infringement of privacy,

| certainty felt that there was a ack of clear understanding as to where the boundaries
{2, even among staif that have an understanding of RIPA and most definitely among
staff from departments which are outside of the usual ‘RiPA audience’. There is 8

need for guidance to be provided o &l staff to whom it may be applicable and | make
8 recommendation in thix regard,

Conclusions

Lansashire CGounty Councll has always mads infrequent use of the powers vested

under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 and its usage has declined
over g number of years to its cumrent lavel,

Thers (s g sound guidance and agvice regime in place {(notwithstanding tha chalienge
regarding the use of SNS and the internst) and those with oversight and authorising
officer responsibiiies are knowledgeable and conscientious. Some rationalising of
currant systems and processes would be an improvament, Le. 3 re-formatting of the
Gentral Racord and unifying authoniasation procedures for I;LFIF’P, ang Shadow RIPA, |
also draw out some leaming points from the authorisations thal | examined, Whilst

net making them the subject of a racommendsation | urge that altention is given i
those points.

GFFIGIAL -~ SENSITIVE &

Page 40



OFFIGIAL - SENSITIVE

83 ] did ab fmes feel tha! steff were uncariain regarding how they could use, or If lhey
couid yse, the powers under RIPA and this related to both real world aclivily and
virtual world aclivity. Hopefully the inspeclion will have provided some clanhcalion o
those areas of uncerlainly. To be fair zlalf fended to e on the side of caulion,
demanstrating 2 reluctanes to condust covert aclivily under RIPA

8.4 The ohe recommendation | make 1§ in relation 1o the need {or more expansive and
rafevant gudance regarding use of SNS and the internel. The challenge for the

counct s how s can e disseminated proactively 1o all relevant depariments.

4.5 Pwould ke to thank all the staff that 1 met for thelr co-operation and courtesy and In
parfcular Laura Sales, who made the arrangements for my visil and provided me with
cornprehansive pre-reat matenatl, “

(1 Recoammendation

0.1 Guidanes in ralation to the uge of sochal nabworking sites and the inlernet by siafi in
support of thelr work for the councl should be expanded and made more relevant o
councll funclions, and this guidance then needs to te aclively disseminated fo all
relavant siaff — paragraphs 8.1 {iv) and B2

Burveillance Inspector

OFFIGIAL - SENSITIVE 2



Page 42



Appendix 'B’

Corporate Policy and Guidance
On

The Regulation

Of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

Lancashire
County ‘6;:@?.
Council (’;@{)

www.lancashire.gov.uk



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

Contents
1. Corporate Guidance

1.1 Forward

1.2 Employee or Non-RIPA Surveillance
1.3 CCTV Use

1.4 Lancashire County Council Auditing

2. Definitions

2.1 Definitions
2.2 Communications Data

3. Covert Surveillance

3.1 Introduction

3.2 Collateral Intrusion

3.3 Records of Authorisations

3.4 Authorisation of Directed Surveillance

3.5 Covert Video Camera and Audio Recording Equipment
3.6 Grounds for granting Authorisation

3.7 Duration of authorisation

3.8 Renewal

3.9 Cancellation

3.10 Records

3.11 Handling Product from Surveillance Activities
3.12 Storage of Product

3.13 Disposal of Product

4. Guidance Notes for the Authorisation of Directed Surveillance

4.1 Activity Involved
4.2 Directed Surveillance via Recording of telephone conversations
4.3 Test purchasing of age restricted products

5. Covert Human Intelligence Sources (C.H.L.S.)

5.1 Introduction

5.2 Further Guidance on the C.H.I.S. Process

5.3 Management of Sources

5.4 Designated handlers and Controllers for the use of Covert Human Intelligence
5.5 Security and Welfare Sources

5.6 The Application for Authorisation

5.7 Duration of Authorisation

5.8 Renewals and Reviews

5.9 Cancellations

5.10 Source Records

6. Risk Assessments for all RIPA Surveillance Activities

Pa.gze.44



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

7. Communications Data

7.1 Accessing Communications Data

7.2 What is Communications Data?

7.3 Who are Communication Service Providers?
7.4 What information can be obtained from Communications Service Providers?
7.5 How can this information be obtained

7.6 Contact with the Communications Industry

7.7 The Role of the Single Point of Contact (SPOC)
7.8 The Role of the Authorising Officer

7.9 The Application Process

7.10. Records and Errors

7.11 Further Relevant Documentation

8. Seeking JP approval for authorisations

9. Lancashire County Council Auditing of Authorisations and Records
10. Inspections by the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner and the
Interception of Communications Commissioner

11. Complaints

12. Management Records

Pagg 45



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

General Statement of Policy

This policy document relates to use by Lancashire County Council officers of
directed surveillance, covert human intelligence sources and access to
telecommunications information, for the prevention and detection of crime.

The County Council is committed to upholding human rights.

As a public body and responsible employer, the County Council wants to conform
to the letter and spirit of the requirements of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers
Act 2000 and associated regulations and codes of practice relating to the use of
covert surveillance, the use of covert human intelligence sources, and access to
communications data.

County Council officers will only undertake surveillance work when it is both
necessary and proportionate to the ends it seeks to achieve.

From 1 November 2012 local authorities have been required to obtain judicial
approval prior to using covert techniques. Local authority authorisations and
notices under RIPA are only be given effect once an order has been granted by a
justice of the peace in England and Wales, a sheriff in Scotland and a district judge
(magistrates’ court) in Northern Ireland.

Additionally, from this date local authority use of directed surveillance under RIPA
will be limited to the investigation of crimes which attract a 6 month or more
custodial sentence, with the exception of offences relating to the underage sale of
alcohol and tobacco.

Pagg, 46



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

Corporate Guidance
1.1 Foreword

1.1.1 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) provides a framework for
certain bodies (including local authorities) to undertake their duties aimed at preventing or
detecting crime, which may interfere with a citizens normal human rights in respect of privacy
by the use of ‘covert surveillance’, Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS) i.e. undercover
officers/informants and to obtain certain limited communications data.

1.1.2 The use of these techniques must be "necessary" and "proportionate" to the investigation
i.e. simple, overt methods of gathering information are not available and the matter under
investigation should not be trivial.

1.1.3 RIPA establishes detailed requirements in respect of the seniority, training awareness
of Authorising Officers (referred to as ‘Designated Officers’ in the Act) and also the formal
assessment and recording processes before undertaking any surveillance activity.

1.1.4 The Authorising Officer is required to be an officer at least at the following level within
the authority:

Director
Head of Service
Service Manager or equivalent

The Authorising Officers for the Council are The Head of Trading Standards and Trading
Standards Managers within Trading Standards as authorised by the Director of Governance,
Finance and Public Services. The Director of Legal and Democratic Services may also
authorise covert surveillance where appropriate.

1.1.5 This guidance addresses the detailed requirements of RIPA and its codes of practice in
relation to:

+ the covert surveillance of individuals,

¢ the wuse of covert human intelligence sources, including undercover
officers/agents/informants,

¢ the recording of telephone conversations

¢ for obtaining communications data.

This guidance provides a summary and overview of the legislation and codes of
practice. DO NOT seek to rely on it alone. In the event of any doubt, any senior
managers, or applicants, should refer to the relevant legislation or code and consult
the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services, the Director of Legal and
Democratic Services or the Head of Trading Standards before any action is taken.

1.1.6 The Act and relevant Codes of Practice (as amended in December 2014) had effect from
1 October 2000 and impose requirements as regards authorisation, procedures and records,
which must be followed by Public Authorities undertaking investigations which fall within the
scope of the Act

1.1.7 Appropriate staff should familiarise themselves with the guidance and procedures, the
legislation and the Codes of Practice. If in any doubt advice and guidance should be sought
from an appropriate officer before undertaking any enforcement activities which may fall within
the scope of the Act.

Pagg a7



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

1.1.8 Lancashire County Council is committed to carrying out its enforcement functions in an
equitable, practical and consistent manner. We are committed to these aims and to
maintaining a fair and safe environment. This guidance demonstrates our desire to carry out
our criminal investigations in a fair and equitable manner that respects all human rights and
contributing to this commitment.

1.1.9 Enforcement activities of the Council that fall within the remit of the RIPA are subject to
monitoring and oversight by the Surveillance Commissioner and the Interception
Commissioner.

1.1.10 Complaints made regarding activities of the Council, which are within the scope of
RIPA, can be investigated by the Investigatory Powers Tribunal.

1.1.11 The Council may be liable to claims alleging breaches of an individual's rights under
the Human Rights Act 1998 if officers fail to follow the requirements of RIPA and Codes of
Practice.

1.1.12 Failure to follow RIPA and Codes may also adversely affect the admissibility of any
evidence obtained using methods covered by RIPA. The safety of members of the public
supplying information to the Council may also be compromised where an authorisation is not
in place.

1.1.13 When undertaking any covert investigation, officers should have regard to the health
and safety of persons affected by the activity. This may include themselves, colleagues and
members of the public and the person you are being asked to observe. A risk assessment of
the investigation technique being proposed should be undertaken, having regard to Corporate
Health and Safety Policy and any supplemental guidance issued.

1.1.14 The monitoring of Internet and e-mail use is regulated by the Telecommunications
(Lawful Business Practice) (Interception of Communications) Regulations 2000, made under
RIPA.

1.2 Employee or Non-RIPA Surveillance

1.2.1 RIPA does not apply where surveillance is undertaken otherwise than for ‘the detection
or prevention of crime’ for example as part of an internal investigation into possible employee
misconduct where the investigation may be of a disciplinary nature rather than being primarily
aimed at detecting criminal offences*. However, as such surveillance may infringe an
individual's Human Rights in respect of privacy, then similarly to RIPA, the procedures of
authorisation and assessment should be followed with the Authorising Officer using RIPA
criteria in considering the surveillance request. Assessment and Approval forms, similar to
RIPA, must be used in considering surveillance activity.

1.2.2 Similarly, child custody/protection investigations requiring surveillance should follow the
same principles and use the non-RIPA Application forms*. Copies of appropriately completed
forms should be kept with the investigation file and the original sent to the Central Register in
Information Governance.,

1.2.3 Where surveillance is undertaken otherwise than for the prevention or detection of crime,
reference should be made to the corporate policy on shadow RIPA authorisations.

1.2.4 *Note that where there is a clear likelihood at the outset of an investigation, or during an
investigation it becomes apparent that criminal proceedings will result, the full RIPA regime,
including application for magistrate's approval, should be followed. This may include cases of
child abuse or neglect, abuse of vulnerable adults, or major employee fraud/theft. In all cases

Pa.%e.48



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

other than Trading Standards matters, the authorising officer will be the Director of Legal and
Democratic Services.

Pagx; 49



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

1.3 CCTV Use

1.3.1 CCTV surveillance systems are not normally caught by the Act where signs or cameras
are visible or members of the public are aware that such systems are in use. However there
may be occasions when public authorities use CCTV systems for the purposes of a specific
directed investigation or operation. In such cases, authorisation for directed surveillance may
be necessary. A protocol has been produced to protect those officers responsible for such
systems from being pressured into carrying out directed surveillance without an appropriate
authorisation.

1.4 Lancashire County Council Auditing

1.4.1 For appropriate corporate reporting and auditing of activities to ensure awareness and
ongoing compliance with RIPA policies. Contact: Director of Legal and Democratic Services

2 Definitions
2.1 Surveillance and Covert Human Intelligence Sources
The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

Authorising Officer Means the person(s) designated under Sections 28 and 29 of the Act to
grant authorisations for directed surveillance and the use and conduct of a Covert Human
Intelligence Source, respectively. The Head of Trading Standards and Trading Standards
Managers in Trading Standards are designated as authorising officers by the Director of
Governance, Finance and Public Services as is the Director of Legal and Democratic
Services.

Conduct of a Source - Any action of that source falling within the terms of the Act or action
incidental to it. (ie what they do)

Confidential Material Matters of legal privilege, confidential personal
Includes: information (eg medical records), confidential journalistic material

Controller - Means the person or designated managerial officer responsible for overseeing the
use of the source.

Covert Human Intelligence Sources Commonly known as Agents, Informants, Undercover
Officers. (NB. See RIPA and the Codes of (CHIS) Practice for the definition)

Covert Surveillance Means surveillance carried out in @ manner calculated to ensure that the
persons subject to the surveillance are unaware that it is taking place.

Directed Surveillance - Surveillance is directed if it is covert but not intrusive and is undertaken:

a) for the purpose of a specific investigation/operation

b) is likely to result in the obtaining private information about a
person (whether or not one specifically identified for the
purposes of the investigation or operation)

c¢) Otherwise than by way of an immediate response to events or
circumstances and it would not be reasonably practicable for
an authorisation to be sought for the carrying out of the
surveillance.

Handler An investigating officer having day to day responsibility for:

Pa.gge.SO



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

- dealing with the source on behalf of the authority
- directing the day to day activities of the source

- recording the information supplied by the source

- monitoring the security and welfare of the source.

Intrusive Surveillance Means Covert Surveillance that is carried out in relation to anything
taking place on any residential premises or in any private vehicle and involves the presence
of any individual on the premises or in the vehicle or is carried out by means of a surveillance
device.

Private Information In relation to a person or business, this includes any information relating
to an individual's private, business or family life.

Senior Responsible Officer (Surveillance)

An officer responsible for the integrity of RIPA processes for the authority and compliance with
Part Il of the Act. The Senior Responsible Officer for Surveillance and CHIS is the Director of
Governance, Finance and Public Services.

(Note: See Senior Responsible Officer for Communications Data)

Surveillance includes: - monitoring, observing or listening to persons, their movements, their
conversations, or their activities or communications.

- recording anything monitored, observed or listened to in the
course of surveillance.

- Surveillance by or with the assistance of a surveillance device
(any apparatus designed or adapted for use in surveillance eg
cameras and microphones.)

2.2 Communications Data

Communications Service Provider (CSP)
These include telecommunications, Internet (including e-mail) and postal service providers.

Designated Person
This is the authorising officer for the purposes of obtaining communications data, currently
three Trading Standards Managers.

Senior responsible Officer (Communications Data)

An officer responsible for the integrity of RIPA processes in relation to the Acquisition of
Communications data under the Act, currently the Head of Trading Standards.

Single Point of Contact (SPOC)

This is a nominated officer within a public authority who has completed a training course and
is accredited by the Home Office to make enquiries with communication service providers.
SPOC’s will oversee the forwarding and receipt of notices and authorisations sent to and
returned by CSPs.

(CSPs will not deal with enquires to obtain communications data from an officer who is not
listed with them as being a nominated SPOC).

Pag& 1



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

SPOCs: The SPOC role is carried out by the National Anti Fraud Network (NAFN) on behalf
of Lancashire County Council, and access can be arranged by approaching the Head of
Trading Standards.

3. Covert Surveillance Policy and Procedures

3.1 Introduction

3.1.1 Covert Surveillance means surveillance which is carried out in a manner calculated
to ensure that the persons subject to the surveillance are unaware that it is or may be

taking place.

3.1.2 An authorisation provides lawful authority for a Public Authority to carry out covert
surveillance.

3.1.3 Any /Service seeking to use covert surveillance techniques must seek authorisation from
the Director of Legal and Democratic Services using the appropriate forms.

3.1.4 Whenever surveillance takes place and is for the purpose of obtaining, or is likely to
obtain private information about a person (whether or not they are the target of the operation)
an authorisation should be obtained.

3.1.5 By obtaining an authorisation, the surveillance operation is carried out in accordance
with the law and the safeguards that exist.

3.1.6 Prior to granting an authorisation the Authorising Officer must be satisfied that the
proposed surveillance is necessary on specific grounds and is proportionate to what it seeks
to achieve.

3.1.7 Careful consideration must also be given to any Community sensitivities that may be
exacerbated by any individual surveillance operation.

3.1.8 Before applying for an authorisation, the Investigating Officer should consider whether
or not the evidence sought could be obtained by alternative possibly non covert methods.

3.1.9 The Authorising Officer must also believe that the surveillance is proportionate to what
it seeks to achieve and is not excessive.

Note for All Applications for Authorisations

Necessity

For interference with an individual’s private, family or business life to be necessary, the action
must be for the purpose of preventing or detecting crime, be necessary to secure best
evidence and the authoriser should be satisfied that less covert or intrusive action would not
serve the appropriate purpose.

Proportionality

The test for proportionality goes far beyond selecting the least intrusive method of
investigation. The activity to be observed must not be trivial and must warrant the surveillance
to be instigated

The activity will not be proportionate if it is excessive in the circumstances of the case or if

the information which is sought could reasonably be obtained by other less intrusive means.

P_aqS 52



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

All such activity should be carefully managed to meet the objective in question and must not
be arbitrary or unfair. Proportionality should contain a consideration of four elements:

* balancing the size and scope of the proposed activity against the gravity and extent of the
perceived crime or offence;

+ explaining how and why the methods to be adopted will cause the least possible intrusion
on the subject and others

» Considering whether the activity is an appropriate use of the legislation and a reasonable
way, having considered all reasonable alternatives of obtaining the necessary result

* evidencing, as far as reasonably practicable, what other methods had been considered and
why they were not implemented

3.2 Collateral Intrusion

3.2.1 The officer seeking the authorisation should also consider the possibility of collateral
intrusion (this is where interference with the privacy of others not subject to the original
surveillance may occur). Steps should be taken to assess the risk and where possible reduce
the risk of collateral intrusion. Where unforeseen collateral intrusion occurs during an
operation, the Authorising Officer must be notified and consideration given to amending the
authorisation following a review. A separate Lancashire County Council CCTV protocol exists
which also refers to avoiding collateral intrusion.

3.2.2 Consideration must also be given as to whether or not the surveillance activities of the
Service take place where similar activities are also being undertaken by another agency eg
the Police, Benefits Agency, Environment Agency and liaison with other enforcement agencies
should be considered where appropriate.

3.3 Records of Authorisations

3.3.1 A record of all authorisations must be maintained for five years following the end of the
authorisation for Covert Surveillance and CHIS. Records relating to Communications Data
should be retained until they have been inspected by the Interception of Communications
Commissioner. The record should include not only those authorisations granted, but also
those which are refused.

3.3.2 All CHIS and Directed Surveillance records including JP authorisations must be supplied
electronically by email to the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services for the
Central Record of authorisations. For the Acquisition of Communications data the record is
maintained by the National Anti Fraud Network (NAFN). Nominated Authorising Officers may
retain copy records for their own reference. Copies of all relevant documents should be
returned electronically to the applying officer. An officer from the central record will advise
Authorising Officers of the status of authorisations when renewals, cancellation etc are
required.

3.3.3 Due to the sensitive nature of all documentation covered by the Act, consideration
must be given to the means by which copies are forwarded to the central record to ensure
confidentiality. Records of authorisations, renewals and cancellations should be forwarded by
email to the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services.

3.4 Authorisations for Directed Surveillance

3.4.1 An authorisation is required for covert surveillance undertaken:

(a) for a specific investigation or operation; and

Pa_ngle] 93



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

(b) where the surveillance is likely to result in obtaining private information about any
person (whether or not they are the subject of the surveillance).

3.4.2 Directed surveillance is conducted where the observation is for the purpose of gathering
private information to produce a detailed picture of a person'’s life, activities and associations.

3.4.3 An authorisation is not required for covert surveillance carried out as an immediate
response to events or circumstances which could not be foreseen. However, if this
surveillance continues for a substantial period of time, or is recommenced after some time has
elapsed, an authorisation may be required.

3.4.4 Local Authorities cannot undertake intrusive surveillance. Therefore Authorisations
will not be granted for covert surveillance on residential premises or in any private vehicles
where an individual or surveillance device is present on such premises or vehicle.

3.4.5 Where the surveillance activity is likely to result in confidential material being obtained,
the Authorising Officer within Lancashire County council will be the Chief Executive,
or in his absence the person acting as Head of Paid Service (see paragraph 4.3
of the Code of Practice on Covert Surveillance). In practice, advice should be sought
from the Director of Legal and Democratic Services.

3.5 Covert Video Camera and Audio Recording Equipment

3.5.1 This type of equipment may be considered for the purpose of recording the
transaction/activity and obtaining photographic evidence of individuals or activities eg Trading
Standards test purchases etc. Concealed cameras and voice recorders may be used to record
activities and conversations without the knowledge of the other party.

3.5.2 The deployment of such equipment clearly has the potential for not only obtaining
personal information in relation to the suspect, but also collateral intrusion into the activities of
other persons in the vicinity of the operation.

3.5.3 Whilst the use of such equipment does not automatically require an authorisation,
consideration should be given to safeguard against any challenge as to Human Rights
infringements. The manner in which such equipment is used may also invoke the
requirements relating to Covert Human Intelligence Sources. Prior to such covert
use of equipment, advice should always be sought from an Authorising Officer or the
Head of Trading Standards.

3.6 Grounds For Granting Authorisations

3.6.1 Surveillance must be shown to be necessary on specific grounds. Investigations
undertaken by Local Authorities can only be authorised:

For the purposes of preventing and detecting crime

3.6.2 The Council operates parallel procedures for Non-RIPA investigations/surveillance (Ref
paragraph 1.2)

3.6.3 Local Authorities are not able to issue urgent authorisations.

3.6.4 Officers should normally be able to prepare applications in advance to enable a written
authorisation to be obtained.

3.7 Duration of Authorisation

P_aqg 54



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

3.7.1 An authorisation is valid for three months, unless cancelled.

This begins on the day on which the Authorising Officer grants the application, the expiry date
will be considered to be three months minus one day (authorisation ceases at 23:59) from the
date of signature by the Authorising Officer.

3.7.2 The Authorising Officer should ensure that a system is in place to review authorisations
before it ceases to have effect. It is a matter for the Authorising Officer to determine how
frequently a review is necessary and practicable. This is stated within the authorisation as a
control measure. The authorisation should also be reviewed prior to expiry to determine
whether or not a renewal is required and can be justified. It is a requirement that review forms
are maintained as part of the Central Record of authorisations.
3.8 Renewal
3.8.1 An authorisation may be renewed for a further period of three months. It may be renewed
more than once provided that the renewal continues to meet the criteria for authorisation. The
number of occasions it has been renewed should be recorded.
3.8.2 A record should also be made of the following:

- Any significant changes to the previous authorisation

- Why it is necessary to continue the surveillance

- The value to the investigation of the information obtained so far by surveillance

- An indication of the length of time further surveillance may be necessary
3.9 Cancellations
3.9.1 The Authorising Officer who granted or who last renewed the authorisation must cancel
it if satisfied that the directed surveillance no longer satisfies the criteria outlined in this
procedure.
3.9.2 An authorisation should also be cancelled once the activity which was the subject of the
authorisation has been completed. The authorisation should not be left to lapse as a result

of the time limit expiring.

3.9.3 The reason for cancellation of the authorisation must be detailed on the cancellation
form. The cancellation form should be sent to the Central Record by the Authorising Officer.

3.10 Records

3.10.1 Material obtained as a result of surveillance activities should be recorded on the
“Record of Product obtained by Directed Surveillance Form”.

3.10.2 A copy of this form should be forwarded to the Authorising Officer to be filed with the
Authorisation form. The original should be retained by the Investigating Officer as part of the
case file. Internal procedures within some services may require that all authorisations and
case materials are held within a specific secure location. A copy should be retained on the
case file.

3.10.3 A record must also be maintained of the period over which surveillance has taken place.

Pa_ngl% 95



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

3.11 Handling Product from Surveillance Activities
3.11.1 "Product” from Covert Surveillance activities may consist of:
- Photographs
- Video film
- Voice recordings
- Surveillance log
- Officer’s notes

3.11.2 The above may be required as evidence in current or future criminal proceedings.
Officers must have regard to the provisions of the Criminal Procedure and Investigations Act
1996 in relation to unused material. Product obtained via an authorisation may be used by the
authority in other investigations.

3.11.3 Although specific legislation and the Data Protection Act 1998 provide for the disclosure
of information in certain circumstances, additional controls are introduced by RIPA.

3.11.4 The use of any product obtained by authorised surveillance activities outside of the
local authority or the Courts should only be authorised in the most exceptional circumstances.
This requirement seeks to prevent product from being used for grounds other than that for
which it was obtained. Joint operations should make reference to the potential use of
evidence by each agency.

3.11.5 Officers may receive requests from other agencies for product, which may include
photographs of suspects, descriptions and vehicle details. Where this information has been
obtained under an authorisation, further guidance should be sought from the Authorising
Officer since disclosure may not be permitted under the provisions of the Code of Practice.

3.12 Storage of Product

3.12.1 Officers should ensure that evidential protocols are observed to ensure the integrity,
security and confidentiality of material. This will ensure that the requirements of the Data
Protection Act are addressed.

3.13 Disposal of Product

3.13.1 Officers should ensure that personal data is not kept for longer than necessary for the
purpose for which it was obtained as follows:

Product which is not required as evidence should not be retained any longer than necessary.
It will be necessary to retain product for a sufficient time to safeguard the Council against any
civil claims against infringement of an individual’s Human Rights. A period of five years
ensures that all of the retention period requirements are addressed.

3.13.2 Product which has been destroyed should have this fact recorded on the record of
product obtained by Directed Surveillance and be signed by the officer

3.13.3 An amended copy of this Record form should be forwarded to the Authorising Officer
indicating destruction of the product obtained from the surveillance activity.

Pagg 50



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

4 Guidance Notes for the Authorisation of Directed Surveillance
4.1 Activity Involved
Does the activity involve:

The necessary and proportionate systematic covert surveillance of an individual which is likely
to gather private information?

If so, an authorisation is required

4.1.1 Low-level activity for example, to determine whether a premise is still trading, will not
require authorisation. Surveillance carried out in response to immediate events will also not
require authorisation. However, if the surveillance activity continues for any period of time,
an authorisation will be required.

4.1.2 The Authorising Officer must be satisfied that:
The authorisation is:

Necessary for the purposes of preventing and detecting crime or is pursuant to
Council Policy for Non-RIPA surveillance (Ref Paragraph 1.2)

4.1.3 The Authorising Officer must also believe that the surveillance is proportionate
to what it seeks to achieve, and is not excessive.

Where the identity of the subject is known to the officer, measures should also be taken to
verify (where appropriate) the address under surveillance (eg electoral register, business
rates, utility suppliers). The Authorising Officer must include some control measures within the
authorisation eg reviews, circumstances in which the surveillance must be stopped.

4.1.4 The application should provide the background to the investigation and details of other
methods which have failed to provide the information being sought or why other methods are
not appropriate.

4.1.5 The description of the activity to be undertaken should be as comprehensive as possible
describing how the surveillance will be undertaken, where it will occur and any equipment (eg
cameras, video camera) which will be used. The investigating officers must not employ
techniques which are not permitted by the authorisation.

4.1.6 The information being sought should be described and how this may provide evidence
of the offence or other matter being investigated. The potential for collateral intrusion should
be identified and plans to avoid/minimise such intrusion.

4.1.7 A statement must also be included as to the likelihood of obtaining confidential
material/religious material eg the premises are a residential property, not located near any
medical, religious or legal establishments, therefore there is no likelihood of obtaining any
confidential/religious material.

4.1.8 If confidential material is being sought, or is likely to be obtained, a higher level of
authorisation is required. This authorisation can only be given by the Chief Executive (or in
their absence by the Head of Paid Service). Further guidance should be sought from the
Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services if confidential material becomes relevant
to the investigation.

qul% of



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

4.1.9 Where applications for authorisations are refused, records of the refused application
must also be maintained stating the reasons for the refusal and a service number. Copies of
these refusals must be sent for inclusion in the central record.

4.2 Directed Surveillance via Recording of Telephone Conversations

4.2.1 The interception of communications sent by post or public telecommunications systems
or private telecommunications systems attached to the public network may only be authorised
by the Secretary of State (Part | RIPA).

42.2. The attachment of a general surveillance device eg "wiretapping" to a
telecommunications system can only be undertaken under a warrant issued under Section 5
of RIPA (this is not available to the Council).

4.2.3 However an exception to the rule requiring a warrant exists, where one party to a
telephone conversation consents and where an authorisation for directed surveillance is
obtained. See Section 48(4) of RIPA.

4.2.4 For example, a member of the public may consent to the recording of a telephone
conversation made by or to him/her. An officer may seek to record such a conversation to
assist with an investigation into another person's activities.

4.2.5 An officer may also request a colleague to telephone another person as part of an
investigation or may make the call himself or herself. These situations may require an
authorisation to be granted depending on the nature of the information to be obtained. Where
the call is a simple call to enquire about the availability or description of goods or services on
offer for supply as any consumer would enquire, an authorisation will not be required.

4.2.6 Where the person giving consent is not present and a recording made, this activity is
deemed to be intrusive surveillance and is beyond the scope of activities authorised for the
Council.

4.2.7 Where the Officer acts in an overt capacity, ie clearly identifying the fact that they
represent the Council, the activity will not require a directed surveillance authorisation.

4.2.8 Where the Officer makes/receives the call acting covertly, with the possibility of private
information being obtained and a relationship being entered into, aCHIS authorisation will be
required. This will cover any directed surveillance activity which is undertaken by the CHIS.

4.2.9 Similarly if a member of the public or another person acting as a covert source is asked
to record a telephone conversation made/received by them, a CHIS should be in place.

4.3 Test purchasing of age restricted products

4.3.1 Juveniles may only be authorised as a CHIS by the Head of Paid Service.

4.3.2 Officers should have regard to the Better Regulation Delivery Office code of Practice in
determining whether directed surveillance authorisation will be necessary in the context of the
planned operations.

4.3.3 Where the information obtained relates only to whether a sale is made or not, and no

other information is likely to be obtained which is not already known to the officer directed
surveillance authorisation is not necessary.

Pagg 58



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

5 Covert Human Intelligence Sources (C.H.1.S.)
5.1 Introduction

5.1.1 This section of the guidance document deals with Covert Human Intelligence Sources
(CHIS), more commonly known as:

Undercover Officers

Informants/Agents

Authorisation is a two-stage process:

(a) to use a source
(b) an authority for the conduct of a source

NB Juvenile surveillance CHIS — normally no-one under 18 years or any vulnerable individual
should be considered as a CHIS (see 5.6 — 8)

5.1.2 A CHIS is a person who establishes or maintains a personal or other relationship with
another person for the covert purpose of:

(a) Using such a relationship to obtain information or to provide access to information
to another person, or

(b) Disclosing information obtained by the use of such a relationship or as a
consequence of such a relationship.

In addition, a person who covertly provides information to a public authority is potentially a
CHIS if he has obtained that information in the course of or as a consequence of the existence
of a personal or other relationship, whether or not the relationship has been established or
maintained for that purpose. A repeat informant if and when it becomes apparent that he
obtains his information in that way is a CHIS to whom a duty of care is owed, if the information
is acted upon. Legal advice should be taken before acting on the information provided by such
a source.

5.1.3 The relationship is used covertly if, and only if, it is conducted in a manner calculated to
ensure that the person is unaware of its purpose.

5.1.4 The Council receives complaints/information routinely from the public and traders
regarding the alleged activities of individuals. The actions of these complainants do not
generally fall within the definition of a covert source since they are a one off provision of
information. However, a person may become a covert source if an ongoing relationship with
the Council develops and activities described in paragraph 5.1.2 above are carried out.

5.1.5 Where the nature of the complaint relates to a matter where an officer requests the
complainant to obtain further information covertly via a relationship with another individual,
this activity is likely to fall within the scope of RIPA. An authorisation will therefore be required
before seeking such information. By following the authorisation procedures, the Council will
also be in a position to seek to safeguard the identity of the source in any subsequent legal
proceedings. Further guidance should be sought from the Director of Governance, Finance
and Public Services Group on this issue to ensure that the identities of any such individuals
are safeguarded in the event of any legal proceedings, tribunals or disciplinary hearings.

5.1.6 The Code of Practice on Covert Human Intelligence Sources relates not only to sources
(which may commonly be referred to as informants) but also the activities of sources, which
consist of undercover officers who establish or maintain a covert relationship to obtain
information and evidence.

Pa_ngﬁ 99



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

5.1.7 Before a source may be engaged or an undercover officer deployed the use must be
authorised. A separate authorisation for the conduct is also required. The use authorisation
effectively registers the source with the Council. The conduct will address each separate
operation/investigation in which that source may be involved.

5.1.8 In most cases, the use and conduct of a source will be restricted to a single investigation.
However, situations may arise where different conducts are required which can be done once
the use authorisation is in place. An example would be officers of a Service who undertake
investigations which require different undercover stories to be adopted. The use authorisation
enables them to undertake such covert activities. The conduct authorisation addresses each
different cover story and activity within a different investigation/operation.

5.1.9 The same authorisation form is used for both use and conduct, with the deletion of
Use*/Conduct* as appropriate. A conduct authorisation should be traceable back to the
original use authority. A handler and controller must also be designated as part of the
authorisation process and detailed records of the use, conduct and tasking of the source
maintained.

5.1.10 An Authorising Officer is a person entitled to give an authorisation for the use or conduct
of a source in accordance with Section 29 of the RIPA. Trading Standards Managers have
been designated as authorising officers as has the Director of Legal and Democratic Services.

5.1.11 The use of a CHIS should be necessary and proportionate to the matter being
investigated (see para 3.1.9).

5.1.12 Failure to obtain an authorisation may render the Council liable to a claim of infringing
the human rights of an individual and may adversely affect the admissibility of any evidence
obtained by the use of covert methods employed by a source. It is also established that a
public authority owes a duty of care to a CHIS. Failure to undertake a robust risk assessment
and authorisation may also adversely affect the position of the Council in the source suffering
any harm as a result of the activity in which they have been engaged.

5.1.13 Careful consideration must be given to any potential sensitivities which may exist
before deciding whether to use a CHIS in a particular community or against a particular
individual.

5.1.14 A separate directed surveillance authorisation is not required where any surveillance
device (technical equipment) is used in the presence of the covert source.

5.1.15 A CHIS carrying surveillance equipment can be invited to enter residential premises or
a private vehicle. However the CHIS cannot install surveillance equipment in residential
premises or a private vehicle since this activity constitutes intrusive surveillance and is not
available for use by local authorities.

5.2 Further Guidance on the C.H.L.S Process.

5.2.1 When seeking an authorisation for an individual to act as a CHIS, consideration needs
to be made of their potential role in the investigation. Are they prepared to be a witness? Do
they need to be given protection as a result of providing information? The source may also be
in a position to provide information relating to a number of different matters worthy of
investigation.

Pagg 50



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

5.2.2 The motives of potential sources need to be considered as part of the evaluation
process. Could they be motivated by possible rewards or revenge? The aim could be to deflect
attention away from themselves towards other individuals.

5.2.3 Has consideration been given to building up a detailed profile of the potential source and
their associates? In all cases, a face-to-face meeting with the complainant or any other person
considered as a potential source should take place. Please be aware that the individual may
have needs in respect of language, hearing or sight.

5.2.4 Directed surveillance may be needed to evaluate the source. Consideration should be
given in certain circumstances to carrying out checks on the source with the Police. A thorough
risk assessment must be carried out on the potential source and the proposed conduct.

5.3 Management of Sources

5.3.1 Tasking is the assignment given to the source by the handler/controller asking him/her
to obtain information or to take action to obtain information.

5.3.2 All authorisations should be in writing and in place before tasking a source. Every source
must have a designated handler and controller.

5.4 Designated Handlers and Controllers for the Use of Covert Human Intelligence
Sources

5.4.1 Where the CHIS is a complainant or an informant, the Handler will be the Investigating
Officer and the Controller will be their line manager. Where the CHIS is employed by the
Council acting in an undercover capacity, the Handler will be the officer's line manager and
the Controller will be another manager within the Service. This arrangement will ensure that
an officer does not act as a Controller and Authorising Officer thereby ensuring a level of
independent scrutiny.

5.5 Security and Welfare of Sources

5.5.1 A source has no licence to commit crime. In certain circumstances it may be advisable
to provide written guidance to the source explaining what is being requested of them and the
limits of the tasking. The source should be asked to sign such a document to confirm that they
understand the terms of reference.

5.5.2 A public authority deploying a source should take into account the safety and welfare of
the source when carrying out any actions in relation to the authorisation or tasking. The
foreseeable consequences of the tasking should also be considered.

5.5.3 A Risk Assessment should be undertaken to evaluate the source and to determine the
risk to the source of any tasking and the likely consequences should the identity and role of
the source become known to the subject or others involved with the subject.

5.5.4 The handler should draw to the attention of the controller:
The Risk Assessment

The Conduct of the Source

The Safety and Welfare of the Source

A Handler is responsible for:

Dealing with the source on behalf of the Council

Directing the day to day activities of the source

Recording the information supplied by the source

Monitoring the security and welfare of the source

qul% 61



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

5.5.5 Where a source is known or suspected of being involved in crime, consideration should
be given to their motives in supplying information. It may also be a prudent step in the
management of such a source to have two officers present during any meetings with the
source. Background checks on the potential source via the Police Local Intelligence Officer
should also be considered.

5.5.6 Special provisions exist for the conduct in use of juvenile sources (Under 18).

A source under 16 cannot be engaged to use a relationship with any person having parental
responsibility for them. A source under 16 must have an appropriate adult present during any
meetings and a risk assessment must also take place before granting or renewing an
authorisation for the conduct and use of a source under 18. This will take account of physical
and psychological risks.

See the Regulation of Investigatory Powers (Juveniles) Order 2000 for detailed guidance.

5.5.7 Special consideration should also be given to the use of vulnerable individuals as a
source. This will require the highest level of Authorising Officer (see the code of practice for
further guidance).

5.5.8 Authorisations for juvenile sources ie a source under the age of 18, when the
authorisation is granted, have effect for one month. Juvenile and vulnerable source
authorisations can only be issued with the authorisation of the Head of Paid Service.
5.6 The Application for Authorisation

Must include:

5.6.1 The ground on which the authorisation is sought:

Preventing or detecting crime (or other Lancashire County Council Non-Ripa policy
circumstances)

- An explanation of the necessity and proportionality of the Use/Conduct.

- Where the matter relates to a specific investigation, details of that investigation or
operation.

- Details of the purpose for which the source will be tasked.

- Details of what the source will be tasked to do.

- Details of the level of authority required having regard to any confidential material
that might be obtained as a consequence of the authorisation. (This will invoke the
requirement to be authorised by the Chief Executive if confidential material is being
sought or is likely to be obtained).

- Details of who will be affected and plans to avoid/minimise collateral intrusion.
Where this changes, the Authorising Officer must be informed and the authorisation

reviewed.

- A detailed Risk Assessment must have been undertaken. A review may also be
required if the assessment is not current.

P_agS 62



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

- The Authorising Officer may wish to impose control measures on the authorisation
that is granted.

5.6.2 Unless renewed or cancelled, an authorisation remains in force for:
12 months from the date of issue (Juveniles - one month). The authorisation should be given
a unique operation reference number and be recorded in management record file. Conduct

authorisations should be referenced to the original use authorisation.

A duplicate/copy of the authorisation should be issued to the officer. This will ensure that the
officer has a record of the scope of the activity authorised.

5.6.3 Applications which are refused should also be recorded together with the reasons for
the refusal and a service number. Copies of these refusals must be sent for inclusion in the
central record.

5.7 Duration of Authorisations

5.7.1 Authorisations have effect for a period of twelve months. It is suggested that the
authorisation to use the source has effect for up to 12 months (other than juveniles, see
above), however the conduct may be restricted to a shorter period or be made subject to
reviews set as a control measure by the Authorising Officer.

5.7.2 Records of authorisations to be retained for a minimum period of five years.

5.7.3 Destruction of the authorisation form should be documented in the Authorising Officers
Management Record file.

5.8 Renewals and Reviews

5.8.1 An authorisation may be renewed after the Authorising Officer reviews the use made of
the source having regard to:

a) The tasks given to the source
b) The information obtained from the source.

If satisfied that the original authorisation criteria are met, a renewal may be granted.

5.8.2 Since an authorisation for a CHIS may remain in force for a period of twelve months,
regular reviews should be undertaken to ensure the ongoing validity of the activity and the
ongoing welfare and security of the source. Any changes to circumstances may require that
further risk assessments are undertaken.

5.8.3 The reviews should be undertaken at intervals of no longer than three months and
documented. Additional control measures may also be introduced as a result of a review. The
Authorising Officer should implement a system to identify appropriate review dates.

5.9 Cancellations

5.9.1 An Authorising Officer must cancel an authorisation where:

The use or conduct of the source no longer meets the original authorisation criteria.

The procedures for managing the source are no longer in place.

Pa.n%e] @3



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

Where possible the source should be informed of the cancellation, and this fact noted on the
cancellation. The authorising officer should give directions on the handling, storage or
destruction of the product of surveillance.
5.9.2 Where an investigation no longer requires the authorisation to be in place eg the
evidence has been obtained, it should be cancelled promptly rather than allowed to expire
through time, and the reason for cancellation documented.
5.10 Source Records
5.10.1 Records of Use of the source and the product provided by the source should be
maintained by the service for a period of five years. Records should not be destroyed without
the authority of the Authorising Officer. Destruction of records should be documented in the
Central Records file.
5.10.2 The following information must be recorded:

- Authorisation Reference Number

- Authorising Officer

- Identity used by Source (If any)

- Identity of Source

- Reference used in the authority to refer to Source (If any)

- Information relating to security and welfare of Source

- Arecord that any risks to the security and welfare of the Source have been
explained to and understood by the Source

- Records of reviews conducted on the continuing use and welfare of the Source
- The date when the Source was recruited

- The circumstances of the recruitment

- Identity of the Handler and Controller (and details of any changes)

- Arecord of the tasks and activities given to the Source

- A record of all contacts or communications between the Source and a person
representing the Council

- The information obtained through the Source
- How the information is used

- A statement as to whether any payment, benefit or reward is provided by or on
behalf of any investigating authority and details of it*.

P_agg 64



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

- Reasons for cancelling/not renewing the authorisation and the date and the time of
such a decision.

*(Please seek guidance regarding any payment, benefit or reward you may wish consider
from an Authorising Officer).

Notes:

Necessity

For interference with an individual’s private, family or business life to be necessary, the action
must be for the purposes of preventing and detecting crime or of preventing disorder, be
necessary to secure best evidence and that less covert or intrusive action would not serve the
appropriate purpose.

Proportionality

The test for proportionality goes far beyond selecting the least intrusive method of
investigation. The activity to be observed must not be trivial and must warrant the surveillance
to be instigated.

The activity will not be proportionate if it is excessive in the circumstances of the case or if the
information which is sought could reasonably be obtained by other less intrusive means. All
such activity should be carefully managed to meet the objective in question and must not be
arbitrary or unfair. Proportionality should contain a consideration of three elements:

a) that the proposed covert surveillance is proportional to the mischief under investigation; (b)
that it is proportionate to the degree of anticipated intrusion on the target and others and (c)
it is the only option, other overt means having been considered and discounted

6 Risk Assessments for All RIPA/Surveillance Activities

6.1 Whenever undertaking covert directed surveillance or engaging in the conduct and use of
a CHIS, the proposed activity must be the subject of a risk assessment and evaluation of the
proposed Source.

6.2 Directed Surveillance activities clearly have the potential to expose staff to hazards should
their activities become known to the subject or even to others during the operation. The use
of a CHIS has the potential to expose handlers, undercover officers, agents/informants and
the public to health and safety risks. A duty of care may also lie with officers and the Council
in managing sources.

6.3 Authorising Officers, Controllers, Handlers Undercover Officers and Investigating Officers
must all have regard to the Council's Corporate Policy on Health and Safety. This addresses
issues such as lone working and violence to staff.

6.4 It is a matter for each Service to determine the training required to ensure that staff are
competent to undertake risk assessments of proposed operations/use of covert sources. All
incidents/dangerous occurrences during the course of operations should be reported in
accordance with the relevant Health and Safety Procedures.

6.5 Consideration should also be given to staff training requirements to engage in covert
activities, surveillance and acting in an undercover capacity.

6.6 This section of this guidance document is intended to provide an overview which must be
borne in mind when undertaking activities within the scope of RIPA.

Pa.n% @5



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

6.7. Further Guidance on Health and Safety issues is available from Corporate HR/ Health
and Safety sources.

6.8 Risk assessments for directed surveillance operations should be undertaken by the officer
in charge of the proposed activity and submitted with the authorisation application.

6.9 Risk assessments for the use of a CHIS should be undertaken by the Handler and
considered by the Controller as part of a risk management process. The assessment should
then be forwarded to the Authorising Officer with the application. The assessment should
consider the Ethical, Personal and Operational Risks of the proposed activity. The evaluation
of a potential source is an important part of the application process.

6.10 Risk assessment is not a one off activity but an ongoing process throughout the operation
and use of the source, since circumstances may change and a review may be required.

6.11 The nature of the risks surrounding the deployment and management of individual
sources, handlers and operational activities will vary according to a wide range of factors on
a case by case basis. Risk assessment allows the handler and controller to advise the
Authorising Officer of the plan for managing the risks.

6.12 Authorising Officers will not authorise a Directed Surveillance operation or the use of a
source without the evidence that the risks have been considered and a plan for their
management exists.

7 Communications Data
7.1 Accessing Communications Data

7.1.1 The relevant provisions of Part | Chapter Il of RIPA 2000 came into force on 5 January
2004. This established a formal legal framework, by which public authorities can obtain
communications data by a lawful method, consistent with article 8 of the Human Rights Act
1998.

7.1.2 This section of the guidance document details the systems in place to ensure compliance
with RIPA when an investigating officer seeks to obtain communications data within the scope
of their enquiries.

7.1.3 In a similar manner to the existing provisions of RIPA relating to directed surveillance
and the use of a CHIS, a process of submitting an application and securing an authorisation
is established by the legislation and code of practice.

For this part of the Act the lead Service for the Authority is the Trading Standards Service. The
Senior Responsible Officer for this Part of the Act is the Head of Service for Trading Standards.

7.1.4 Under Section 22(2) of RIPA, communications data which local authorities are entitled
to access can only be sought for the purpose of:

The prevention and detection of crime or preventing disorder Section 22(2)(b)

The application is also put to the two tests under RIPA of necessity and proportionality.

7.1.5 This activity cannot be undertaken by an officer as communications service providers
will only accept requests for information form accredited officers registered with the Home
Office and termed Single Points of Contact (SPOC).

7.1.6 The National Anti Fraud Network acts as the SPOC on behalf of Lancashire County

Council. Applications are made by officers via a secure network, and forwarded to the

assisd



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

designated persons in the Trading Standards Service for authorisation by means of this
network.

7.1.7 Records of all applications, authorisations, notices, cancellations and refusals are
maintained by NAFN. These are subject to periodic inspection by the body appointed to have
an overview of this Part of the Act, the Interception Commissioner. As with other parts of RIPA
there is a Central Record. For this part of the Act it is maintained by NAFN on behalf of
Lancashire County Council.

7.2 What is Communications Data
7.2.1 Communications data is information held by communication service providers such as
telecom, Internet and postal companies relating to the communications made by their

customers.

7.2.2 Communications data includes the detail of the user, the use and the content (Traffic) of
the communication. (Note: Local Authorities do not have the right to access traffic information).

7.3 Who are Communication Service Providers

7.3.1 Communications data is obtained from Communications Service Providers (CSPs)
These include:

Telecommunications Providers
» Mobile Phone service providers eg Orange, Vodafone, T Mobile, O2
* Landline telephone service providers eg BT, NTL, Cable and Wireless
* International Simple Voice Resellers eg One-Tel

Internet Service Providers (ISPs)

Examples: AOL, BT, NTL

Virtual ISP’s: Freeserve

Portals: Hotmail, Yahoo, Lycos

Postal Providers

Royal Mail, Parcelforce, DHL

Small parcel courier services

Accommodation agencies, which forward mail to clients

7.4 What Information can be obtained from Communications Service Providers

7.4.1 Information about communications service users
Section 21(4)(c)

This category mainly includes personal records supplied to the CSP by the
customer/subscriber. For example, their name and address, payment method, contact number
etc.

* Name of account holder/subscriber

* Installation and billing address

* Method of payment/billing arrangements

* Collection/delivery arrangements for PO Box (but not where from or to)

Pa.n% @7



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

* Other customer information such as any account notes, demographic information or
sign up data (not passwords or personalised access information)

7.4.2 Information about the use of the Communications Service
Section 21(4)(b)

This category mainly includes everyday data collected relating to the customer’s use of their
communications system. For example, details of the dates and times they have made calls
and which telephone numbers they have called.

 Outgoing calls on landline or contract or prepay mobile

 Timing and duration of service usage

* ltemised connection records

* Internet log on history

* Emails log (sent)

* Information on connection, disconnection and reconnection of services

* Information on the provision of conference calling, call messaging, call waiting and
call barring

* Information about the provision and use of forwarding/redirection services (postal
and telecom)

* Records of postal items, such as records of registered, recorded or special delivery
postal items, records of parcel consignments, delivery and collection

7.4.3 Information about Communications (Traffic Data)
Section 21(4)(a)

Local authorities are not permitted to obtain ‘traffic’ data (ie the actual content of the
communication or more detailed information or tracking)

This category mainly includes data generated by the CSP (network data) relating to a
customer’s use of their communication system (that the customer may not be aware of) for
example, cell site data and routing information.

* Information identifying the sender and recipient (including copy recipients) of a
communication

* Information identifying any location of a communication (such as mobile phone cell
site locations data)

* Routing information identifying or selecting any apparatus through which a
communication is transmitted — for example dynamic IP address allocation, web
postings and e-mail headers

+ Call detail records for specific calls (such as calling line identity — incoming calls)

* Web browsing information (only the web site name is disclosed and not the pages
visited on the web site)

* Information written on the outside of a postal item (such as a letter or parcel)

* Online tracking of communications (including postal)

» Signalling information and dialling sequences that affects the routing of a
communication (but not the delivery of information) in the investigation of “dial thru”
fraud

Please note that these lists are not exhaustive and the CSPs cannot all provide the
same information.

7.5 How can this Information be Obtained

Pagg 68



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

7.5.1 Under Section 22(2) of RIPA, communications data which local authorities are entitled
to access can only be sought if it for the purpose of:

The prevention and detection of crime or preventing disorder Section 22(2)(b)
7.5.2 The application is also put to the two tests under RIPA of necessity and proportionality.
7.5.3 RIPA establishes two methods by which communications data may be obtained:

Notices
Authorisations

7.5.4 A Notice under Section 22(4) of RIPA requires the CSP to collect or disclose the data
on behalf of the public authority.

7.5.5 An authorisation under permits the public authority to collect the information. This may
be where the CSP is not capable of colleting the data or a prior agreement is in place to allow
the authority to access the data.

7.5.6 A CSP only has to provide the data in a reasonable time and if practical to do so. Different
CSPs will have different types of data and differing retention periods.

7.5.7 When it becomes clear that a witness statement is required to formally produce the data
which has been provided by the CSP, it should be requested without undue delay.

7.5.8 CPSs are entitled to recover reasonable costs incurred in providing the data and
supplying witness statements. These vary from one CSP to another.

7.5.9 Where the notice or authorisation is approved by the Designated Person (Authorising
Officer), it remains in force for a period of one month.

7.5.10 Notices and authorisations which are no longer required are no longer necessary or
proportionate and must be cancelled.

7.6 Contact with the Communications Industry

7.6.1 Notices and, where appropriate, authorisations for communications data can only be
channelled through single points of contact officers (SPOCs) within each public authority.

7.6.2 Similarly, requests for a witness statement following receipt of data from a CSP should
also be via a SPOC.

7.6.3 SPOCs have been trained via a course accredited by the Home Office and the details
of nominated SPOCs within each public authority are held by each CSP.

A CSP will therefore not deal with any request received from another un-accredited source of
enquiry.

7.7 The Role of the SPOC

7.7.1 SPOCs will enable a more efficient regime to be developed as they will deal with CSPs
and become aware of the data which they hold.

Pa.n% @9



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

7.7.2 The SPOC plays an important role in the self-regulation and internal quality control of a
public authority in ensuring that the requirements of RIPA are adhered to in requesting and
obtaining communications data.

7.7.3 SPOCs reduce the demands upon CSPs from a great number of sources within a public
authority.

7.7.4 A SPOC will be able to advise the applicant officer of the nature and practicalities of
obtaining the data which is being requested.

7.7.5 The SPOC will advise the applicant on the content of the application request prior to
submission to the Authorising Officer and where necessary refuse the application at that point
for stated reasons.

7.7.6 The SPOC provides a safeguard for CSPs in ensuring that applications and notices are
genuine.

7.7.7 SPOCs will retain a list of contact points with relevant CSPs.

7.7.8 NAFN provide a SPOC service on behalf of Lancashire County Council, and access
details are maintained within the Trading Standards Service.

7.8 The Role of the Authorising Officers

7.8.1 This officer considers the necessity and proportionality of any application for
communications data (see earlier sections of this Guidance Document which provide further
information on these tests).

7.8.2 Consideration should also be given to the issue of collateral intrusion where other
persons may be affected by the granting of the notice or authorisation.

7.8.3 The Authorising Officer is required to be an officer at least at the following level within
the authority:

Director

Head of Service

Service Manager or equivalent

An Authorising Officer should have the necessary training and experience to be competent
to authorise activity. A record of Authorising Officers will be kept within the Trading
Standards Service.

7.8.4 Operational Independence: 3.12 of the Home Office Code on the Acquisition and
Disclosure of Communications Data requires that Designated persons must be independent
from operations and investigations when granting authorisations or giving notices related to
those operations. In circumstances where a public authority is not able to call upon the
services of a designated person who is independent from the investigation or operation eg
small specialist criminal investigation departments within public authorities which are not law
enforcement or intelligence agencies, the Senior Responsible Officer must inform the
Interception of Communications Commissioner of the circumstances and reasons (noting the
relevant designated persons who, in these circumstances, will not be independent). Since all
authorisers for Communications Data applications sit within the Trading Standards Service,
an exception to this requirement has been duly notified.

7.9 The Application Process

Pagg 70



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

7.9.1 The investigating officer should log in to NAFN and complete the relevant online form.

7.9.2 The application should then be submitted to the SPOC via NAFN who will give
consideration to the following:

* Whether the data being requested is capable of being provided by the CSP

* The reasons for the data being required in terms of the investigation being conducted
and the offence being investigated

» The grounds for necessity and proportionality being addressed

» Should the application be deemed satisfactory, a Notice or authorisation form will be
completed, this together with the application form will be submitted to the
Authorising Officer for authorisation or refusal.

Should the SPOC, however, consider there are grounds refusing the application, the form will
be returned to the officer via the network.

When a Notice or authorisation is approved by the Authorising Officer, the SPOC will only
send it to the relevant CSP following JP approval — see 8 below.

A Notice is only valid for a period of one month.

When, during the life of a Notice or authorisation, it is no longer necessary or proportionate or
is no longer required by the investigation it must be cancelled.

-7.10 Records and Errors

7.10.1 NAFN will retain records of all applications, refusals and authorisations passed to the
designated person. Copies of all Notices/authorisations and refusals from the Authorising
Officer will be retained.

7.10.2 This will allow a full audit trail for an application for obtaining communications data.

7.10.3 Documentation will be maintained by NAFN for inspection by the Interception
Commissioner and complaints falling within the remit of the Complaints Tribunal.

7.10.4 Where any errors have occurred in granting authorisations or notices (eg subscriber
details of an incorrect telephone number being obtained), a record must be kept and the matter
explained by means of a report to the Commissioner as soon as practicable. NAFN or the
authorising officers will notify the Trading Standards Head of Service of any errors as soon as
possible so a report can be sent to the Interception Commissioner.

8 Seeking JP approval for authorisations

8.1 In all cases involving authorisation of Directed Surveillance, use of CHIS, and access to
Communications Data, officers must seek prior approval from a JP before undertaking the
activity.

8.2 If the JP is satisfied that the statutory tests have been met and that the use of the

technique is necessary and proportionate he/she will issue an order approving the grant or
renewal for the use of the technique as described in the application.

PQ%N



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

8.3 The officer will make an appointment at the relevant magistrates' court and will provide the
JP with a copy of the original RIPA authorisation or notice and the supporting documents
setting out the case. This forms the basis of the application to the JP and should contain all
information that is relied upon. For communications data requests the RIPA authorisation
or notice may seek to acquire consequential acquisition of specific subscriber information. The
necessity and proportionality of acquiring consequential acquisition will be assessed by the
JP as part of his consideration.

8.4 The original RIPA authorisation or notice should be shown to the JP but will be retained
by the local authority so that it is available for inspection by the Commissioners’ offices and in
the event of any legal challenge or investigations by the Investigatory Powers Tribunal (IPT).
The court may wish to take a copy.

8.5 In addition, the local authority will provide the JP with a partially completed judicial
application/order form.

8.6 The order section of this form will be completed by the JP and will be the official record of
the JP’s decision. The local authority will need to obtain judicial approval for all initial RIPA
authorisations/applications and renewals and the local authority will need to retain a copy of
the judicial application/order form after it has been signed by the JP. There is no requirement
for the JP to consider either cancellations or internal reviews.

8.7 Further more detailed guidance and documentation should be accessed via the Home
Office Guidance available on the www.gov.uk website.

8.8 Where JP approval is granted, this should be forwarded to the Director of Governance,
Finance and Public Services for the Central record, and directed surveillance and CHIS
activity can commence. For Communications Data, the approval needs to be returned to
NAFN for the SPOC to contact the relevant CSP.

9 Lancashire County Council Auditing of Authorisations and Records

9.1 The Trading Standards Service must annually undertake a review of their activity within
the scope of RIPA and complete the annual RIPA return form which must be returned to the
Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services.

9.2. The Senior Responsible Officer reviews RIPA activity on a quarterly basis, and reports
activity under RIPA to the Cabinet on an annual basis.

9.3 Part of the Audit will focus on a review of Projected Service activity and that all relevant
staff have had sufficient training.

9.4 The following will also fall within the scope of the audit:

Applications

Authorisations

Risk assessments

Reviews and Renewals

Cancellations

Records of Product of Directed Surveillance
Source Records

Staff Awareness

9.5 The audit will seek to establish compliance of the authorisations/renewals/cancellations
and records with the following:

P_ag8 72


http://www.gov.uk/

Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

RIPA

Statutory Instruments made under RIPA

The Code of Practice on Covert Surveillance

The Code of Practice on Covert Human Intelligence Sources

The Code of Practice on Accessing Communications Data
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-codes

Lancashire County Council RIPA corporate policy and work instructions
Guidance material issued by the OSC and IOCCO.

9.6 Non-conformities identified as a result of the audit will be reported to the relevant Service
Management Team. Action taken by local management should be reported back to the Audit
team.

9.7 The cross Council audit report will be held within the Central Record.

9.8 The processing of prosecution reports by a service should have regard to compliance with
RIPA where investigations include covert surveillance and/or the use of a CHIS and/or
obtaining communications data.

10 Inspections by the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner (OSC) and the
Interception of Communications Commissioner (I0CCO)

10.1 The Codes of Practice include a section dealing with inspection by the Commissioners.
They impose a requirement to comply with requests and to disclose or provide information
requested by the Commissioner to allow him to carry out his functions.

10.2 During inspection visits, the codes require certain authorisations to be drawn to the
Inspector’s attention. These being where the Authorising Officer has authorised an activity he
is directly involved in and those where confidential material is sought or obtained.

10.3 A further inspection regime has been established by RIPA in relation to accessing
communications data. This is undertaken by the Interception of Communications
Commissioner. These inspections take place through NAFN, with queries raised individually
with local authorities where necessary. Similar recourse to the Tribunal exists for complaints
against the activities of the authority.

11 Complaints

11.1 An independent complaints procedure is provided by the legislation. Complaints can be
made to:

The Investigatory Powers Tribunal

PO Box 33220

London

SW1H 92Q

Tel: 0207 035 3711

http://www.ipt-uk.com/
12 Management Records

12.1 The management files, authorisations/renewals/cancellations and Source Records must
be kept in a secure place with restricted access. These files will provide the basis of the audits
and be liable for inspection by the Office of the Surveillance Commissioners. Originals of the
authorisations (including refusals), reviews, renewals and cancellations, must also be
provided to the Central Record. This is managed by the Director of Governance,

Pa_n%e] 73


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-codes

Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

Finance and Public Services. Officers forwarding confidential material to the Central Record
must ensure that it is forwarded by a secure method.

12.2 Security of the Central Record

The Central Record is to be held in a suitable locked cabinet, or secure electronic folder.

Pags 74



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

Version Control

Named Owner:

lan Young: Director of Governance, Finance and Public
Services

Version Number: | 6.00

Date Of Creation: | May 2017

Last Review:

Next Scheduled November 2017

Review:

Overview of Following OSC Inspection in February 2017
Amendments to Takes account of possibility of use of RIPA for other
this Version: investigations outside Trading Standards, and

amends an error in the surveillance of telephone
conversations.

Pagg 15




Page 76



Appendix 'C’

Shadow RIPA Surveillance Policy

i
Lancasg%g

County - ”
! Cebod
www.lancashire.gov.uk Council (?/g\{)



Shadow RIPA surveillance Polic

General Statement of Policy

¢ This policy document relates to use by Lancashire County Council officers
of directed surveillance, and covert human intelligence sources not
undertaken in relation to the prevention and detection of crime or which fall
outside the RIPA regime due to offence penalties not meeting the thresholds
laid down for the RIPA regime to apply.

¢ The County Council is committed to upholding human rights

e As a public body and responsible employer, the County Council wants to
conform to the spirit of the requirements of the Regulation of Investigatory
Powers Act 2000 and associated regulations and codes of practice relating
to the use of covert surveillance, the use of covert human intelligence
sources,

e County Council officers will only undertake surveillance work outwith the

RIPA regime when it is both necessary and proportionate to the ends it seeks
to achieve.

Pa.gf.78



Shadow RIPA surveillance Polic

CONTENTS

Introduction

=Y

. Purpose

Scope
Responsibilities
References

Procedure — Directed Surveillance in relation to Lancashire County
Council employees

Procedure — Directed Surveillance in relation to Lancashire County
Council residents

Procedure — Covert Human Intelligence Source
Monitoring and Retaining Applications

Handling Product from Surveillance Activities

Pagg 79



Shadow RIPA surveillance Polic

Introduction

The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) does not grant powers to
carry out surveillance. It simply provides a framework that allows the Council to
authorise and supervise surveillance in a manner that ensures compliance with the
Human Rights Act 1998. Equally, RIPA does not prevent surveillance from being
carried out or require that surveillance may only be carried out under RIPA. Where a
public authority carries out surveillance in accordance with RIPA this provides
protection against a claim of infringement of an individual's human right to a private
and family life, his home and his correspondence.

RIPA can however only be used by a local authority for the purposes of preventing
and detecting crime.

There will be times when it will be necessary and proportionate to carry out covert
Directed Surveillance or use a CHIS other than by using RIPA either because the
investigation is not carried out for the purposes of preventing or detecting crime, or
because, in the case of directed surveillance, the penalty for the offences under
investigation is below the threshold which would enable use of a RIPA authorisation.
This could include surveillance for the purposes of monitoring employees who may be
under investigation. It could also include matters where the authority is involved in
litigation and may wish to carry out surveillance to verify whether or not information
provided is true or false — for example in child protection matters where there are
questions raised as to residency of individuals who may pose a threat to a child .

Indeed, there may be circumstances in which the use of Directed Surveillance or
employment of a CHIS is the only effective means of efficiently obtaining significant
information to take an investigation forward.

Provided the established principles of necessity, proportionality and collateral intrusion
are considered, the Authority will be in a strong position to meet any challenge in
respect of infringement of human rights.

Each application for covert surveillance authorisation will be assessed on a case by
case basis to determine whether the application meets the criteria for the formal RIPA
authorisation procedure to be followed. In all other cases the shadow RIPA regime will

apply.

Pa.gF.SO



Shadow RIPA surveillance Polic

1. Purpose of This Policy

To establish guidance within Lancashire County Council services for seeking approval
for the conduct by officers of directed surveillance, and the use of covert human
intelligence sources (CHIS) which is not undertaken for the prevention or
detection of crime or where the penalty for the offence under investigation falls
below the threshold for Directed Surveillance to be approved under the RIPA
regime.

If the surveillance is undertaken for purposes related to the prevention and
detection of crime, reference must be made to the Corporate Policy and
Guidance on the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000.

This policy is Intended to cover surveillance carried out in such situations as
investigations into serious allegations regarding the conduct of employees,
observations on private residences to determine the veracity of information provided
to the County Council in connection with the exercise of its functions, use of sources
to provide information in person or on the internet or to provide officers with information
in circumstances which would be covered by relevant codes of practice if the activity
was undertaken for the prevention and detection of crime.

2. Scope

2.1 Surveillance which is covert but not intrusive and undertaken for the purposes of
a specific investigation or operation, in such a manner as is likely to result in the
obtaining of private information about a person (whether or not one specifically
identified for the purposes of the investigation or operation) and otherwise than by way
of an immediate response to events or circumstances, the nature of which is such that
it would not be reasonable practicable for an authorisation under the Act to be sought
for the carrying out of the surveillance. Private information in relation to a person
includes any information relating to his private or family life. Note that this can
include information about family, professional and business relationships.

2.2 The use of Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS). A CHIS is a person who
establishes or maintains a personal or other relationship with another person for the
covert purpose of:

(a) Using such a relationship to obtain information or to provide access to
information to another person, or

(b) Disclosing information obtained by the use of such a relationship or as a
consequence of such a relationship.

In addition, a person who covertly provides information to a public authority is
potentially A CHIS if he has obtained that information in the course of or as a
consequence of the existence of a personal or other relationship, whether or not the
relationship has been established or maintained for that purpose. A repeat informant,
if and when it becomes apparent that he obtains his information in that way, is a CHIS
to whom a duty of care is owed, if the information is acted upon. Legal advice should
be taken before acting on the information provided by informants.

Pagg 81



Shadow RIPA surveillance Polic

3. Responsibilities
Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services
Director of Legal and Democratic Services — Authorising Officer
Heads of Service
Service Managers

4. References
Human Rights Act 1998
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
Protection of Freedoms Act 2012
Codes of Practice on Covert Surveillance and CHIS
Corporate Guidance

5. Procedure — Directed Surveillance in relation to Lancashire County
Council employees

If during the course of any investigation or enquiry into an Lancashire County Council
employee, the investigating officer believes it necessary to carry out directed
surveillance on any person involved in the investigation he shall consider the
possibility of obtaining any private information about that person and if there is such a
possibility, authorisation on the relevant form should be sought by completing and
forwarding the form E1 -2016 to the Director of Legal and Democratic Services.

Those carrying out the covert surveillance should inform the authorising officer if the
operation/investigation unexpectedly interferes with the privacy of individuals who are
not the original subjects of the investigation or covered by the authorisation in some
other way. This is known as collateral intrusion and steps should be taken to minimise
the risks of the surveillance affecting other individuals who are not targets of the
investigation, including considering the appropriateness of recording and retention of
evidence regarding those individuals.

Before giving the authorisation the authorising officer will at first satisfy him/herself that
the authorisation is necessary on particular grounds and that the surveillance is
proportionate to what it seeks to achieve. This could include for example serious
disciplinary investigations.

Assessing proportionality includes the following:

* balancing the size and scope of the proposed activity against the gravity and extent
of the perceived conduct;

+ explaining how and why the methods to be adopted will cause the least possible
intrusion on the subject and others

» Considering whether the surveillance activity is an appropriate response and a
reasonable way, having considered all reasonable alternatives of obtaining the
necessary result

» evidencing, as far as reasonably practicable, what other methods had been
considered and why they were not implemented

If other overt methods of obtaining the information can be tried, then these methods
should be attempted — covert surveillance should be the last resort.

Pa.%e.82



Shadow RIPA surveillance Polic

Where there is a possibility that confidential material may come into the possession of
the Service special safeguards should be observed. In such circumstances the
matter should be referred to the Chief Executive immediately and legal advice
sought. (If the Chief Executive is not available, the matter should be referred to
a Chief Officer, it is not appropriate for the matter to be delegated). Confidential
material is more closely defined in the Home Office code of practice but relates to
matters subject to legal privilege; confidential personal information; or confidential
journalistic material. Such material should not be retained or copied unless necessary
for a specific purpose, should not be disseminated except for a specific purpose and
if retained or disseminated this should be done with a clear warning of its confidential
nature. Reasonable steps should be taken to ensure that there is no possibility of its
content being known to any person whose possession of it might prejudice any
criminal or civil proceedings related to the information. Confidential material should
be destroyed as soon as it is no longer necessary to retain it for a specified
purpose.

6. Procedure - Directed Surveillance on Lancashire County Council
Residents

The Council receives complaints and information on occasions in relation to LCC
residents who are alleged to be involved in activities which may infringe child
protection guidelines or other County Council guidelines. Covert surveillance can only
be authorised in relation to Lancashire County Council residents by the Director of
Legal and Democratic Services. The applicant should outline in the application why
the activity is considered to be necessary and proportionate, as in paragraph 5 above.

7. Procedure — Covert Human Intelligence Sources

The Council receives complaints/information routinely from the public regarding the
alleged activities of individuals. The actions of these complainants do not generally fall
within the definition of a covert source since they are a one off provision of information.
However, a person may become a covert source if an ongoing relationship with the
Council develops and activities described in above are carried out. The use of CHIS
could also cover circumstances where an employee of LCC establishes a relationship
in order to gain information about a particular situation.

Where the nature of the complaint relates to a matter where an officer requests the
complainant to obtain further information covertly via a relationship with another
individual, this activity is likely to fall within CHIS. A shadow authorisation will therefore
be required before seeking such information. By following the authorisation
procedures, the Council will also be in a position to seek to safeguard the identity of
the source in any subsequent legal proceedings. Further guidance should be
sought from the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services or the
Director of Legal and Democratic Services on this issue to ensure that the
identities of any such individuals are safeguarded in the event of any legal
proceedings, tribunals or disciplinary hearings.

NB Juvenile surveillance CHIS — normally no one under 18 years or any vulnerable
individual should be considered as a CHIS.

Page 83



Shadow RIPA surveillance Polic

8. Monitoring and Retaining Applications

The Local Authority must maintain a central record of all Authorisations. This is the
responsibility of Information Governance. These records will be confidential and
should be retained for a period of at least five years from the ending of the
authorisation. Where it is believed that the records could be relevant to pending or
future criminal proceedings, they should be retained for a suitable further period,
commensurate to any subsequent review.

Authorisations last for a period of three months and may be renewed more than once,
if necessary, by completion of the relevant document. The renewal should be
kept/recorded as part of the "authorisation record".

Regular reviews of authorisations should be undertaken to assess the need for the
surveillance to continue. The results of a review should be recorded on the relevant
form (E2 - 2016). Generally, unless circumstances dictate otherwise, reviews will be
carried out at monthly to six weekly intervals.

Once surveillance activities have ceased, the officer who made the application must
submit an application for cancellation to the Authorising officer. The cancellation
application should be submitted immediately the activities are no longer required. The
authorising officer who granted an authorisation must cancel it if satisfied that the
action authorised by it is no longer necessary.

In summary, the practical procedure for obtaining an Authorisation is as follows;

i) A completed application should be submitted to the Director of Legal and
Democratic Services using form E1-2016. The authorising officer will
consider the necessity and proportionality of the application and the
likelihood of any collateral intrusion.

ii) A review should take place at monthly to six weekly intervals. (Form E2 —
2016)

iii) At the end of the surveillance operation, the investigating officer will
submit a cancellation form (E3-2016) to the authorising officer. A copy of
the cancellation form will be given to the investigating officer. All forms will
be provided to the Trading Standards Manager (Fair Trading/Legal) for
retention in the central record.

iv) The investigating officer may seek a renewal of the authorisation if
necessary (Form E4 — 2016).

V) Copy documents will be retained on the investigation file.

9. Handling Product from Surveillance Activities

Product from Covert Surveillance activities may consist of:

- Photographs

Pa.gge.84



Shadow RIPA surveillance Polic

- Video film

- Voice recordings
- Surveillance log
- Officer’s notes

The above may be required as evidence in current or future proceedings. Officers must have
regard to the provisions of the Data Protection Act 1998 in relation to this material.
Product obtained via an authorisation may be used by the authority in other
investigations.

Officers should record the results of any surveillance. When product is disposed of, a note
should be made on the file.

The use of any product obtained by authorised surveillance activities outside of the Public
Authority or the Courts should only be authorised in the most exceptional
circumstances. This requirement seeks to prevent product from being used for
grounds other than that for which it was obtained. Joint operations should make
reference to the potential use of evidence by each agency.

Officers may receive requests from other agencies for product, which may include
photographs of suspects, descriptions, and vehicle details. Where this information
has been obtained under an authorisation, further guidance should be sought from the
Authorising Officer, since disclosure may not be permitted under the provisions of the
Code of Practice.

Pag& 85



Shadow RIPA surveillance Polic

Version Control

Named Owner: Laura Sales: Director — Legal and Democratic Services

Version Number: 2.00

Date Of Creation: | November 2016
Last Review: June 2017

Next Scheduled November 2017
Review:
Overview of
Amendments to
this Version:

quﬁ 86



ltem 7

Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 15 June 2017

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Appointments to Outside Bodies 2017/18
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:
Chris Mather, Tel: 01772 533559, Democratic Services Manager,
chris.mather@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The Cabinet approves the appointment of County Council representatives to various
outside bodies on an annual basis.

Attached at Appendix 'A' is a comprehensive schedule of the various outside bodies
to which the County Council appoints representatives, with representatives
identified, following consultation with the Deputy Leader of the County Council.

Recommendation

Cabinet is asked to consider and approve the representation and appointments
listed in Appendix 'A' for outside bodies for 2017/18 and request the Political Group
Secretaries to co-ordinate the nomination of members to fill any vacancies and any
in-year changes; and in consultation with Democratic Services and the Deputy
Leader of the County Council, notify the Director of Governance, Finance and Public
Services.

Background and Advice

Appointments to outside bodies play an important part in fulfiling the County
Council's statutory responsibilities, meeting its corporate and strategic objectives and
in building positive relationships with the communities it serves. The list of outside
bodies that County Council representatives are appointed to is monitored and
reviewed by Democratic Services. The list is presented to Cabinet for approval on
an annual basis.

It is recommended that Cabinet considers and approves the appointments listed in
Appendix 'A' for 2017/18. It is also recommended that the Political Group Secretaries
be authorised to co-ordinate the nomination of members to fill any vacancies and

Lancashire
County ‘6“-:%-:‘-‘3.
Page 87 Council (&g{)




any in-year changes; and in consultation with Democratic Services and the Deputy
Leader of the County Council, notify the Director of Governance, Finance and Public
Services.

Consultations

The suggested representation and appointments have been prepared in consultation
with the Deputy Leader of the County Council.

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

No significant risks have been identified.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
N/A

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 88



Appendix ‘A’

Outside Body Representative Political Party
Adoption & Permanence Panels (North, Central & East) CC J Marsh Conservative
Ageing Well Forum (West Lancs Ageing Well Partnership Board) CC J Burrows Conservative
CC J Rear Conservative
Alt Crossens Advisory Group CC M Barron Conservative
CC E Pope Conservative
Arnside/Silverdale AONB Executive Committee CC P Williamson Conservative
Arthur Edmonson Quinn Bequest CC C Towneley Conservative
Vacancy Labour
Vacancy Liberal Democrats
Blackpool Airport Consultative Committee CC K Iddon Conservative
Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust CC V Taylor Conservative
Burnley Action Partnership - Executive CC C Towneley Conservative
Burton and Rigby Educational Foundation CC S Charles Conservative
Central Lancashire Development Framework Joint Advisory Committee CC M Green Conservative
CC J Marsh Conservative
CC B Yates Conservative
Central Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Partnership CC J Rear Conservative
Children's Partnership Board - Burnley, Pendle CC C Wakeford Conservative
CC J Purcell Conservative
Children's Partnership Board - Chorley, South Ribble, West Lancashire CC M Perks Conservative
CC J Rear Conservative
Children's Partnership Board - Fylde, Wyre and Lancaster CC A Kay Conservative
CC E Nash Conservative
Children's Partnership Board - Preston CC G Wilkins Conservative
Children's Partnership Board - Rossendale, Hyndburn & Ribble Valley CC A Cheetham Conservative
Council for Voluntary Services (CVS) - Blackpool, Wyre & Fylde CC S Clarke Conservative
Council for Voluntary Services (CVS) - Burnley, Pendle & Rossendale CC J Cooney Conservative
Council for Voluntary Services (CVS) - Hyndburn and Ribble Valley CC | Brown Conservative
CVS - Lancaster (Lancaster District Community & Voluntary Solutions) CC C Edwards Conservative
Council for Voluntary Services (CVS) - West Lancashire CC J Burrows Conservative
District Community Safety Partnership - Chorley and South Ribble CC G Gooch Conservative
CC A Snowden Conservative
District Community Safety Partnership - Fylde CC P Rigby Conservative
District Community Safety Partnership - Hyndburn CC P Biritcliffe Conservative
District Community Safety Partnership - Lancaster CC P Williamson Conservative
District Community Safety Partnership - Pendle CC C Wakeford Conservative
District Community Safety Partnership - Preston CC G Driver Conservative
District Community Safety Partnership - Ribble Valley CC D Smith Conservative
District Community Safety Partnership - West Lancashire CC D O'Toole Conservative
District Community Safety Partnership - Wyre CC S Clarke Conservative

Page 89




Appendix ‘A’

Outside Body Representative Political Party
East Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Partnership CC J Purcell Conservative
East Lancashire into Employment CC J Cooney Conservative
CC P Steen Conservative
Educational Foundation of John Farrington Rev Michael Dolan
Mrs Jean Portley
Farington Community Fund Panel CC M Green Conservative
Forest of Bowland Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Joint Advisory Committee |CC A Atkinson Conservative
CC S Turner Conservative
CC S Charles Conservative
Fostering Panels (North, Central and East) CC A Cheetham Conservative
CC E Nash Conservative
Friends of Lancashire Archives CC D Smith Conservative
Fylde and Wyre Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Partnership CC E Nash Conservative
Herbert Norcross Scholarship Fund CC A Cheetham Conservative
Vacancy Labour
Heritage Trust for the North West CC T Ashton Conservative
CC J Purcell Conservative
Heysham Power Stations Local Community Liaison Council CC C Edwards Conservative
CC A Gardiner Conservative

Hornbies Newton Charity

(officer rep)

James Bond/Henry Welch Trust CC C Edwards Conservative
Joint Advisory Committee for Strategic Planning CC G Driver Conservative
CC M Green Conservative
CC A Vincent Conservative
CC B Yates Conservative
CC J Shedwick Conservative
Vacancy Labour
Vacancy Labour
Vacancy Labour
King Edward VIl Lancashire Cotton Growing Endowment CC G Driver Conservative
CC A Atkinson Conservative
CC M Green Conservative
Lancashire Adult Learning Quality and Curriculum Committee CC G Gooch Conservative
Lancashire Local Access Forum CC | Brown Conservative
CC C Towneley Conservative
Lancashire Playing Fields Association CC M Perks Conservative
Lancashire SACRE - Quality and Standards Sub-group CC A Cheetham Conservative
CC P Buckley Conservative
Vacancy Labour
Vacancy Labour
Lancashire Schools Forum CC A Cheetham Conservative
CC D Foxcroft Conservative
Vacancy Conservative
CC S Charles (observer)
Lancashire Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) CC A Cheetham Conservative
CC P Buckley Conservative
Vacancy Labour
Vacancy Labour

Page 90




Appendix ‘A’

Outside Body Representative Political Party
Francis Williams
Lancashire Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Council of Governors CC E Pope Conservative
Lancashire Waste Partnership CC A Atkinson Conservative
CC J Eaton Conservative
CC C Edwards Conservative
Lancaster District Communities Together CC V Taylor Conservative
Councillor E Blamire
Lancaster Ripley CE Educational Trust F Kershaw
Lancaster University Court CC S Charles (ex-officio)  |Conservative
CC T Jones Conservative
CC A Snowden Conservative
CC C Wakeford Conservative
CC P Williamson Conservative
Liverpool Airport Consultative Committee CC M Green Conservative
Local Authority Elected member: Older People's Champions Network North West of
England CC J Burrows Conservative
Local Government Information Unit CC D Foxcroft Conservative
Morecambe Bay Partnership CC P Williamson Conservative
Museums Advisory Forum CC P Buckley Conservative
CC A Gardiner Conservative
National AONB Association CC A Atkinson Conservative
North Lancashire Health & Wellbeing Partnership CC V Taylor Conservative
North West Employers Organisation CC G Driver Conservative
North West of England & Isle of Man Reserve Forces & Cadets Association CC A Clempson Conservative
North West Regional Flood & Coastal Committee CC S Clarke Conservative
One West Lancashire CC D O'Toole Conservative
Ormskirk School Trust CC D O'Toole Conservative
CC E Pope Conservative
Mrs Marilyn May Westley
Parking and Traffic Regulations Outside London (PATROL) Adjudication Service
Joint Committee CC K Iddon Conservative
Preston Strategic Partnership (PSP) Conference CC G Wilkins Conservative
Public Rights of Way and Access Forum CC J Eaton Conservative
CC | Brown Conservative
CC C Towneley Conservative
CC A Snowden Conservative
CC S Clarke Conservative
Public Transport Consortium of Non-Metropolitan Authorities CC K Iddon Conservative
Rivington Heritage Trust CC M Perks Conservative
Roper Educational Foundation, Preston Vacancy Labour
SACRE - Agreed Syllabus Conference Vacancy Labour
Sir CC Grundy Charity for the Poor Vacancy Labour
Skelmersdale Town Centre Regeneration Project CC E Pope Conservative

Page 91




Appendix ‘A’

Outside Body Representative Political Party
South Ribble Partnership Sub Group CC M Green Conservative
South Ribble Partnership CC M Green Conservative
Springfield Fuel Ltd - Springfields Site Stakeholder Group CC G Wilkins Conservative
CC P Rigby Conservative
Vacancy Labour
Stocks Massey Bequest CC C Towneley Conservative
Vacancy Labour
Vacancy UKIP
The Pendle Hill Landscape Partnership Board CC C Wakeford Conservative
The University of Manchester General Assembly CC A Snowden Conservative
Thornton Cleveleys Baines Endowed VC Primary School (Trust) CC J Shedwick Conservative
Tobacco Free Lancashire Alliance CC V Taylor Conservative
University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust CC V Taylor Conservative
West Coast Rail 250 - General Council CC G Gooch Conservative
West Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Partnership CC E Pope Conservative
Whalley Education Foundation Councillor T Hill
Winckley Square Community Interest Company CC M Green Conservative
Yorkshire Dales National Park Authority CC C Towneley Conservative

Page 92




ltem 8

Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 15 June 2017

Report of the Head of Fostering, Adoption, Residential & YOT

| Part |

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Residential Strategy
(Appendices 'A' and 'B' refer)

Contact for further information:

Barbara Bath, (01772) 535974, Head of Fostering, Adoption, Residential & YOT,
Directorate for Children's Services

barbara.bath@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

This Children Looked After (CLA) Residential Strategy, set out at Appendix B, seeks
to build on and drive forward the actions relating to residential care identified in
Lancashire's CLA Sufficiency and Commissioning Effective Placements Strategy
(2014-2017). Specifically it seeks to:

- Reduce numbers of CLA in residential placements

- Ensure that appropriate placements are available to best meet the needs of
our CLA

- Ensure that best use is made of available resources and best value for money
is achieved

This strategy is one part of a wider demand management strategy, which has three
elements: Prevention; Purposeful Practice; and Permanence.

This is deemed to be a Key Decision and the provisions of Standing Order No. 25
have been complied with.

Recommendation

The Cabinet is asked to note and agree the strategy as set out at Appendix B.

Background and Advice

Lancashire County Council's (LCC) current children's home provision is based on a
previous strategy of the Local Authority providing accommodation for mainstream

Lancashire
County ‘6‘%’?-
Page 93 Council Eg?


mailto:barbara.bath@lancashire.gov.uk

children and young people (in 10 large six bed homes) and agency providers
accommodating young people with more complex needs.

Significant changes have resulted in the need to rethink this strategy, including:

- The new Ofsted children's home inspection regime and providers becoming more
risk averse and reluctant to take very complex cases, in order to protect Ofsted
ratings;

- Increased numbers of CLA, a national shortage of foster carers and increased use
of local provision by other Local Authorities resulting in providers being able to
'cherry pick' referrals;

- Spiralling CLA placement costs, particularly in relation to agency children's home
placements;

- Significant concerns raised by Ofsted through the Annual Conversation re. LCC's
residential provision.

The proposed strategy is based around addressing these issues, and is attached at
Appendix B.

There will be an initial cost implication to establishing the Adolescent Support Unit
(ASU), Crisis Unit and Extended Outreach. However it is anticipated that there will be
long term cost savings following the implementation of the strategy.

Consultations

None

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

There will be an initial cost implication to establishing the Adolescent Support Unit
(ASU), Crisis Unit and Extended Outreach. However it is anticipated that there will be
long term cost savings following the implementation of the strategy.

Risk management

Financial Implications — Outreach Services

The existing Outreach Team of seven staff has a provisional budget for 2017/18 of
£0.352m. The units will take time to establish and as such the proposals outlined in
this report are expected to cost an additional £0.266m in 2017/18 and £0.811m in

2018/19 and beyond, as outlined in the table below. Costs include staff, non-staff and
one off set up costs.

Page 94



Manage-
Adolescent ment and
Support Extended Crisis Business
Unit Outreach Unit Support Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Staff Costs 0.358 0.345 0.232 0.076 1.011
Non-Staff Costs 0.065 0.025 0.059 0.003 0.152
Total 0.423 0.370 0.291 0.079 1.163
Less Current Budget Provision -0.352
Additional Cost 0.811
Operational 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Start Date £m £m £m
Initial Set Up Costs - ASU and Crisis Unit N/A 0.086 0.000 0.000
Adolescent Support Unit Dec-17 0.141 0.423 0.423
Extended Outreach Service Dec-17 0.013 0.017 0.017
Crisis Unit Apr-18 0.000 0.292 0.292
Management and Business Support Dec-17 0.026 0.079 0.079
Total 0.266 0.811 0.811

Based on other models of best practice it is anticipated that the ASU will support a
minimum of 60 adolescents per annum at an average support cost per adolescent of
£7,050 per annum whilst the extended outreach team will support 168 CYP per annum
at an average cost of £2,202 per CYP per annum.

It is anticipated that the ASU and Outreach Service will impact on Children's Social
Care spend in a number of ways. The service will generate savings by reducing
numbers coming into care and the cost associated with this, avoiding/de-escalating
need and preventing placement breakdown. The crisis unit is not expected to
generate cashable savings.

Savings from the ASU and Outreach Service are expected to be £0.111m in 2017/18,
£2.405m in 2018/19 and £3.559m in 2019/20 and beyond and will be generated from
the following as outlined in the table below.

e Preventing CYP coming into care and associated placement costs. Based on a
60% success rate it is anticipated that the ASU will prevent 36 CYP coming into
care per annum. This would represent a reduction of 25% of Section 20
(voluntary) adolescents coming into care per annum, based on the figure for
2015/16 of 140.

e Preventing breakdown of fostering placements.

e Reducing time in care for existing looked after CYP. The service will support the
return home of 8 looked after CYP based on reunifying 1 in 6.5 of the current
cohort (as at February 2017) of 54 CYP accommodated under Section 20 with
external providers.

Whilst reducing numbers in care will reduce social work caseload (all other things

being equal), at this point it is difficult to estimate the impact of this. The anticipated
savings below represent a reduction in placement costs.

Page 95



2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Nature of Saving £m £m £m
36 Adolescents Prevented from Cost Prevented 0.111 2.144 3.185
Coming into Care
1 In-house Foster Placement
Breakdown Avoided Cost Prevented 0.000 0.121 0.121
8 CYP Returned Home Saving 0.000 0.140 0.253
Anticipated Costs
Prevented/Savings 0.111 2.405 3.559

Whilst it is anticipated that the Outreach Service will prioritise targeting Section 20
CYP in agency residential provision, the figures above are based on a weighted
average ('blended') cost (£1,438 per week) of different placement types and the

average duration of Section 20 placements (62 weeks).

The table below shows the anticipated net cost/savings resulting from this proposal.

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
£m £m £m
Additional Funding Required 0.266 0.811 0.811
Anticipated Savings 0.111 2.405 3.559
Total 0.155 -1.594 -2.748

Financial Implications — In-house Residential Services

Reshaping the in-house residential service as detailed in Appendix B will maximise
use of in-house provision as opposed to external residential provision and therefore
improve the cost effectiveness of provision.

Additional costs are expected to be minimal and will be subject to ongoing review.

Savings from increased utilisation of in-house provision are expected to be £0.041m
in 2017/18, £0.747m in 2018/19 and £0.995m in 2019/20 and beyond.

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Nature of Saving £m £m £m
:;wcre_a_sed Utilisation of In-house Saving 0.041 0.747 0.995
rovision
Anticipated Costs
Prevented/Savings 0.041 0.747 0.995

There are a number of risks associated with not implementing the strategy. These
include rising numbers of children becoming looked after and costs associated with
this, lack of sufficient accommodation to meet the needs of Lancashire's Children
Looked After, reputational risk of negative Ofsted judgements and lack of ability to
place some of the most complex and vulnerable Young People in Lancashire.

Legal — Local authorities are under a legal duty to secure where reasonably
practicable sufficient accommodation for children looked after in their area (the
"Sufficiency Duty"). The Sufficiency Duty encompasses a number of legal obligations
set out in the Children Act 1989 including the duty to provide a range of services, to
provide accommodation to children who cannot reside with their families and to ensure

Page 96



that children are placed in the most appropriate accommodation commensurate with
their needs. In order to meet these duties a local authority must have sufficient
accommodation in its area in order to provide suitable placements. This not only
requires a range of providers but also access to different types of accommodation to
meet the different needs to children at any given time. Government guidance issued
in 2010 specifically states that local authorities should have in place a strategy for
reducing constraints over time which may include building their own capacity. The
guidance also specifically referenced short term and emergency accommodation and
points to a need for emergency stand by accommodation used with a view to avoiding
longer term care.

At present the County Council is at risk of not meeting the Sufficiency Duty. The
proposal in the report if approved would extend the range and type of accommodation

available to the County Council in line with the Children Act 1989 and the 2010
guidance.

Property Asset Management — The strategy relies on the use of previously vacated
Local Authority properties, one of which was previously identified for market release.
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

None

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 97



Page 98



Appendix A

Business Case for the Establishment of an Adolescent Support Unit,
Extended Outreach Service and the Development of Emergency/
Crisis Provision

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview of Proposals

Lancashire has experienced a significant increase in the numbers of Children Looked
After (CLA) and in Children's Social Care agency placements spend since October
2015. Without action to address this, numbers of CLA and placement spend are
predicted to continue to rise.

During 2015/16, 38% (254) of new entrants into care were aged 10-17 years. The
majority (55%) of these cases (140) were accommodated under Section 20 of the
Children's Act 1989 (where a child has come into care on a 'voluntary' basis and not as
part of a court order), predominately due to family dysfunction, family stress and socially
unacceptable behaviour.

As of 28t February 2017, there were 80 CLA aged 11-16 accommodated under Section
20, of these 54 were placed in agency provision costing £0.437m per month.’

Better supporting these families to stay together and reunifying those CLA able to be
returned home, where it is safe and in the child's best interests to do so, is key if we are
to successfully reduce overall numbers of CLA and escalating placement spend. The
findings from Newton Europe's Review of Children's Services in Lancashire found that 1
in 4 cases of children coming into care under Section 20 could have been prevented
and 1in 13 Section 20 CLA could have been returned home with the right support.

The current outreach offer (which includes working with families on the edge of care and
seeking to reunify young people in care back with their families) is highly regarded by
Children's Social Care and demonstrates good evidence of impact. However, the level
of support currently available is not felt to be sufficient for the numbers of CYP on the
edge of care and numbers needing to be reunified back home.

Prevention Element of the Proposal

In order to support a 25% reduction in the number of CYP aged 10-17 coming into care
through a Section 20 agreement, it is proposed that an Adolescent Support Unit (ASU)
is established in addition to the continued delivery of the current outreach support
offered. The ASU will be developed in line with the model in Blackburn with Darwen
which delivers overnight respite and intensive outreach support to a minimum of 60
CYP per annum?2. This provision will increase the amount of outreach provided to CYP
and families from 117 (in 2015/16) to 177.

Establishing an ASU is a model that is being developed by a growing number of
authorities with a strong evidence base that shows the positive outcomes for those
families accessing this type of provision. Blackburn with Darwen, for example,
established its ASU in late 2006 and saw a reduction in teenagers entering care from 47

111-16 year olds identified as the cohort of S20 CYP most likely to be able to be supported to return home successfully
2 Likely that the ASU will work with up to 80 CYP per annum (based on evidence from other areas) thus further
increasing the numbers of CYP able to be prevented from coming into care.

Page 99



in 2008 to 18 in 2013/14. In March 2016, the local authority had a relative low proportion
of the CLA population in residential care (8%), a slower rate of 10-15 year olds entering
care and saw an overall reduction in the CLA population between March 2012 — 2016 of
2.7% compared to an increase of 25.7% experienced in Lancashire3.

Analysis of Blackburn with Darwen's ASU by iIMPOWER evidenced a success rate of
preventing young people coming into care of between 74-88% following intervention.
Savings attributed to this model were £1.2m (2013/14) or £0.848m after running costs,
providing a Return of Investment (ROI) of 2.1. Success rates assumed in business
cases for ASUs from other areas range from 25% to 75%*. The success rate for
Lancashire's proposed ASU has been calculated as a conservative 60%.

Reunification Element of the Proposal

In order to achieve the target of reunifying at least 1 in 13 of Section 20 CLA back home,
it is proposed that the current Outreach Service is increased by 3, from 7 to 10 staff. The
additional 3 staff will focus on supporting Section 20 CYP based in external placements
(currently a cohort of 54 CYP). Each staff member will hold a caseload of 17 CYP (in
line with current outreach caseloads), enabling 51 CYP to be supported.

Whilst Newton Europe estimated that 1 in 13 of the whole Section 20 CLA could be
reunified, it is felt that targeting support to CYP most likely to successfully return home
(those aged 11-16 years of age and in care for less than 26 weeks) could increase the
success rate to 1 in 6.5, therefore 8 CLA reunified with families each year. In the period
to 315t March 2020, total cumulative savings of £0.393m are estimated.

It has been calculated that not increasing the current outreach team and simply
redirecting 3 existing outreach staff from prevention to reunification work would be
counterproductive as it would result in an increase of CYP coming into care, estimated
to be c.22 CYP (based on success rate achieved by current outreach service and
reduction in 51 CYP able to be supported to prevent coming into care).

Crisis Element of the Proposal
In addition to the above, it is proposed that the Outreach Team is increased by a further
5 FTE staff to operate a 2 bed unit to enable the delivery of short term emergency
placements for CYP in crisis to support:
a) increased time to plan and source the most appropriate, best value placements
for our very complex CLA;
b) the provision of time out/ respite for young people in crisis within an existing
placement to allow de-escalation and prevent placement breakdown.

Additional Management and Business Support Element of the Proposal
In order to ensure strong oversight and smooth running of the expanded Outreach
Service, it is proposed that additional management (1 x G11) and business support (1 x

3 According to National CLA data release, as of 31/3/12 Blackburn with Darwen had a CLA population of 360,
compared to 350 as of 31/3/16, a decrease of 10 CLA. In comparison, Lancashire had a CLA population of 1325 as of
31/3/12, compared to 1665 as of 31/3/16, an increase of 340 CLA.

4 Bury's ASU business case calculated on 25% success rate. County Durham calculated a 45% success rate. Oldham
success rate estimated at 75%.

Executive Summary - Business Case for Adolescent Support Unit, Outreach Service and Emergency/
Crisis Provision Page 2 of 9
Page 100



G4) capacity is established. The proposal also seeks to make permanent the existing
seconded G11 senior manager post in the Residential Service.

In total, the proposals seek to increase staffing of the current Outreach Service by 20
(from 7 to 27): 10 ASU staff; 3 additional outreach staff; 5 staff to man the crisis unit; 1
management post; and 1 business support post (1 x G11, 1 x G10, 1 x G8, 16 x G6 and
1 x G4).

Adolescent Support Unit and Extended Outreach Support

Adolescent Support Units (ASUs) with outreach represent alternative provision for those
young people in or on the edge of care. This proven service model, which includes the
provision of intensive outreach support and overnight respite care, is delivered by a
team of 10 staff and has been evidenced to prevent adolescents from entering care. It is
a well-established invest to save model that has been endorsed by the Department for
Education and replicated by a growing number of authorities across the country.

Evidence from other areas supports the provision of 3 ASUs in Lancashire, one in each
locality. However, the current property stock and staffing levels limit the ability to enable
this to happen within prompt timescales. Further evidence on the level of return on
investment is also required in order to corroborate a robust business case for the
establishment of 3 ASUs. The initial proposal therefore is that the ASU model is piloted
in one area and closely monitored over a six month period. Should the model be
demonstrated to be successful, a further ASU will be looked to be opened soon after,
with a third to follow, providing that sufficient demand and return on investment can be
clearly evidenced. A former children's home in the north of the county has been
identified as a suitable property for the site of the first ASU and could be operational by
December 2017.

Should the ASU be demonstrated as not being cost effective in comparison to outcomes
delivered by outreach alone, it is proposed that the provision of overnight respite
through the ASU is ceased (at limited expense as initial set up costs are minimal) and
the team move to the delivery of an outreach only model, in line with current delivery.

Across the three year period (March 2013 - March 2016), the current Outreach Team of
7 staff has supported a total of 345 children (117 during 2015/16), with an 86% success
rate of either de-escalating or preventing escalation to a higher level of need, based on
a comparison of their position on the Continuum of Need prior to and following
intervention. Findings from recent demand management analysis demonstrates that
more outreach support is required if we are to successfully reduce the numbers of CYP
coming into care.

The proposal to increase the current Outreach Team from 7 to 10 will not only support
the reunification of Section 20 CLA in external agency provision in the medium term, it
will also assist with the prompt establishment of a second ASU (if successful and
required) as the team will already be in place and experienced in delivering the model.

Emergency/ Crisis Provision

In common with other local authorities, Lancashire experiences a particular challenge of
how best to support CYP who are in crisis over the weekend period. At times,
Lancashire is left with very little option but to place some of these young people in our

Executive Summary - Business Case for Adolescent Support Unit, Outreach Service and Emergency/
Crisis Provision Page 3 of 9
Page 101



in-house children's homes. By their very nature, these placements cannot always be
adequately planned or appropriately matched, thus leaving the home placing a young
person vulnerable to receiving an Ofsted judgement of 'Requires Improvement' or
'Inadequate’. This practice also carries the risk of imposed restrictions or even closure
by Ofsted, which would have a significant impact on the number of in-house beds
available.

Alongside this, there are occasions when CYP in in-house provision require 'time out'
from other residents to enable a situation to be diffused or a safeguarding issue to be
addressed. Discussions with Ofsted over these issues has led to the suggestion of
Lancashire establishing some registered crisis provision for use over the weekend, as
and when required.

The initial proposal is that one of our closed overnight short break units (located in a
different facility from the ASU in the north of the county is reopened as a 2 bed crisis
home (by April 2018, sooner if possible) to provide very short term emergency
placements for four days a week (Friday to Tuesday). In order to enable the provision to
be used flexibly, it is proposed that staffing of the unit is provided through the
recruitment of an additional 5 FTE staff ®> to the Outreach Team. This will allow staff to
be deployed to provide additional outreach support to CYP and families should
placements not be required for a specific weekend. It is proposed that the usage and
demand for this provision is closely monitored over a six month period in order to
determine effectiveness and whether further crisis units are required.

Additional Management and Business Support Capacity

To ensure there is sufficient senior management capacity, it is proposed that the
existing G11 seconded Residential Manager post is made permanent to continue to
support the G13 Senior Residential Manager/ Responsible Individual to effectively
oversee, address issues and support the on-going improvement of the eleven LCC
Children's Homes. It is also proposed that an additional G11 Senior Manager post is
established to support the Senior Residential Manager to develop and oversee the
ASU, extended Outreach Service and crisis provision. This role will be crucial in
ensuring that the provision is maximised, used for the intended purpose and achieves
the outcomes anticipated.

A G4 Business Support Officer post is also proposed to be established to support the
Outreach Service as a whole with administrative duties, including coordinating and
supporting Outreach Resource Panels, handling referrals, arranging outreach
appointments, inputting monitoring information etc.

Financial implications

Initial set-up costs

The proposal will have some initial set up costs in relation to the refurbishment and
Ofsted registration of existing homes to establish the ASU and the crisis units, and IT
equipment for staff. Property Group have provided initial estimates for refurbishment
costs of £0.010m for the proposed ASU and £0.050m for the proposed crisis unit.

3 (1 x G8 and 4 x G6s). As it is likely that these placements will be required on a regular basis, it is proposed that these staff are in
addition to the extra staffing already identified to deliver the ASU and extended outreach offer, so as not to negatively impact on the
amount of outreach able to be provided.

Executive Summary - Business Case for Adolescent Support Unit, Outreach Service and Emergency/
Crisis Provision Page 4 of 9
Page 102



Factoring in registration of £0.007m for two homes, and IT equipment of £0.019m, a
total initial outlay of £0.086m is anticipated.

Operational running costs

The existing Outreach Team of 7 staff has a provisional budget for 2017/18 of £0.352m.
A summary of the additional anticipated annual cost of delivering the proposals set out
above is presented in the table below, with more detail provided in appendix 2.

Manage-
Adolescent ment and
Support Extended | Crisis Business
Unit Outreach Unit Support Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Staff Costs 0.358 0.345 0.232 0.076 1.011
Non-Staff Costs 0.065 0.025 0.059 0.003 0.152
Total 0.423 0.370 0.292 0.079 1.163
Less Current Budget Provision -0.352
Additional Cost 0.811

The units will take time to establish and therefore the full annual budget will not be
required until 2018/19. The phasing of the new funding required is shown below:

Operational 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Start Date £m £m £m
Initial Set Up Costs - ASU and Crisis Unit N/A 0.086 0.000 0.000
Adolescent Support Unit Dec-17 0.141 0.423 0.423
Extended Outreach Service Dec-17 0.013 0.017 0.017
Crisis Unit Apr-18 0.000 0.292 0.292
Management and Business Support Dec-17 0.026 0.079 0.079
Total 0.266 0.811 0.811

Unit costs

Based on other models of best practice it is anticipated that the ASU is expected to
support a minimum of 60 adolescents per annum, resulting in an average support cost
per annum of £7,050. The extended outreach team will support 168 CYP per annum at
an average cost of £2,202 per annum. The cost variation reflects the difference in
support packages but in light of the wide variation it is important that each is monitored
closely to establish the outcomes achieved, and evidence will inform the longer term
direction of the service.

Anticipated savings

It is proposed that the ASU and extended Outreach Service will impact on Children's
Social Care spend in a number of ways. The Service will generate savings by reducing
numbers coming into care, avoiding/de-escalating need and preventing placement
breakdown.

The crisis unit investment of £0.292m is not expected to generate any cashable savings.

Cashable savings from the ASU and Outreach Service will be generated from:
- preventing CYP coming into care. Based on a 60% success rate for the ASU, this
equates to 36 CYP per annum and links to the proposed reduction of 25% of

Executive Summary - Business Case for Adolescent Support Unit, Outreach Service and Emergency/
Crisis Provision Page 5 of 9
Page 103



Section 20 adolescents coming into care, based on the 2015-16 figure of 140
CYP;

reducing time in care for existing looked after CYP. The service will support
return home for 8 looked after CYP based on reunifying 1 in 6.5 of the current
cohort;

preventing breakdown of fostering placements. As a result of other services in
place, a conservative estimate of one breakdown is assumed.

Whilst reducing numbers in care will impact (all other things being equal) on social work
caseload, at this point this is difficult to estimate. The anticipated savings below
represent placement cost savings.

2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20
Nature of Saving £m £m £m

36 Adolescents Prevented from Cost Prevented 0.111 2.144 3.185
Coming into Care
1 In-house Foster Placement
Breakdown Avoided Cost Prevented 0.000 0.121 0.121
8 CYP Returned Home Saving 0.000 0.140 0.253
Anticipated Costs
Prevented/Savings 0.111 2.405 3.559

Whilst it is anticipated that outreach will prioritise targeting Section 20 CYP in agency
residential provision, the figures below are based on a weighted average ('blended') cost
(£1,438/week) of different placement types and take account of the average duration of
Section 20 placements (34 weeks). The table below shows the anticipated net
cost/savings resulting from this proposal.

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
£m £m £m
Additional Funding Required 0.266 0.811 0.811
Anticipated Savings 0.111 2.405 3.559
Total 0.155 -1.594 -2.748

Decisions Required

Management Team are asked to consider and agree the following:

The pilot of an ASU from December 2017, with future consideration, if
successful, of 2 further ASUs, informed by evaluation of the model and evidence
of return on investment;

The expansion of the existing Outreach Team from 7 to 10 staff from December
2017 (sooner if possible);

The establishment of a 2 bed crisis unit from April 2018 (sooner if possible);

The establishment of a G11 Senior Manager post to oversee the expanded
Outreach Service, ASU and Crisis Unit;

The establishment of a G4 Business Support Officer post to support Outreach
Service as a whole with administrative duties;

Make the existing G11 seconded Residential Manager post into a permanent
position.

Executive Summary - Business Case for Adolescent Support Unit, Outreach Service and Emergency/

Crisis Provision

Page 104

Page 6 of 9



GOl obed

APPENDIX 1 - Proposed Staffing Structure

Appendix A

Key: Existing Post New Post



G11 Senior
Outreach Manager

G10 ASU G10 Outreach
Manager Manager
| |
| | | | |
G8 Assistant ASU G8 Assistant ASU G8 Deputy G8 Deputy G8 Deputy
Manager Manager Outreach Manager Outreach Manager Outreach Manager
(Crisis)
G6 ASU Outreach G6 ASU Outreach G6 Outreach G6 Outreach G6 Outreach
Worker — Worker Worker — Worker Worker (Crisis)
-
)
«Q
@
o G6 ASU Outreach G6 ASU Outreach G4 Business G6 Outreach G6 Outreach
o — Worker = Worker Support Officer — Worker = Worker (Crisis)
(supporting whole Service)
G6 ASU Outreach G6 ASU Outreach G6 Outreach G6 Outreach G6 Outreach
= Worker Worker Worker Worker — Worker (Crisis)
G6 ASU Outreach G6 Outreach G6 Outreach
— Worker Worker — Worker (Crisis)
G6 Outreach
Worker
Executive Summary - Business Case for Adolescent Support Unit, Outreach Service and Emergency/ Crisis Provision Page 8 of 9




101 obed

APPENDIX 2 - Staffing and Non-Staffing Annual Running Costs (from 1st April 2018, first year fully operational)

3 NIGHT ASU 4-NIGHT CRISIS EXT. OUTREACH MGR/BSO TOTAL
NO. COST NO. COST NO. COST NO. COST NO. COST
POST FTE'S £ FTE'S £ FTE'S £ FTE'S £ FTE'S £
BUSINESS SUPPORT OFFICER 11 £21,105 1 £21,105
OUTREACH WORKER 7| £196,798 4] £112,456 7] £196,798 £0 18 £506,052
DEPUTY MANAGER 2| £76,958 11 £38,479 2| £76,958 £0 5 £192,395
ASU UNIT MANAGER 11 £50,291 1 £50,291
OUTREACH MANAGER 11 £50,291 1 £50,291
SENIOR SERVICE MANAGER 1| £55,005 1 £55,005
PAY ENHANCEMENTS £33,719 £81,560 £20,654 0 £135,933
TOTAL STAFFING 10[ £357,766 5| £232,495 10{ £344,701 2| £76,110 27| £1,011,072
0 £0
NON-STAFF RUNNING COSTS £64,848 £59,429 £25,000 £3,000 0 £152,277
0 0
TOTAL OPERATIONAL COST 10| £422,614 5| £291,924 10| £369,701 2| £79,110 27| £1,163,349

Executive Summary - Business Case for Adolescent Support Unit, Outreach Service and Emergency/ Crisis Provision

Page 9 of 9




Page 108



Appendix B

\_

S——

Lancashire CLA ==
Residential Strategy

March 2017 — March 2019

Lancashire
County ‘@e?.
Council Sz*.‘:‘%:’)



Lancashire Children Looked Afer Residential Strategy (2017-2019)

1. Scopeof theStrategy

Residential settings for children looked after (CLA) covers a broad range of provision: Children's
Homes (mainstream and smaller complex units); Residential Schools; Semi-Independent/
Leaving Care placements for 16 and 17 year old CLA; Hospital/ placements in health provision;
Mother and Baby Assessment Units; Secure Remand and Welfare placements.

Due to a significant increase in usage over the previous twelve months, this strategy focuses on
Children's Homes provision (both mainstream and more complex) for CLA placed by Children's
Social Care. CLA placements made by our Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND)
Service have not been included, as numbers placed are small and SEND placement costs have
remained stable. Learning from good practice within SEND will be used to inform the delivery of
this strategy. Overtime this strategy may be expanded to include broader CLA residential
provision.

A 'Sufficiency Duty' is made of Local Authorities under the Children's Act 1989 (Section 22G).
The Sufficiency Duty requires Local Authorities to improve outcomes for CLA by requiring Local
Authorities to take steps that secure sufficient accommodation to meet the needs of children in
their care.

This CLA Residential Strategy seeks to build on and drive forward the actions relating to
residential care identified in Lancashire's CLA Sufficiency and Commissioning Effective
Placements Strategy (2014-2017). Specifically it seeks to:

- Reduce numbers of CLA in residential placements
- Ensure that appropriate placements are available to best meet the needs of our CLA
- Ensure that best use is made of available resources and best value for money is achieved

This strategy is one part of a wider demand management strategy, which has three elements:
Prevention; Purposeful Practice; and Permanence.

Prevention

Service provisionin line with need— Purpos EfU| pra Ctl ce

deprivationheat maps

Improving accessto level2 Doing the basics beautifully Permanence
Realigningearly help Rightthresholds

Robust CAF Good and timely assessmentsthatare ‘risk | Placement provision matches identified
Strong front door and diversion from social | sensible’ needs of children and young people—the
care Effective planning that evidences outcomes F:;f:g;ﬁﬁ:'smn forcomplex teenagers
Stepdown Intervention at the lowest safe level to build c h rtstend

Edge of care service for specific groups resilience and reduce the need for services are pathways supportstepaown

Consistent and stable workforce with the Effective matching processesin place

correct skill mixin place Rigorous re unification strategy in place
which takes a risk sensible approach to family
care

Alternatives to long term care rigorously
pursued

Pag92110



Lancashire Children Looked Afer Residential Strategy (2017-2019)

. Principles and Values Statement

e The decision about where a child is best placed is made according to the assessed needs of
the child or young person and in line with their views and wishes. Where a plan for fostering
is in the child's best interests and in line with their views and wishes, LCC will only place in
residential provision once all available fostering options have been fully explored. The IRO
Service will undertake rigorous reviews to ensure placements continue to meet the needs of
our CLA.

e Sufficient and varied residential provision will be available to support the sourcing of the most
appropriate placement possible for Lancashire's children looked after.

e LCC will continue to provide in house residential placements for our CLA to include both
complex and mainstream residential provision.

e LCC will continue to strive towards achieving Outstanding Ofsted judgements in all its in-
house Children's Homes. Learning will be taken from outstanding in-house homes and
buddying/ peer support systems will be established to support LCC residential managers.

e Whilst LCC will continue to strive to place CLA in residential provision judged to be either
Good or Outstanding by Ofsted in the first instance, it is recognised that there may be
occasions when a young person's needs could be best met in a Home with a less than Good
rating. These will be considered on an individual basis.

e Wherever possible and in the child's best interests, local residential placements will be made
in order to ensure that young people retain links to their communities, whilst ensuring they
receive best possible care. Children will only be placed further afield where this is in
accordance with their assessed needs.

e Work with Providers will be collaborative, with shared best practice and agreement of
common values and outcomes.

e We will rigorously pursue cost effectiveness and will review our commissioning arrangements
to ensure best value for money is achieved.

e CYP will only move placements if the change is absolutely in their best interest. Changes will
be planned and managed with safety, sensitivity and utmost care.

- Lancashire is well placed in relation to residential care provision, with the highest number of
children's homes placed within its boundaries (94 homes as of March 2015) than any other
Local Authority in England. A quarter of all homes are located in the North West region,
including 40% of all small (1-2 bed) homes.

The above means that Lancashire is able to place a lower percentage of young people in
children's home placements outside of the Local Authority boundaries compared to national
figures. An independent review of children's residential care found that 41% of children's
home placements nationally were placed within the placing authorities boundaries, compared

Pag; N



Lancashire Children Looked Afer Residential Strategy (2017-2019)

to 61% of Lancashire children's home placements.

- Unlike some other Local Authorities, Lancashire has continued to provide in-house children's
home placements. The County Council currently runs 10 in-house children's homes, located
across the county, 80% of which are judged to be good or outstanding (as of December
2016).

- As of 1st August 2016, Lancashire has new commissioning arrangements for agency
residential care. 40 providers and 202 homes have been accepted onto the new CLA Agency
Residential Flexible Agreement. As of the end of December 2016, 81% of homes accepted
onto the Flexible Agreement were rated good or outstanding. Placement referrals are now
sent to a much wider number of providers, therefore increasing the likelihood of identifying a
choice of placement offers for Social Workers to consider.

- The County Council participates in joint work with other North West authorities. This allows
for information sharing regarding good and poor practice in residential settings and sharing of
Ofsted intelligence regarding residential ratings.

5. Strategic Overview and Key Priorities

LCC's current children's home provision is based on a previous strategy of the Local Authority
providing accommodation for mainstream CYP (in 10 large six bed homes) and agency
providers accommodating more complex young people.

Significant changes has resulted in the need to rethink this strategy, including:

- the new Ofsted children's home inspection regime and providers becoming more risk averse
at taking very complex cases in order to protect Ofsted ratings;

- increased numbers of CLA, a national shortage of foster carers and increased use of local
provision by other Local Authorities resulting in providers being able to 'cherry pick' referrals;

- spiralling CLA placement costs, particularly in relation to agency children's home placements;

- significant concerns raised by Ofsted through the Annual Conversation re. LCC's residential
provision.

The revised strategy focuses on the need to reduce the number of CYP coming into care
through the expansion of the existing outreach offer and support to families. It also focuses on
the delivery of a broader and more flexible range of in-house residential provision to meet the
needs of our CLA, incorporating a mix of both mainstream and more complex units. This
includes the establishment of the already agreed highly complex needs unit (The Bungalow) -
Cabinet Member and Capital Board approval has been received, with an anticipated opening
date of September 2017. To address concerns raised by Ofsted in relation to unplanned and
emergency placement and poor placement matching, the strategy also includes the proposed
establishment of a crisis unit, for very short term use only (over the weekend).

The Access to Resources Team proposal, previously presented to Management Team, supports
and complements the revised residential strategy in relation to placement finding, placement
cost, more effective commissioning and greater market management The team has been in
place since 20t February 2017, and within its first month has achieved savings to placement
costs of £3,700 per week. The team has also supported securing complex agency residential
placements for 3 CYP, supporting better utilisation of in-house provision by avoiding bed
blocking, reducing risk of negative inspections and the avoidance of costly bespoke options. The

Page41.12



Lancashire Children Looked Afer Residential Strategy (2017-2019)

team continues to operate without additional resource. This means that aspects included within
the original vision for ART, such as contract monitoring and market management, are only
happening on a very limited basis. In addition, wider commissioning capacity has been prioritised
to ensure ART works.

ISSUES ACTIONS TO ADDRESS OUTCOMES ACHIEVED

Large number of teenagers Strengthen outreach offer Reduced numbers of CLA
coming into care on a 'voluntary' »  through preventing coming
basis due to family breakdown into care and unification with

L

Pilot Adolescent Support Unit

Consistent application of the families

Section 20 CYP placed in Section 20 charging policy

agency residential provision I:> Consistent approach to health/
costing £0.125m per week education contributions

Reduced numbers of CLA in
agency residential provision

Improve placement finding Reduced spend on CLA

placements

CLA ending up in residential

provision inappropriately due to Better scrutiny of placements
poor placement finding/ poor i)
quality referrals/ lack of complex
fostering provision

Work with providers to develop

bespoke complex placements CYP placed in right

placement, at right time, at

¥ ¥ &

Develop step down into right cost
High number of placements i) fostering provision
required in an emergency Creation of complex in-house Sufficient residential
beds to increase utilisation of provision to meet need

Provider risk aversion to take mainstream homes

complex CYP due to impact on i) _ _ _ Reduced emergency
Ofsted ratings Consideration of collaborative E:’ referrals and unnecessary
block purchasing complex beds inflated placement costs

In-house provision left with no with other authorities

choice but to place complex §> Creation of crisis unit to de- Improved placement

CYP in mainstream homes escalate/ prevent breakdown/ E:) stability, leading to improved

X ) enable sourcing of best value CYP outcomes

In-house homes at risk of being

: placements
downgraded or having :
restrictions placed, reducing E# Improved in-house Ofsted

number of beds available ratings

It is proposed that an
Adolescent Support Unit is developed in line with the model developed in Blackburn with
Darwen, which resulted in a reduction of teenagers coming into care from 47 in 2008 to 18 in
2013/14. Analysis of this provision by IMPOWER evidenced a success rate of preventing young
people coming into care of between 74-88% following intervention. Savings attributed to this
model are £1.2m (2013/14) or £0.848m after running costs. Success rates reported by other
areas range from 25% to 75%. The success rate for Lancashire's proposed ASU has been
calculated on an estimated 60%.

It is also proposed the Outreach Service is increased by 3, to 10 staff. The 3 staff will focus on
supporting Section 20 CYP based in external placements (currently a cohort of 54 CYP). Each
staff member will hold a caseload of 17 CYP, enabling 51 CYP to be supported. Newton Europe
estimated that 1 in 13 Section 20 CLA could be reunified. By targeting support to CYP most
likely to successfully return home (in care for less than 26 weeks) a success rate of 1 in 6.5 has
been assumed. Simply redirecting 3 existing outreach staff from prevention to reunification work
will result in an increase of CYP coming into care, estimated to be c.22 CYP.

It is proposed that the new provision identified (adolescent support unit, crisis unit, complex

Pagg M3




Lancashire Children Looked Afer Residential Strategy (2017-2019)

units) is initially delivered in-house (see Appendix 1 for overview of proposed in-house
residential provision). Whilst there are other options (i.e. commissioning directly from providers
or working in partnership with providers to deliver) the challenge of providers refusing to take
complex CYP remains and timescales for implementation are likely to be significantly longer due
to the need to procure services. However, within the timescales of this strategy, we will review
our current commissioning approach, including the consideration of block contracting
arrangements for complex needs beds, in partnership with neighbouring authorities.

In addition consideration will be given to the development of a social impact bond arrangement
linked to the Life Chances Fund to support a reduction in residential provision through the
development of step down into fostering provision, in line with the approach taken in
Birmingham.

We will also consider options for embedding FGC within the Wellbeing, Prevention and Early
Help Service and the Outreach Service.

The anticipated benefits of introducing the identified actions include:

- Reducing the number of CLA through prevention and reunification) via the provision of
outreach support, family group conference and respite provision;

- Ability to place more complex CYP in-house without impacting on settled mainstream CYP
and therefore maximising the use of our mainstream provision through the provision of
complex needs units;

- Ability to manage emergencies and prevent placement breakdowns through the provision of
a crisis unit

- Increasing placement stability through improved placement choice and therefore improved
outcomes for CYP

- Increased Ofsted confidence in Lancashire's ability to manage residential provision.

Non cashable savings associated with these proposals include:
- reduced risk of Ofsted restrictions on in-house admissions

- reduced social work caseloads (potential long term cashable savings)

- reduced long term cost on public services resulting from the impact of childhood instability
and trauma

6. Financial Summary

e The Authority spent c.£25.7m commissioning CLA residential (including leaving care)
placements from external providers in 2016/17, an increase of £10.1m compared to
2015/16. 1t is estimated that c.90% of the increase is attributable to children's home and
secure welfare placements.

e Data at 31t January 2017 indicates that the annualised cost of Section 20 (voluntary)
placements is £12.1m, including £6.5m for children's homes. Evidence from Newton Europe's
Review of Children's Services shows that many of these could either be avoided (1 in 4), or
with the right support, reunified (1 in 13). LCC's Section 20 charging policy, designed as a
potential deterrent to Section 20 placements, is not currently being consistently applied.

PageG114



Lancashire Children Looked Afer Residential Strategy (2017-2019)

e The average cost of the cohort of CYP in external children's home placements at 31/1/17
was £3,022/ week. Secure welfare placements typically costs c. £5,500/ week.

e The 10 highest cost external placements total £57k/week. Ensuring sufficient placements are
available in the right mix of settings will be key to lowering unit costs.

e Blocking in-house beds to accommodate complex CYP reduces available capacity and
increases unit cost. Occupancy levels in 2016/17 to date have averaged 75%, resulting in an
average direct weekly cost of £2,591/week (ranging from £1,820/ week to £4,663/week).

e Investment in the Outreach and Family Group Conference Services has produced very
successful outcomes through step-down and prevention into care. These services can cost
less that £2k per intervention/ annum, compared to a minimum placement cost of ¢.£20k for
fostering and £100k for residential.

e The contribution from Education and from Health (to the therapeutic element of residential
support packages) is very low in Lancashire because of a lack of clarity/ protocol as to how
and when funding is pursued. For example CIPFA benchmarking shows that the contribution
from heath to overall CLA spend in Lancashire was 1.3% in 2016/17 compared to an average
of 6.6% for other participating local authorities.

Cost of proposals

The proposals will require an initial investment outlay to refurbish and register in-house homes,
and revenue budgets will also need to increase. The additional cost, along with the anticipated
impact on service delivery levels, is presented below:

Activity levels
Capital Annual Revenue funding FTE's (Homes = bed capacity
(Em) (Em) (No's) Services = no. CYP)
2017/18
Proposed | Increase | Increase Current Proposed Increase
approved
Outreach services 0.000 0.353 0.370 0.017 3.0 117CYP 168 CYP 51 CYP
Mainstream in-house units 0.000 4.725 4.725 0.000 0.0] 48 beds 48 beds -
Complex need units 0.000 1.126 1.126 0.000 0.0] 6beds 6 beds
The Bungalow - High complex unit* 0.100 0.535 0.535] 0.000 12.8] 2 beds 2 beds -
Crisis support unit 0.050 0.000 0.292 0.292 5.0 - 2 beds 2 beds
Adolescent support unit 0.010 0.000 0.423 0.423 10.0 - 60 CYP [60 CYP (4-beds)
Management / admin support 0.000 0.214 0.293 0.079 2.0
6 additional beds

TOTAL 0.160 6.953 7.764 0.811 32.8 Support for 11 additional CYP

*The unit is not yet operational but the proposal is incorporated into the approved 2017/18 budget

Financial savings

The proposals will deliver savings by avoiding/de-escalating need and preventing placement
breakdown thus reducing numbers coming into care.

Reshaping the in-house service will reduce average direct unit cost of the 10 current homes
from £2,591/week to c.£2,193/week. Lower unit costs for crisis and high complex placements
than currently paid to external providers are anticipated (of c.£400/week) but will depend on
occupancy.

The following table provides an estimate of the anticipated savings in the three financial years to
31st March 2020 from establishing an adolescent support unit, crisis unit and an enhanced
outreach service:

Pags/e .1 15




Lancashire Children Looked Afer Residential Strategy (2017-2019)

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Nature of Saving £m £m £m

36 Adolescents - Prevented from | o, provented 0.111 2.144 3.185
Coming into Care

1 In-house  Foster Placement

Breakdown Avoided Cost Prevented 0.000 0.121 0.121
8 CYP Returned Home Saving 0.000 0.140 0.253
Anticipated Costs

Prevented/Savings 0.111 2.405 3.559

Reshaping the in-house residential service will maximise use of in-house provision as opposed
to external residential provision and therefore improve the cost effectiveness of provision.

Additional costs are expected to be minimal and will be subject to ongoing review.
Savings from increased utilisation of in-house provision are expected to be £0.041m in 2017/18,

£0.747m in 2018/19 and £0.995m in 2019/20 and beyond.

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Nature of Saving £m £m £m
::r:cre_a_sed Utilisation of In-house Saving 0.041 0.747 0.995
rovision
Anticipated Costs
Prevented/Savings 0.041 0.747 0.995

This is considered to be a conservative estimate for the following reasons:

e The savings attributed to the 36 adolescents is based on a 'blended' cost of placement
types. Priority will be focussed on residential care — both prevention to - and returning
home from - these settings.

e Evidence suggests that between 60-80 CYP per annum can be supported through an
ASU. Calculations have been based on the lower figure.

e No savings have been attributed to the high-needs complex unit because whilst the
objective is to always fill two beds it is anticipated that there will be times when the unit
may accommodate only one YP. Priority will be given to LCC YP but there is an option to
trade the service in the unlikely event of low demand.

e Similarly no savings are anticipated from the crisis unit but non-cashable savings will
apply.

The financial impact of the changes will be regularly monitored against the success measures. If
savings are not achieved, or could be maximised in different ways to those detailed in this report,
proposed changes will be presented to Management Team.

7. Key Performance Indicators

Pag98116




Lancashire Children Looked Afer Residential Strategy (2017-2019)

The following Key Performance Indicators will be monitored and reported quarterly:

Key Performance Indicator

Current Levels

Target by March 2019

homes placements required in an emergency (same day)

(September '16)

Reduction in the Number of 10-17 Year Olds Starting to be 140 in 2015/16 1041

Looked After who are Accommodated Under Section 20

Reduction in the Number of CLA in Residential Children's 165 136

Homes (November '16) (Levels as of February '14)
Reduction in the Proportion of CLA in Residential Children's 8.6% 7.6%

Homes compared to placements overall (excluding those (September '16) | (National average as reported
placed for adoption) by Narey)
Increased numbers of in-house Children's Homes 45 54
placements (November '16) (Levels as of February '14)
Reduction in ratio of agency children's home to in-house 73:27 60:40

children's home placements (November '16) (Levels as of February '14)
Reduction in the number of agency residential children's 55% 30%

Reduction in the number of repeat referrals for agency
residential placements

40 per annum
(2016)

20 per annum

" Please note that this target assumes numbers are in line with levels as of 2015/16 and does not take
into account any new demand pressures. Projections do indicate that numbers of CLA are likely to

rise, which would have an impact on this target.

Pag& nmr




Lancashire Children Looked Afer Residential Strategy (2017-2019)

APPENDIX 1: Overview of Purpose of Proposed LCC Children's Homes

(1 x 4 bed home)

Proposing to pilot in Slyne
Road (currently a closed
LCC children's home)

Type of Home Statement Of Purpose
Adolescent Support | Providing respite/ short break placements for a maximum of 3 days a week
Unit (ASU) for:

a) Teenage CYP/ families on the edge of care to prevent family breakdown
and the need to come into care, alongside intensive outreach support

b) CYP in in-house foster care placements to prevent placement
breakdown, alongside intensive outreach support

- Outreach support will also be provided via staff in the ASU and via LCC's
wider Outreach Team to further CYP and families on the edge of care
and to CYP already in care to support reunification back with families

Assessment Unit
(1 x 6 bed home)
Eden Bridge

Providing short term placements (up to 3 months) where:

a) A CLA/ family has been assessed as needing intensive support and
interventions to rebuild relationships with family/ carer to quickly and
safely return home

b) A CLA is not known to Children's Social Care and an assessment is
required in order to determine best type of placement

Highly Complex
Needs Unit

(1 x 2 bed home)
The Bungalow

Providing medium term placements (6-9 months) for our most complex

CLA (where agency providers have refused to take; as an alternative to a

secure welfare placement; agency placements offered are in excess of

£5,500)

- Very clear outcomes to be achieved and clear exit plan established from
the outset

Complex Needs
Units

(2 x 3 bed homes)

Marsden Hall Road
and Grange Avenue

Providing medium term placements for our very complex CLA (where
agency providers have refused to take or agency placements offered are in
excess of £4,000)

- Very clear outcomes to be achieved established from the outset.

- Placements to be kept under regular review and young people moved on
as and when appropriate. Only in exceptional circumstances will such
placements be made permanent.

- Provision of independent living accommodation at The Willows as a
planned move into independence for former residents of The Willows

Mainstream Homes
(7 x 6 bed homes)
Bowerham; Thornton;
Chorley Hall Road;
Crestmoor; The Haven;
The Willows and Warwick

Longer term placements for our least complex CLA

a) Where residential care is the plan for permanence

b) Where longer term support is required to facilitate a return home/ step
down into fostering

c) Whilst independence is achieved

In addition, independent living accommodation is available at The Willows as

(2 bed home)

Proposing to reopen
South Avenue (currently a
closed LCC overnight
short breaks home for
children with disabilities)

Avenue a planned move into independence for former residents of The Willows
Very Short Term Providing very short term (maximum of 4 nights — Fri to Tues)
Crisis Unit emergency placements for CLA in crisis:

a) Who are new CLA and a placement has not been able to be sourced/
more time required to source appropriate placement

b) Where a placement has ended at very short notice and an alternative has
not been able to be sourced and more time is required to source an
appropriate placement

c) Where respite/ 'time out' is required to defuse a situation which is
otherwise highly likely to breakdown/ result in immediate safeguarding
issues. Likely to be mainly for CLA in in-house residential provision but
opportunity to utilise for CLA in agency residential provision in order to
prevent placement breakdown

Pag?01‘1 8




ltem 9

Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 15 June 2017

Report of the Director of Corporate Commissioning

| Part |

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Department for Transport (DfT) 2017/18 Highway Incentive Fund
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:
Paul Binks, (01772) 532210, Highway Asset Manager
paul.binks@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The Department for Transport (DfT) confirmed on 31 March 2017 that Lancashire
County Council has been awarded Highway Maintenance Incentive Element funding
in 2017/18 of £1.973m as part of the total Local Transport Fund Capital Funding for
2017/18 of £34.914m. The Incentive Element is based on the Self-Assessment
return submitted on 3 February 2017.

Officers have considered proposals to be funded from the Incentive Element and
propose bringing forward the highest priority ABC schemes that would otherwise
have to be funded in 2018/19 up to the value of £1,686,005, in line with the priorities
set out in the Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP).

It is also proposed to fund emerging pressures of emergency repair to the A59,
Mellor (£60,996) and risk based condition assessments for the high risk lighting
columns (£30,000) and Post Tension structures on the M65 section managed by
Lancashire County Council (£196,000) from the Incentive Element.

This is deemed to be a Key Decision and the provisions of Standing Order No. 26
have been complied with.

Recommendation
The Cabinet is recommended to approve the schemes set out at Appendix 'A" for

funding from the Highway Maintenance Incentive Element funding in 2017/18
totalling £1.973m.

Lancashire
County = '5@“@-

i 'u." P
Page 119 Council ‘t‘."ﬁ)

»



mailto:paul.binks@lancashire.gov.uk

Background and Advice

In December 2014, the Secretary of State for Transport announced that £6 billion will
be made available between 2015/16 and 2020/21 for local highways maintenance
capital funding. From this funding, £578 million has been set aside for an Incentive
Element Fund scheme, to reward councils who demonstrate that they are delivering
value for money in carrying out cost effective improvements.

Each local highway authority in England (excluding London) was invited to complete
a self-assessment questionnaire, in order to establish the share of the Incentive
Element Fund they will be eligible for in 2017/18. Each local authority scored
themselves against 22 questions and placed themselves in one of 3 bands on the
basis of the available evidence. It was the responsibility of the Section 151 Officer at
each local authority to ensure that they were satisfied that the evidence was
sufficient for him/her to sign off the overall submission and total score.

In 2017/18, only authorities in band 3 will receive their full share of the £578 million,
whilst authorities in band 2 will receive 90% of their share, and in band 1 they
receive 60%. These percentages for bands 1 and 2 decrease in each subsequent
year.

The Section 151 Officer submitted a return for Lancashire County Council of Band 3
on 3 February 2017.

The DfT confirmed on 31 March 2017 that Lancashire County Council has been
awarded Highway Maintenance Incentive Element funding in 2017/18 of £1.973m as
part of the total Local Transport Fund Capital Funding for 2017/18 of £34.914m.

It is proposed to allocate the Incentive Element fund as described below.

Transport Asset Management Plan Priorities

The Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) approved in June 2014, laid out the
priorities to be considered should funding other than the Highway Maintenance
Needs Element become available. During Phase 1 (2015/16 — 19/20) the TAMP
suggests that the areas for investment should focus on:

"Primary Priority: Potential to bring forward whole programmes of planned
work, prioritised on strategically important parts of the A, B & C road network."

It is therefore proposed to fund the highest priority ABC schemes that would
otherwise have to be funded in 2018/19 up to the value of £1,686,005.

Emerging Pressures:
There are also emerging pressures, as described below, for which there is currently

no identified funding source and it is proposed to fund these from the Incentive Fund.
They include:

Page 120



e Emergency Repairs

Since the Capital Programme was approved in March 2017 the A59 adjacent to
Rose Cottage, Mellor has been identified as showing signs of rapid deterioration and
requires emergency repair. It is also proposed to fund this from the Highways
Incentive Fund. Estimated cost £0.61m

¢ Risk Based Inspections

The new Code of Practice relating to Well Managed Highway Infrastructure (October
2016) encourages Highway Authorities to adopt 'risk based condition assessment’;
this approach has been embedded into recently approved Lifecycle Plans.

The Structures and Street Lighting Lifecycle Plans are indicating two areas where
high risks have been identified but are currently not funded:
o Inspection of dangerous street lighting columns and
o Inspections for Post Tension structures associated with the LCC
owned section of the M65.

It is proposed to fund these inspections from the Highways Incentive Fund.

Post Tension Structures: It is proposed to survey 4 high risk Post Tensioned
structures on the M65 which have been identified as highest risk. Highways England
survey all their structures every 6 years and the LCC M65 Structures have been
subject to biannual General Inspections, however a more detailed inspection is now
recommended. Nationally there is concern over Post Tensioned Structures. The
approved Bridges Capital Budget is fully committed and it is therefore proposed to
fund the inspections from the Incentive Fund at a total estimated cost of £0.196m.

Street Lighting Columns: Modelling using The Institute of Lighting Professionals
Technical Report No.22 (TR22), as part of the Street Lighting Lifecycle Plan,
identifies the columns most likely to fail. LCC has already replaced 4000 columns
over 40 years old through the DfT Challenge Fund it is now proposed to test a small
sample of the most high risk columns to assess whether a wider programme is
needed. Accommodating this within the approved Street Lighting budget would result
in columns that are tested and fail being taken down and not replaced. There are
already more columns identified as needing replacement as there is currently
funding available to replace them. It is therefore proposed to fund this work from the
Incentive Element at a total estimated cost of £0.030m.

Summary

Table 1, below, summarises the proposed areas to fund from the 2017/18 Highways
Maintenance Incentive Element.

Consultations

The schemes proposed to be funded from the Incentive Element have been
considered and proposed by the Capital Board.

Page 121



Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:
Risk management

Financial

It is considered that the ABC roads identified in Appendix 'A' represent the best value
for money for early intervention. The high risk column assessments will help validate
the modelling and identify the potential financial liability for the Authority. The Post-
Tension M65 Structures condition assessments will determine the condition of these
structures and determine likely pressure on the Bridges Capital maintenance
allocation.

Table 1
Area | Schemes | Cost Total Cost
Tamp Priorities £1,686,005
ABC roads Highest priority schemes £1,686,005
resurfacing\ inlays from 18/19 provisional
programme as described
in Appendix A
Emerging £286,995
Pressures
Emergency Repair AS59 Rose Cottage, Mellor £60,995
Risk Bases Post Tension Inspections: | £196,000
Inspections M65 Structures
Street Lighting High Risk | £30,000 | £226,000
Column Inspections
Total £1,973,000
Risk

Well-Managed Highway Infrastructure Code of Practice (UK Roads Liaison Group,
October 2016) advocates Highway Authorities adopting a risk based approach to
managing highways. The ABC roads identified in Appendix 'A"' have been identified
as being the highest priority requiring earliest intervention to prevent deterioration.
The Structures and Street Lighting Lifecycle Plans advocate a risk based approach
for condition assessments. The high risk column assessments and the Post-Tension
M65 Structures represent the aspects identified as highest risk. There has been
proper consideration of what should attract this funding.

List of Background Papers
Paper Date Contact/Tel

Transport Asset Management  July 2014 Paul Binks/(01772) 532210

Page 122



Plan
Street Lighting Life Cycle Plan January 2017 Paul Binks/(01772) 532210

Structures Life Cycle Plan April 2017 Paul Binks/(01772) 532210

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 123



Page 124



Appendix A
DfT Highway Maintenance Incentive Element 17/18
TAMP Priorities

ABCs Road £ Cost Location Treatment
(Top priority Capital programme for 18/19) Longmeanygate C250 119,069 Midge Hall Lane to Comet Resurfacing
Road Roundabout
C405 Pilling Road, Wyre 186,401 From 169 (Bibby's Farm - Retread
Green Dick lane
A 679 Westgate, Burnley 159,675 Active Way to Trafalgar St Inlay
A675 Bolton Road, Chorley 194,512 Bolton Road : Calf Hey Bridge to be determined
To Roddlesworth Lane through site
investigation
A577 Crosshall Brow, West Lancashire 199,105 Wigan Road to Castle Lane Carriageway
Resurfacing
B5377 Park Lane, Wyre 143,526 Lindel Lane to Fordstone to be determined
Avenue through site
investigation
C405 Pilling Lane, Wyre 135,587 38-169 Inlay
C250 Golden Hill Lane, South Ribble 191,776 Golden Hill Lane : School Lane 2 Layer Inlay
To Chapel Brow
C226 Roach Road, South Ribble 59,854 Roach Bridge to Firwood Lane Carriageway
Resurfacing
C439 Nateby Hall lane, Wyre 53,135 Nateby Hall lane to Bells bridge to be determined
lane through site
investigation
A59 Main Street, Ribble Valley 108,864 Mill Lane to Endhouse Cottage Inlay
C197 Runshaw Lane, Chorley 72,960 M6 over bridge to Dawson Surface Dressing
Lane
C206 Grimeford Lane, Chorley 61,542 Bolton Road to Boundary Carriageway
Resurfacing
Total 1,686,005

Emerging Pressures

Emergency Repairs Road £ Cost Location Treatment
Rapid failure of surface and binder course A59 Rose Cottage, Mellor 60,995 outside Rose cottage Inlay
Risk Based Inspections Inspection
Street Lighting High Risk Columns 30,000
M65 (LCC Owned) Structures Post Tension
Inspections (4*£50k) 196,000
226,000
Total 1,973,000

Page 125



Page 126



ltem 10

Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 15 June 2017

Report of the Director of Corporate Commissioning

| Part |

Electoral Division affected:
Accrington South;

Accrington Townscape Heritage Initiative - Proposed Public Realm
Improvements to the Town Square, Blackburn Road and Peel Street
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:
Nick Stafford, (01772) 530651, Landscape Unit Manager
nick.stafford@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The Accrington Townscape Heritage Initiative (THI), promoted by Hyndburn Borough
Council (HBC), is a public realm improvement scheme proposed for the town square
and adjacent sections of Blackburn Road and Peel Street. The THI also makes
provisions for the regeneration of some of Accrington's key historic buildings and the
non-highway area adjacent to the Town Hall to provide a defined town square
dedicated to the memorial and celebration of the Accrington Pals regiment. Planning
permission for the THI was granted in February 2017.

The County Council has been providing advice and assistance to HBC in connection
with the development of these proposals in so far as they relate to highway
improvements. A Section 278 Agreement will be used to safeguard the County
Council's financial position. The project has now progressed to the contractor
procurement stage.

This is deemed to be a Key Decision and the provisions of Standing Order No 25
have been complied with.

Recommendation
The Cabinet is requested to:

(i) Approve the award of the tender to the winning contractor subject to the S278
agreement being in place and the County Council having received and added
the necessary resources from Hyndburn Borough Council to the 2015/16
Highways block of the capital programme;

(i) Approve that the County Council will accept staged payments totalling
£1,704,751 from Hyndburn Borough Council together with any other
additional financial resources for the project that may be agreed, on the
condition that payments are received and added to the Highways block of the

Lancashire

County dfe%.
Page 127 Council zﬁ:___gg



mailto:nick.stafford@lancashire.gov.uk

2015/16 capital programme in advance of any application for payment from
the appointed contractor.

(iii) Approve that the expenditure be phased across the financial years 2017/18
and 2018/19 in line with the receipt of income.

Background and Advice

Over the last 2 years, the County Council has been providing support and advice to
Hyndburn Borough Council (HBC) in connection with a public realm scheme
proposed for the town square, Peel Street and Blackburn Road. Although the design
and associated contract documents have been prepared by consultants appointed
by HBC, County Council officers have had a significant involvement during the
design process and are satisfied that the proposal is to adoptable standards.

The proposed improvements are on land which is predominately dedicated as public
highway and HBC has requested that the County Council procure a contractor to
carry out the works and supervise the construction stage under a Section 278
Agreement. The extent of highway (subject to clarification and evidence evaluation)
is shown in Appendix 'A'. The closing date for the submission of tenders was 9 May
2017.

HBC will be funding the majority of the project but the County Council has made
provision for a contribution from the highways block of 2015/16 capital programme
as explained below.

As stated above, the County Council has requested that HBC enter into a Section
278 Agreement with terms agreed prior to progressing to the construction stage.
HBC have undertaken a due diligence review of the S278 Agreement process and
are now happy to proceed on this basis.

Consultations

N/A

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

The Section 278 Agreement provides a robust mechanism for the County Council to
ensure there is no financial risk from the construction and supervision of these
works. HBC has requested that payment is staged such that the County Council will
request and receive payment from HBC in advance of any applications for payment

made by the appointed contractor. The exact mechanism for receipt of funds will also
be covered by the S278 agreement.

Page 128




Financial

The available budget from the County Council's highways block of the 2015/16
capital programme is £312,847. HBC has advised that HBC's contribution will be
funded from S106 and Heritage Lottery funding totalling £1,704,751. It is proposed
that this be added to the highways block of the 2015/16 capital programme giving a
total available budget of £2,017,598. If the tendered price (including contingencies)
exceeds the available budget then HBC will either need to identify additional
resources to cover the shortfall or reduce the scope of the works (the contract
provides a mechanism for doing this) to reflect the available budget. The scheme will
extend into financial year 2018/19 and therefore funding for the final phases of work
are likely to come in to the County Council in this second year.

In accordance with the terms of the Section 278 Agreement, the County Council will
receive advance payments from HBC on a quarterly basis ahead of the works for
that quarter being undertaken. The value of the quarterly payment will be based on
the contractors spend profile as tendered and then adjusted as the works progress.
The funding streams for the project have been profiled such that the County Council
contribution is utilised as a contingency sum to be drawn down as and when
necessary. The Agreement also provides for additional payments to be sought from
HBC if there is an exceptional unforeseen cost event which would exceed the
advance payments and contingency provision. Together with the provision to
terminate the Agreement if HBC are unable to continue funding the project, it is
considered that entering into a contract to construct the works presents no significant
financial risk to the County Council.

Legal

Planning permission for the THI has been granted. The majority of the works will
take place within the boundary of the adopted highway under the S278 Agreement.
There are areas where highway extent needs clarification and the evidence
evaluated. Change to highway alignment will not be confirmed until all necessary
land has been confirmed as part of highway width and recorded as such

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

None

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 129



Page 130



© Mott MacDonald

ed for the party which commission

sponsibility for the conse!

This document is issu

We acce

x )
@ g ) < | a
u o 2 » o n| a co o
° o T k£ 5 > o c < e. 280 o S| Y| S
S = ¢ o g = c = & c < o /2N D0 O I )
Z 3 2 5 o 2 5 c © 9o = | Xx —{ (Kb Sl2ao¥ (99
@ o S c L £ 7 o 5 = o = S| = ‘ﬂ-0~u ccl® T
g 5 g &8 2 3 8 g 5 . S 2 S L&ed? gz = nl <
=) X c o0 a g o = c o © o M— @! Op Q¢ =
2 9 5 = > o 3 o g = & 2 c S o W c2c .S e —
o c > T . c = B £ o = c = c oy — N1l O|d o
g £ - 8¢ £ 3 5 % ., B T ¥ 5§ 3 a g 5 S £ m Q> N el 2| 2|8 _
> 3 E E2 5 & @w 8 o 5 2 » e S 5 § ¢ 5 = N O 20 s| 8| % o
[@)] £ 0 = = = > mw % a c £ A= 7] — c Y ko) ‘n ° Mm (e} Q — '.v 5 - o © ° ﬁ“U
c © N €30 0D e 5 £ 8 3 2 o 3 8 s = = 5 2 5 2 EY g 2 -+— Slw| <
@ = = = 9 = =] ho] c =] = ) mn Q o c © = o < - m O S noo (7] <
< = S a © S o} o c o > S c o .= Q IS (e} - c 7] o o ™ T 1o = nn e
5§ T a2 N S - o o > 2 a 3 2 e E 2 B <3 2 8 3 S S5 22 2 aCC QO © o
o Lo O - @ O = - 5 e o r 2o £S5 c
5 E ©G o 9o g @ o £ o = NE 09 .ww c ] © T S F 8% g 1) —~ ~| S () !
o Q 5 L N o) o > ° O O =
= » 2 = = D ® (- L 7 235 ® » > = = S S dM_v o = c—-—T &a3v T o DI S T |3 T (@)
T D © T & < 5 O 3 S 5§ 5 @ v o BB > = 0 o = 8 ) 32v 2%, -+ c| £ 2 o
s 9 S © s = a 2 T c 5 cC »c B @ : < Q. 4
2 = = £ o) o - 5 o = 3 g ® 5D 90 o 8 o 4 2 = S s o2 =< C ol 2|8 [
2 E 4 E g2 O 5 § £ 3§ 5 9 T S 5 8 %% 27 2% E 5 5 5 € S 2 OxaI>kus= 7|05 oLl < 2 8| 53 4
- et 3 E DO % < S B o S @ b =0 =0 c = 0 5 5 £ o 0 T
e 5 E |5 32 % 8 2 5% ofe 2i g & S5 28 & Eo@ g £ O 5 S o T A |00 viol<le | A
> ® = & 5§52 m @® O B € £ <2 5 4O o ® 9 EB 53 I 2% 2. 3 3 2 8§ 8 O O Ru C w > & 7
T o = = 0 < ¢ c = O E x & 2 9o % o, @ 5 o1 ad g =155 o e Q a 7 | c 00 S cC O
S u = £ ES £ € § >S9 28§35 T cf e Ls5s5 3 5598 =5 9 2 s - I|2 PO 0= QO WDW ml P Q
o . (] @ = s o < 4 ¥ m = #H O © c = O+ X = » =) o N ~— ol a Jd || < 1
>S9 2 c S 6 o) = 8 5 - o - g 3 = 6o o W co 8AQ o S g Q ~ e|le O = =
5098 3 o Ly ©~ ~ o] 2 ¢ o © v 2 o o 2 = = ® O ® o T O = 0 o 3 > » 37 © o| & ORE yN (- - Z (®))
acmm = ~N2 x x © 2 o O O O E o o 5 E os 05 o s 9 e o 5 ¢ € & ® o ™ S| o B qr O
o= £ O 3] o o = X o £ £ ®© @c c€¢c = c . O =2 > = I »| © L © L ~
c 0 g £ x £ S 5 2 & €6 €6 F $o - 8 g X & 2 3 0o W ) 0 n i —
T g+~ =+ S e¢ o n 5 x 4 L m me 8 &6 c Q8- o 3 B o D ® A 0 .Ie o
298 E 2 E E 3 o O 80 » 80F5=3%¥Xz28 2 8 5 § = A E p= L = = | =
=22 3 E EE & & 3 G T F-08T O 3 s 8 = = c @© s
o= O T oS S 3 Q o 8 mc o & 92D 0 = 5 5 = —_ ()] S N
c89 E g 38 3 8 & 8 282 22 2820.828 £ 18558t sise g E P2 g o ol £ Z |20 £0 c < ol | oS ©
$23 3 x %X X 2 g ¢ 2 82 = =285329s5E£¢8 3 8 8 5 - & X ;X 5 5|2 ™
58c o E E E E & =8 L0 a3 & < < S o ) o o) © < e
05 = E EE Eo E o Qw0 = L o o o wl| o (a] b S| x| ® 1
2845 o S £E§ §3 S5 = ~ = c LLJ c o o 0
-— [e) =~ 3
[ [&] — O] = W o5h a7z 62 m
§P8s0|f B S| 2 3| o o v & - | OS5 ® 295
seEie| & -EEQS 2| S 3|8 -Q 4 O | <ao AREEIE=
O % ; 9 .
g| TG 3" e 2 2| < 02 |z Az = ol5|5lev |5
3 > . . o= Sl 5 o| = SSs o LE T o 2l 5| 2|8 ®
Sl W |l « « o < W © N o o x| = & ) ’ ’ i ala|&|a a
w— ., O
O+~ O
c o E_
Q S. 2 &
O L >
PN
0 o]
a
o
20 &
)
[ O
O c C
azo
0
o C o+ .
coO< o
+ (@)
= N
O & \p)
< O
.= 0 M
=0 N
QO Q
o
o
c >C ©
— —
= £
Qo
0 S
Qc - [e) -
V.00 prd
m..ms&e
-+
O o O
WSmJ.mn
ANn W,S.wa ]
= 0
o -
— nHLEs
o 858 3 .
zZ cs0 % ¢
@) -+ 5
® 5= S
22 L 3.2 ]
— PLgo ©
< Lo
o C >
® w55 2
O eoe m oL
%m S c O o
|-
— bd.wc o
m 5 (0] ﬂm N
0 © -
asC g s
S coy <
o€ 3 ®
3558 §
AWW %) o & ¢
&y ol c
Sy < o ©
muméd MisD L _
HO
{
ey
N y
R LY/ VAR | Y Ay gy W R AR A Ty o e
- L
7 m
! =
B
3
(@]
X
-]
o
o)
<
o
£
€
©
O
=
=}
©
<
&
)
—
@
9
[2])
€
<C
2
1/
e S
t/
@
Q0
s
Q
2
°
2
[2]
=}
[e]
°
(5]
:
3
2]
©
5
£
C
S
n
@
./ E
o O
~ Sr
[ m.m
{E 38
II\A.' rr
Sy, 5 o
”4,’ s ®
~ A ~ 2 8
' SN -~ g o
1 / ~ 3
Ny, o ;u. ~ ~ o L2
= > 7 25
o3
// mn
~~ > 9
T 3 <43 £
e —
© hN&DW o O
2 229 s
® ® o
~ 2 z2
m c ©
) g o
T o u.m
B = //\ M m
© o
o
g $e
5 g
w @ ° 8
23 3 5
'r/\ \ I wm
= c
"' fi LB
I NNy o £
Ny Ns Y Ty S 52
"‘.l‘ '~'J' = L 5 ®
L~ NN 3 85
Ny, SN, NSRS NNy 5 o=
[ \' o}
A NN Ny g 3
NN SN, WSS 2g
SN NoN Sy 5 82
/i 'F.' o O =
=] (o]
""'." £ i
_" & S £ %
m m = M
©
o £
G ©
gz
[v]
8 >
O 2
[7: ]
o Q
mu
33
S
s =
O c
@ c
»n 9
L Qo
7 5z
g EE
= O
~ O
T T
Q o
2
©

quences

ptnore

rington THI\Drawings\Scheme Drawings\Highways\Series 100 - Preliminaries (inc

stats)\MMD-367119-C-DR-00-0100-0103 T0.dwg Mar 31, 2017 - 9:59AM dix75648

P:\Liverpoo\BN\PROJECTS\Odd\367119 - Acc!


AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
DP

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
GULLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
RL147.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
RL148.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
G135.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
G135.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
CL136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
CL135.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
G135.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
CL134.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
CL134.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
CL134.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
G134.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
CL134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
CL134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
CL134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
CL134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
CL134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
CL134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
G134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
CL134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
CL134.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
CL134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
G133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
CL134.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
G134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
CL134.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
G134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
CL135.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
G134.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
CL134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
CL134.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
CL134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
CL134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
G134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
G134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
CL133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
CL133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
CL133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
RL146.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
RL152.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
G1.0ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
CL133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
CL133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
CL133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
G134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
G134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
G133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
G133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
G134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
G133.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
CL133.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
CL134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
CL133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
G133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
CL133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
G133.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
CL133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
CL133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
CL134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
CL133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
G133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
G133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
CL133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
G133.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
G133.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
G0.5ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
CL133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
G133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
CL134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
RL140.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
CL133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
G0.1ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
G.03ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
G133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
CL133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
CL133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
G133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
G133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
0003

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
TPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
Drainage Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
DP

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
GULLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
RL147.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
RL148.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
G135.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
G135.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
CL136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
CL135.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
G135.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
CL134.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
CL134.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
CL134.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
G134.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
CL134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
CL134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
CL134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
CL134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
CL134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
CL134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
G134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
CL134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
CL134.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
CL134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
G133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
CL134.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
G134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
CL134.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
G134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
CL135.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
G134.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
CL134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
CL134.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
CL134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
CL134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
G134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
G134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
CL133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
CL133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
CL133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
RL146.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
RL152.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
G1.0ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
CL133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
CL133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
CL133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
G134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
G134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
G133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
G133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
G134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
G133.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
CL133.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
CL134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
CL133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
G133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
CL133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
G133.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
CL133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
CL133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
CL134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
CL133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
G133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
G133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
CL133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
G133.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
G133.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
G0.5ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
CL133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
G133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
CL134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
RL140.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
CL133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
G0.1ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
G.03ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
G133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
CL133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
CL133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
G133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
G133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
0003

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
TPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
Drainage Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
CUT LINE - FOR CONTINUATION PEEL ST DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
CUT LINE - FOR CONTINUATION SEE BLACKBURN RD DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
2 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
Market Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
11 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
DUTTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
Town Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
8 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
Regency Bar

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
55 to 59

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
(134.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
RAMP UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
(138.07)

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
BUS SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
BUS SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
DP

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
GULLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
HERAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
SNP

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
FLOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
CL136.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
detail

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
can you check

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
COBBLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
STONE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
STONE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
CHARGER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
ELECTRIC CAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
MARKET HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
TOWN HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
PLECK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
BLACKBURN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
HATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
134.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
134.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
134.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
134.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
135.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
135.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
135.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
135.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
134.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
134.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
FL134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
134.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
134.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
134.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
FL135.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
135.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
135.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
135.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
FL135.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
BUS SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
CL134.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
135.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
135.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
134.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
134.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
135.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
135.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
G134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
134.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
134.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
133.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
134.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
134.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
134.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
134.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
134.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
CL134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
134.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
FL134.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
FL134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
CL134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
134.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
134.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
134.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
FL134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
134.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
134.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
135.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
FL135.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
135.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
135.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
135.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
CL134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
134.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
134.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
134.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
133.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
ARMCO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
CL133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
CL134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
135.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
G134.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
135.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
134.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
134.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
134.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
133.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
133.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
134.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
134.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
135.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
135.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
134.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
134.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
EL144.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
EL143.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
EL142.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
134.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
135.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
135.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
135.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
RL146.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
EL142.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
EL143.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
EL143.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
134.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
135.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
135.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
RL148.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
133.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
133.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
134.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
134.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
134.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
134.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
RL147.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
RL148.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
CL134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
G134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
CL134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
134.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
G134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
CL134.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
G133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
G134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
CL134.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
G134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
CL134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
134.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
RL146.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
EL143.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
EL142.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
RL144.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
EL142.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
134.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
135.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
135.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
135.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
135.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
134.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
134.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
134.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
134.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
135.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
135.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
135.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
EL144.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
RL146.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
RL140.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
RL139.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
EL139.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
EL143.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
136.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
136.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
136.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
136.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
136.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
136.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
136.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
(137.89)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
136.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
136.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
135.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
136.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
CL136.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
CL136.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
CL136.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
CL135.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
CL136.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
SNP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
CL136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
BUS SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
BUS SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
CL136.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
G136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
G136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
136.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
G136.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
G135.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
135.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
135.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
BUS SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
CL135.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
135.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
135.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
136.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
135.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
137.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
137.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
FL138.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
FL137.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
137.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
136.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
137.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
137.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
137.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
FL136.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
EL143.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
RL145.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
RL144.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
EL142.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
EL143.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
RL147.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
137.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
137.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
137.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
137.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
137.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
137.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
137.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
CL137.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
137.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
137.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
137.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
137.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
137.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
137.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
136.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
137.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
136.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
136.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
136.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
136.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
136.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
136.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
136.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
136.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
136.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
FL136.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
G136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
136.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
G136.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
G136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
CL136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
136.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
136.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
136.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
136.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
136.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
135.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
135.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
136.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
136.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
137.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
136.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
136.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
136.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
136.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
136.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
136.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
136.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
136.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
136.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
136.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
136.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
136.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
136.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
135.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
135.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
135.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
138.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
138.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
137.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
137.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
138.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
138.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
137.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
137.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
138.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
137.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
136.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
136.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
136.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
136.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
136.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
136.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
136.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
136.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
137.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
137.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
137.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
137.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
137.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
138.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
CL137.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
137.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
137.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
137.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
137.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
137.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
137.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
137.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
137.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
137.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
(137.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
137.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
CL137.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
ICP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
FL137.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
137.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
137.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
137.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
CL137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
CL137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
137.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
G137.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
G137.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
G137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
137.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
137.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
137.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
137.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
137.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
137.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
137.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
137.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
137.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
137.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
138.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
138.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
138.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
138.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
137.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
137.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
137.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
137.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
137.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
137.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
137.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
137.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
137.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
135.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
135.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
136.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
136.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
136.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
136.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
135.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
135.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
135.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
135.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
135.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
134.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
134.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
134.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
134.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
134.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
134.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
134.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
133.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
FL136.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
CELLAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
135.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
135.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
CL135.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
ICP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
EL140.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
RL143.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
138.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
137.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
137.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
137.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
137.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
137.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
137.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
137.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
136.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
136.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
136.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
136.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
136.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
136.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
136.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
136.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
136.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
137.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
137.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
137.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
137.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
137.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
137.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
G137.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
137.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
138.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
CL138.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
138.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
138.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
139.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
139.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
139.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
139.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
139.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
139.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
138.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
138.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
138.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
138.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
137.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
136.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
136.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
136.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
136.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
136.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
136.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
136.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
136.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
136.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
137.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
136.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
COBBLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
COBBLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
137.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
137.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
137.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
137.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
136.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
136.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
CL136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
136.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
FL136.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
137.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
137.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
137.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
137.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
137.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
137.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
137.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
G137.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
137.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
137.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
137.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
136.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
136.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
136.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
136.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
136.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
136.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
136.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
136.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
CL136.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
137.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
137.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
137.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
136.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
136.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
136.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
137.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
SNP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
136.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
136.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
G135.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
135.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
135.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
HERAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
EL134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
EL134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
EL149.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
136.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
RL142.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
EL141.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
136.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
136.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
136.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
CL136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
136.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
136.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
CL136.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
136.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
136.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
136.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
136.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
136.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
136.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
135.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
135.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
135.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
135.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
135.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
FL135.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
135.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
135.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
136.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
135.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
135.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
135.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
135.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
136.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
FL136.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
FL136.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
G135.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
FL136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
136.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
136.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2074
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2075
G0.15ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2076
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2077
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2078
CL136.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2079
ICP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2080
FL136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2081
CL136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2082
CL136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2083
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2084
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2085
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2086
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2087
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2088
EL143.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2089
RL146.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2090
RL144.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2091
EL141.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2092
136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2093
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2094
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2095
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2096
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2097
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2098
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2099
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2100
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2101
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2102
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2103
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2104
137.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2105
137.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2106
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2107
136.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2108
136.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2109
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2110
136.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2111
136.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2112
136.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2113
136.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2114
136.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2115
136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2116
136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2117
136.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2118
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2119
136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2120
136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2121
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2122
137.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2123
137.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2124
136.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2125
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2126
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2127
136.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2128
136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2129
136.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2130
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2131
FL136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2132
G136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2133
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2134
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2135
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2136
136.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2137
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2138
136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2139
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2140
G0.11ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2141
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2142
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2143
G136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2144
CL136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2145
CL136.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2146
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2147
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2148
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2149
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2150
136.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_2151
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_2152
136.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2153
136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2154
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2155
FL136.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2156
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2157
136.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2158
136.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2159
137.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2160
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2161
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2162
CL136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2163
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2164
G136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2165
G136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2166
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2167
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2168
136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2169
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2170
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2171
136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2172
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2173
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2174
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2175
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2176
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2177
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2178
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2179
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2180
134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2181
134.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2182
135.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2183
135.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2184
RL146.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2185
METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2186
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2187
135.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2188
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2189
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2190
135.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2191
135.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2192
135.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2193
135.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2194
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2195
136.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_2196
EL148.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2197
EL147.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2198
EL145.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2199
EL145.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2200
135.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2201
135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2202
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2203
135.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2204
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2205
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2206
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2207
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2208
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2209
FL135.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2210
FL135.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2211
FL135.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2212
FL135.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2213
FL135.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2214
FL135.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2215
FL135.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2216
133.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2217
133.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2218
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2219
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2220
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2221
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2222
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2223
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2224
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2225
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2226
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2227
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2228
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2229
134.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2230
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2231
134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2232
134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2233
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2234
134.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2235
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2236
134.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2237
134.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2238
134.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2239
134.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2240
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2241
134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2242
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2243
134.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2244
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2245
135.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2246
135.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2247
135.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2248
135.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2249
135.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2250
135.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2251
135.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2252
135.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2253
135.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2254
135.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2255
135.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2256
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2257
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2258
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2259
136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2260
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2261
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2262
136.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2263
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2264
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2265
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2266
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2267
136.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2268
136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2269
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2270
136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2271
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2272
136.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_2273
135.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2274
135.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2275
G135.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2276
136.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2277
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_2278
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2279
135.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_2280
135.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2281
135.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2282
135.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2283
135.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2284
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2285
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2286
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2287
134.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2288
134.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2289
134.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2290
134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_2291
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2292
CL135.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2293
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2294
CL135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2295
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2296
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2297
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2298
G135.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2299
135.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_2300
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2301
135.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2302
135.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2303
135.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2304
135.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2305
135.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2306
135.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2307
CL135.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2308
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2309
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2310
G135.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2311
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2312
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2313
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2314
CL135.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2315
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2316
135.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2317
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2318
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2319
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2320
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2321
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2322
G135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2323
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2324
136.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2325
135.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2326
135.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2327
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2328
135.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2329
135.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2330
134.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2331
134.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2332
135.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2333
135.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2334
135.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2335
135.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2336
135.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2337
FL135.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2338
135.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2339
135.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2340
FL136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2341
135.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2342
136.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_2343
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_2344
135.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2345
135.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2346
135.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2347
FL135.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2348
135.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2349
135.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2350
135.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2351
135.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2352
135.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2353
134.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2354
134.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2355
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2356
135.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2357
135.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2358
135.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2359
135.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2360
135.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2361
135.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2362
135.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_2363
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2364
137.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2365
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2366
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2367
136.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2368
136.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2369
136.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2370
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2371
135.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2372
135.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2373
135.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2374
135.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2375
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2376
134.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2377
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2378
CL134.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2379
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2380
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2381
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2382
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2383
CL135.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2384
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2385
G135.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2386
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2387
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2388
135.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2389
135.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2390
135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2391
135.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2392
135.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2393
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2394
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2395
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2396
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2397
135.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2398
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2399
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2400
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2401
G135.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2402
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2403
CL135.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_2404
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2405
G135.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2406
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2407
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2408
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2409
135.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2410
135.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2411
135.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2412
134.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2413
G134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2414
137.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2415
136.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2416
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2417
137.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2418
137.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2419
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2420
136.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2421
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2422
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2423
136.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2424
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2425
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2426
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2427
137.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2428
137.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2429
137.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2430
137.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2431
137.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2432
137.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2433
137.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2434
137.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2435
137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2436
137.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2437
137.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2438
137.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2439
137.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2440
137.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2441
137.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2442
137.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2443
137.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2444
137.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2445
137.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2446
137.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2447
137.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2448
(138.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2449
G137.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2450
CL137.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2451
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2452
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2453
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2454
G137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2455
137.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2456
136.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_2457
136.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2458
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2459
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2460
135.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2461
134.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2462
135.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2463
135.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2464
135.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2465
135.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2466
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2467
136.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2468
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2469
136.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2470
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2471
137.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_2472
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2473
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2474
G136.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2475
G135.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2476
136.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2477
136.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2478
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2479
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2480
136.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2481
136.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2482
136.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2483
135.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2484
135.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2485
135.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2486
135.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2487
G135.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2488
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2489
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2490
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2491
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2492
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2493
134.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_2494
134.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2495
134.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2496
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2497
134.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2498
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2499
135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2500
136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2501
137.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_2502
137.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2503
135.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2504
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2505
136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2506
137.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2507
137.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2508
FL136.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2509
FL137.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_2510
FL137.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2511
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2512
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2513
CL136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_2514
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2515
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2516
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2517
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2518
137.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2519
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2520
136.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2521
136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2522
135.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2523
135.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2524
135.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2525
CL135.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2526
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2527
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2528
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2529
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2530
G135.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2531
135.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2532
135.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2533
135.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2534
136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2535
136.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2536
137.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2537
133.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2538
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2539
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2540
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2541
133.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2542
133.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2543
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2544
133.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2545
133.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2546
133.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2547
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2548
CL133.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2549
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2550
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2551
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2552
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2553
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2554
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2555
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2556
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2557
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2558
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2559
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2560
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2561
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2562
133.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2563
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2564
133.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2565
133.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2566
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2567
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2568
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2569
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2570
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2571
CL133.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2572
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2573
G133.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2574
CL133.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2575
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2576
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2577
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2578
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2579
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2580
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2581
133.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2582
133.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2583
133.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2584
133.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2585
133.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2586
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2587
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2588
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2589
G0.25ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2590
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2591
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2592
133.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2593
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2594
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2595
133.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2596
133.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2597
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2598
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2599
G133.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2600
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2601
133.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2602
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2603
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2604
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2605
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2606
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2607
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2608
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2609
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2610
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2611
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2612
CL133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2613
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2614
FL133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2615
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2616
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2617
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2618
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2619
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2620
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2621
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2622
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2623
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2624
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2625
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2626
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2627
CL133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2628
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2629
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2630
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2631
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2632
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2633
134.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2634
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2635
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2636
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2637
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2638
135.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2639
135.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2640
135.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_2641
136.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_2642
136.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2643
136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2644
136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2645
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2646
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2647
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2648
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2649
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2650
136.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2651
136.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2652
136.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2653
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2654
136.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_2655
135.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_2656
135.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2657
135.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2658
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2659
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2660
135.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2661
135.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2662
135.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2663
135.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2664
135.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2665
135.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2666
135.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2667
135.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2668
134.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2669
134.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2670
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2671
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2672
134.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2673
134.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2674
134.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2675
134.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2676
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2677
134.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2678
134.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2679
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2680
134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2681
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2682
134.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2683
134.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2684
134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2685
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2686
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2687
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2688
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2689
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2690
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2691
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2692
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2693
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2694
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2695
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2696
133.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2697
133.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2698
133.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2699
G133.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2700
133.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2701
133.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2702
133.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2703
133.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2704
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2705
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2706
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2707
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2708
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2709
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2710
CL134.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_2711
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2712
G133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2713
CL134.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2714
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2715
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2716
CL134.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2717
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2718
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2719
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2720
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2721
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2722
134.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2723
134.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2724
134.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2725
CL134.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_2726
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2727
FL134.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2728
FL134.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2729
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2730
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2731
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2732
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2733
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2734
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2735
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2736
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2737
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2738
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2739
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2740
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2741
134.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2742
134.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2743
134.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2744
134.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2745
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2746
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2747
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2748
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2749
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2750
134.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2751
134.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2752
134.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2753
134.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2754
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2755
134.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2756
134.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2757
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2758
134.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2759
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2760
134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2761
134.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2762
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2763
134.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2764
134.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2765
134.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2766
134.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2767
134.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2768
134.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2769
134.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2770
134.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2771
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2772
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2773
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2774
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2775
134.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2776
134.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2777
134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2778
FL135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2779
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2780
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2781
134.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2782
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2783
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2784
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2785
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2786
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2787
134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2788
134.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2789
134.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2790
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2791
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2792
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2793
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2794
134.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2795
134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2796
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2797
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2798
134.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2799
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2800
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2801
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2802
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2803
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2804
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2805
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2806
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2807
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2808
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2809
134.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2810
134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2811
134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2812
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2813
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2814
134.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2815
134.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2816
134.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2817
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2818
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2819
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2820
133.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_2821
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2822
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2823
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2824
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2825
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2826
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2827
133.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2828
133.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2829
133.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2830
133.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2831
133.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_2832
133.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2833
133.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2834
133.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2835
133.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2836
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2837
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2838
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2839
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2840
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2841
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2842
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2843
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2844
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2845
134.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2846
134.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2847
134.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2848
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2849
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2850
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2851
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2852
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2853
134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2854
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2855
134.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2856
G133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2857
133.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2858
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2859
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2860
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2861
133.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_2862
134.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_2863
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2864
134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2865
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2866
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2867
134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2868
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2869
G134.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2870
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2871
FL134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2872
CL134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2873
CL134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2874
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2875
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2876
CL134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2877
CL134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2878
CL134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2879
CL134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2880
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2881
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2882
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2883
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2884
134.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2885
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2886
134.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2887
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2888
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2889
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2890
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2891
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2892
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2893
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2894
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2895
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2896
G134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2897
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2898
CL134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2899
CL134.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2900
CL134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2901
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2902
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2903
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2904
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2905
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2906
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2907
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2908
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2909
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2910
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2911
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2912
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2913
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2914
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2915
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2916
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2917
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2918
CL133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2919
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2920
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2921
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2922
133.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2923
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_2924
134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2925
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2926
G133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2927
134.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2928
CL134.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2929
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2930
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2931
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2932
G134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2933
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2934
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2935
134.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2936
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2937
134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2938
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2939
(134.97)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2940
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2941
FL134.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_2942
134.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2943
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2944
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2945
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2946
134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_2947
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2948
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2949
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2950
134.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2951
134.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2952
CL134.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2953
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2954
FL134.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2955
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2956
G134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2957
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2958
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2959
135.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_2960
CL135.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2961
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2962
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2963
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2964
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2965
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2966
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2967
134.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2968
134.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_2969
135.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_2970
135.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2971
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2972
135.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2973
135.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2974
136.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2975
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2976
136.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2977
137.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2978
G134.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_2979
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2980
134.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2981
134.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2982
134.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2983
135.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2984
CL134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2985
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2986
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2987
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2988
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2989
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2990
CL134.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2991
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2992
CL134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2993
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2994
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2995
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2996
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2997
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2998
134.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2999
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_3000
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_3001
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3002
134.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3003
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3004
134.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3005
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_3006
134.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3007
134.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3008
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3009
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3010
135.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3011
135.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3012
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3013
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3014
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3015
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3016
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3017
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3018
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3019
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3020
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3021
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3022
134.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3023
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3024
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3025
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3026
135.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3027
135.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3028
135.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3029
135.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3030
134.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3031
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3032
134.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3033
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3034
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3035
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3036
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3037
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3038
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3039
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3040
CL134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3041
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3042
G134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3043
G134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3044
137.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3045
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3046
136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3047
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3048
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3049
136.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3050
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3051
136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3052
136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3053
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3054
136.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3055
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_3056
136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3057
136.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3058
136.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3059
135.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3060
135.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3061
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3062
135.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3063
135.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3064
135.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3065
135.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3066
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3067
135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3068
135.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3069
135.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3070
135.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3071
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3072
135.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3073
134.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3074
134.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_3075
134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3076
134.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3077
134.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3078
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3079
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3080
134.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3081
134.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3082
134.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3083
134.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3084
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3085
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3086
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3087
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3088
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3089
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3090
134.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3091
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3092
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3093
134.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3094
134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3095
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3096
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3097
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3098
134.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3099
134.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3100
134.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3101
134.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3102
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3103
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3104
134.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3105
135.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3106
135.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3107
135.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3108
135.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3109
135.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3110
135.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3111
135.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3112
135.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3113
135.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3114
135.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3115
135.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3116
135.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3117
135.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3118
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3119
135.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_3120
136.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3121
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3122
136.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_3123
136.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3124
136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3125
136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3126
136.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3127
136.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_3128
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3129
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3130
136.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3131
136.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3132
137.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3133
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3134
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3135
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3136
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3137
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3138
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3139
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3140
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3141
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_3142
133.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_3143
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3144
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3145
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3146
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3147
133.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3148
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3149
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3150
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3151
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3152
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3153
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3154
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3155
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3156
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3157
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3158
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3159
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3160
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3161
133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3162
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3163
CL133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3164
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3165
134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_3166
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3167
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3168
134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3169
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3170
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3171
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3172
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3173
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3174
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3175
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3176
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3177
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3178
134.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3179
134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3180
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3181
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3182
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3183
134.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3184
134.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3185
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3186
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3187
133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3188
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3189
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3190
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3191
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3192
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3193
CL133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3194
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3195
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3196
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3197
(134.30)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3198
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3199
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3200
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3201
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3202
CL133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3203
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3204
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3205
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3206
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3207
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3208
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3209
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3210
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3211
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3212
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3213
FL134.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3214
FL134.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3215
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3216
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3217
RL146.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_3218
RL152.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3219
EL149.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3220
EL146.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3221
EL145.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3222
EL143.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3223
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3224
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3225
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3226
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3227
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3228
134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_3229
134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_3230
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3231
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3232
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3233
133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3234
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3235
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3236
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3237
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3238
133.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3239
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3240
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3241
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3242
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3243
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3244
G1.0ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_3245
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3246
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3247
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3248
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3249
133.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3250
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3251
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3252
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3253
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3254
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3255
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3256
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3257
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3258
133.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3259
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3260
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3261
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3262
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3263
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3264
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3265
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3266
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3267
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3268
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3269
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3270
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_3271
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_3272
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_3273
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_3274
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3275
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3276
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3277
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3278
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3279
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3280
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3281
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3282
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3283
133.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3284
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3285
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3286
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3287
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3288
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3289
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3290
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3291
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3292
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3293
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3294
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3295
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3296
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3297
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3298
133.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3299
133.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3300
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3301
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3302
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3303
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3304
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3305
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3306
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3307
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3308
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3309
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3310
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3311
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3312
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3313
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3314
133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3315
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3316
CL133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3317
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3318
CL133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3319
CL133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3320
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3321
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3322
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3323
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3324
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3325
G134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3326
G134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_3327
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3328
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3329
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3330
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3331
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3332
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3333
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3334
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3335
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3336
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3337
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3338
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3339
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3340
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3341
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3342
(134.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3343
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3344
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3345
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3346
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3347
G133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3348
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3349
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3350
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3351
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3352
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3353
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3354
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3355
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3356
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3357
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3358
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3359
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3360
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3361
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3362
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3363
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3364
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3365
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3366
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3367
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3368
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3369
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3370
134.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3371
134.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3372
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3373
134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3374
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3375
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3376
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3377
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3378
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3379
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3380
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3381
G133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3382
133.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3383
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_3384
133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3385
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3386
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3387
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3388
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3389
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3390
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3391
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3392
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3393
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3394
FL133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3395
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3396
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3397
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3398
133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3399
133.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_3400
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3401
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_3402
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_3403
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_3404
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_3405
G134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3406
G133.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3407
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3408
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3409
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3410
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3411
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3412
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3413
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3414
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3415
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3416
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3417
CL133.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3418
CL134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_3419
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3420
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3421
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3422
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3423
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3424
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3425
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3426
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3427
134.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3428
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3429
134.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3430
134.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3431
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3432
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3433
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3434
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3435
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3436
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3437
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3438
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3439
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3440
133.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3441
CL133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3442
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3443
G133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3444
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3445
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3446
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3447
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3448
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3449
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3450
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3451
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3452
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3453
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_3454
CL133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3455
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3456
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3457
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3458
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_3459
133.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3460
133.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3461
133.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3462
FL133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3463
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3464
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3465
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3466
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3467
G133.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3468
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3469
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3470
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3471
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3472
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3473
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3474
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3475
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3476
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3477
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3478
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3479
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3480
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3481
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3482
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3483
133.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3484
133.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3485
133.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3486
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3487
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3488
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3489
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3490
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3491
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3492
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3493
FL133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3494
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3495
CL133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3496
CL133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3497
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3498
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3499
135.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3500
135.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3501
135.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_3502
135.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3503
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3504
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3505
136.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3506
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3507
CL136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3508
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3509
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3510
136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3511
136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3512
135.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3513
135.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3514
CL136.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3515
CL135.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3516
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3517
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3518
G135.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3519
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3520
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3521
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3522
135.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3523
135.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_3524
135.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3525
135.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3526
135.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3527
135.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3528
136.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3529
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3530
136.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3531
136.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3532
136.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3533
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3534
136.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3535
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3536
136.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3537
136.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_3538
135.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3539
135.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3540
135.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3541
135.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3542
135.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3543
134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3544
135.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3545
135.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3546
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3547
136.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_3548
136.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3549
136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3550
136.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3551
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3552
136.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3553
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3554
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3555
136.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3556
136.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3557
135.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3558
135.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3559
135.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3560
135.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3561
135.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3562
FL135.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3563
FL135.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_3564
135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3565
135.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3566
135.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3567
FL135.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3568
135.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3569
135.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3570
135.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3571
135.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3572
135.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3573
135.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3574
CL135.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3575
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3576
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3577
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3578
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3579
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3580
134.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3581
CL135.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3582
CL135.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3583
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3584
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3585
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3586
133.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3587
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3588
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3589
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3590
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3591
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3592
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3593
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3594
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3595
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3596
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3597
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3598
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3599
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3600
135.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3601
135.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3602
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3603
136.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3604
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3605
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3606
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3607
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_3608
135.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3609
135.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3610
135.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3611
135.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3612
135.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3613
135.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3614
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3615
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3616
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3617
134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3618
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3619
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3620
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3621
134.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3622
134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3623
134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_3624
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3625
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3626
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3627
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3628
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3629
136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3630
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3631
136.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3632
135.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3633
133.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_3634
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3635
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3636
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3637
FL135.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3638
FL134.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3639
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3640
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3641
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3642
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3643
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3644
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3645
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3646
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3647
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3648
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3649
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3650
135.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3651
135.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3652
134.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3653
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3654
CL134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3655
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3656
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3657
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3658
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3659
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3660
133.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_3661
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3662
134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_3663
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3664
134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3665
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3666
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3667
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3668
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3669
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3670
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3671
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3672
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3673
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3674
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3675
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3676
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3677
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3678
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3679
133.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3680
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3681
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3682
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3683
134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3684
134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3685
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3686
134.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3687
134.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3688
FL134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3689
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3690
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3691
134.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3692
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3693
134.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3694
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_3695
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_3696
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_3697
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_3698
CL133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3699
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3700
133.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_3701
133.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_3702
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3703
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3704
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3705
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3706
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3707
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3708
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3709
134.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3710
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3711
134.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3712
134.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3713
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3714
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3715
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3716
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3717
133.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_3718
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3719
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3720
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3721
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3722
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3723
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3724
133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3725
133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3726
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3727
133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3728
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3729
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3730
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3731
FL133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3732
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3733
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3734
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3735
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3736
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3737
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3738
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3739
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3740
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3741
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3742
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3743
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3744
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3745
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3746
133.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3747
133.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3748
133.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3749
133.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3750
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3751
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3752
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3753
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3754
FL133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3755
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3756
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3757
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3758
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3759
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3760
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3761
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3762
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3763
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3764
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3765
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3766
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3767
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3768
G133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3769
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3770
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3771
G133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3772
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3773
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3774
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3775
CL133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3776
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3777
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3778
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3779
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3780
133.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3781
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_3782
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_3783
133.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3784
133.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3785
133.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3786
133.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3787
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_3788
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3789
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3790
FL133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3791
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3792
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3793
G133.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3794
G133.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3795
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3796
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3797
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3798
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3799
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3800
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3801
133.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3802
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3803
133.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3804
133.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3805
133.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3806
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3807
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3808
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3809
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3810
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3811
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3812
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3813
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3814
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3815
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3816
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3817
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3818
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3819
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3820
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3821
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3822
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3823
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3824
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3825
133.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3826
133.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3827
133.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3828
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3829
133.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3830
133.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3831
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3832
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3833
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3834
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3835
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3836
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3837
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3838
G0.5ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_3839
CL133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3840
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3841
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3842
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3843
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3844
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3845
G133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3846
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3847
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3848
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3849
133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3850
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3851
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3852
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3853
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3854
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3855
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3856
CL134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_3857
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3858
RL140.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3859
EL137.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3860
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3861
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3862
133.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3863
134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_3864
134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_3865
134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3866
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3867
134.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3868
CL133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3869
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3870
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3871
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3872
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3873
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3874
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3875
134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3876
135.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3877
136.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3878
136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3879
137.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3880
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3881
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3882
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3883
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3884
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3885
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3886
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3887
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_3888
G0.1ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_3889
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_3890
G.03ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_3891
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3892
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3893
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3894
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3895
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3896
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3897
133.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3898
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3899
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3900
G133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3901
CL133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3902
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3903
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3904
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3905
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3906
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3907
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3908
CL133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3909
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3910
G133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3911
G133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3912
134.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3913
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3914
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_3915
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3916
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3917
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3918
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3919
133.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_3920
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3921
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3922
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3923
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3924
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3925
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3926
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3927
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3928
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3929
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3930
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3931
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3932
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3933
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3934
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3935
133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3936
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3937
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3938
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3939
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3940
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3941
133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3942
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3943
134.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_3944
EL143.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3945
EL141.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3946
EL144.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3947
EL144.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3948
136.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3949
136.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3950
135.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3951
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3952
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3953
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_3954
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_3955
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_3956
FL136.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3957
RL145.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3958
EL141.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3959
EL141.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3960
EL142.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3961
EL145.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3962
EL145.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3963
135.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3964
135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3965
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3966
135.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3967
135.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3968
135.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3969
135.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_3970
136.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3971
136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3972
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3973
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3974
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3975
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3976
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3977
136.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3978
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3979
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3980
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3981
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3982
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3983
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3984
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3985
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3986
FL136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3987
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3988
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3989
FL136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3990
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3991
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3992
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3993
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3994
CL136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3995
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3996
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3997
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3998
G134.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_3999
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4000
135.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4001
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4002
135.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_4003
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4004
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4005
G136.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_4006
136.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4007
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4008
136.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4009
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4010
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4011
FL137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_4012
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4013
CL136.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4014
CL136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4015
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4016
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4017
136.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4018
136.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4019
136.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4020
G136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4021
G136.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4022
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4023
136.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4024
136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4025
136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_4026
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_4027
136.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4028
136.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4029
136.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4030
136.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4031
136.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_4032
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4033
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4034
G136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4035
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4036
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_4037
136.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4038
136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4039
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4040
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4041
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4042
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4043
136.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4044
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4045
136.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4046
136.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4047
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4048
136.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_4049
136.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4050
136.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4051
136.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4052
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_4053
135.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_4054
135.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4055
135.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_4056
135.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_4057
135.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4058
135.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_4059
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4060
135.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4061
135.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4062
135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4063
135.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_4064
135.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4065
135.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_4066
135.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_4067
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4068
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4069
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4070
136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4071
136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4072
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4073
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4074
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4075
136.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4076
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4077
136.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4078
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4079
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4080
136.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4081
136.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4082
CL136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4083
CL136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4084
CL136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4085
CL136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4086
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4087
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4088
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4089
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4090
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4091
136.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4092
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4093
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4094
136.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4095
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4096
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_4097
136.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4098
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_4099
136.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4100
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4101
136.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4102
136.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4103
136.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4104
136.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4105
136.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4106
136.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4107
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4108
136.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4109
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4110
136.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4111
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4112
136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4113
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4114
136.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4115
136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4116
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4117
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4118
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4119
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4120
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4121
G136.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4122
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4123
136.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_4124
136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_4125
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4126
136.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4127
G136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4128
CL136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4129
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4130
CL136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4131
ICP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4132
136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4133
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4134
CL136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4135
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4136
G136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4137
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4138
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4139
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4140
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4141
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4142
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4143
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4144
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_4145
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_4146
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_4147
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_4148
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_4149
DP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4150
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4151
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4152
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4153
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4154
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4155
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4156
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4157
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4158
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4159
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4160
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4161
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4162
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4163
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4164
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4165
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4166
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4167
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4168
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4169
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4170
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4171
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4172
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4173
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4174
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4175
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4176
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4177
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4178
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4179
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4180
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4181
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4182
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4183
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4184
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4185
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4186
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4187
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4188
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4189
0001

AutoCAD SHX Text_4190
134.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4191
0003

AutoCAD SHX Text_4192
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4193
0002

AutoCAD SHX Text_4194
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4195
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4196
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4197
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4198
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4199
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4200
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4201
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4202
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4203
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4204
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4205
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4206
Hyd

AutoCAD SHX Text_4207
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4208
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4209
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4210
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4211
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4212
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4213
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4214
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4215
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4216
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4217
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4218
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4219
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4220
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4221
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4222
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4223
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4224
I/R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4225
I/R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4226
I/R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4227
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4228
Hyd

AutoCAD SHX Text_4229
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4230
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4231
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4232
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4233
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4234
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4235
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4236
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4237
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4238
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4239
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4240
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4241
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4242
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4243
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4244
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4245
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4246
I/R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4247
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_4248
I/R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4249
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4250
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4251
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_4252
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4253
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4254
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4255
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4256
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4257
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4258
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4259
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4260
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4261
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4262
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4263
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4264
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4265
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4266
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4267
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4268
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4269
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4270
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4271
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4272
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4273
TPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4274
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_4275
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_4276
TPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4277
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_4278
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_4279
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_4280
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_4281
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_4282
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4283
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_4284
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_4285
Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_4286
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_4287
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_4288
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_4289
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_4290
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_4291
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4292
TPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4293
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_4294
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_4295
TPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4296
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4297
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4298
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_4299
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_4300
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_4301
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4302
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_4303
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_4304
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_4305
Drainage Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_4306
Drainage Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_4307
Drainage Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_4308
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4309
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_4310
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4311
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4312
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_4313
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4314
Drainage Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_4315
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4316
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_4317
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_4318
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4319
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4320
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4321
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4322
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4323
I/R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4324
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4325
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4326
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4327
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4328
(134.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4329
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4330
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4331
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4332
RAMP UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4333
(138.07)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4334
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4335
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_4336
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4337
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4338
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4339
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4340
BUS SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_4341
BUS SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_4342
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4343
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4344
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4345
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4346
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4347
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4348
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4349
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4350
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4351
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4352
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4353
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4354
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4355
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4356
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4357
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_4358
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4359
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4360
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4361
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4362
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4363
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4364
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4365
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4366
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4367
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4368
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4369
DP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4370
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4371
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4372
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4373
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4374
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4375
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4376
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4377
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4378
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4379
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4380
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4381
GULLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4382
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4383
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4384
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4385
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4386
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4387
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4388
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4389
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4390
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4391
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4392
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4393
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4394
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4395
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4396
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4397
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4398
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4399
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4400
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4401
HERAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4402
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4403
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4404
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4405
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4406
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4407
SNP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4408
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4409
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4410
BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_4411
FLOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_4412
CL136.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_4413
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4414
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4415
detail

AutoCAD SHX Text_4416
can you check

AutoCAD SHX Text_4417
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4418
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4419
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4420
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4421
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4422
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4423
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4424
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4425
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4426
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4427
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4428
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4429
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4430
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4431
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4432
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4433
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4434
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4435
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4436
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4437
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4438
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4439
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4440
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4441
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4442
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4443
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4444
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4445
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4446
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4447
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4448
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4449
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4450
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4451
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4452
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4453
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4454
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4455
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4456
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4457
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4458
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4459
COBBLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4460
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4461
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4462
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4463
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4464
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4465
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4466
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4467
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4468
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4469
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4470
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4471
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4472
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4473
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4474
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4475
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4476
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4477
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4478
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4479
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4480
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4481
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4482
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4483
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4484
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4485
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4486
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4487
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4488
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4489
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4490
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4491
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4492
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4493
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4494
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4495
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4496
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4497
STONE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4498
STONE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4499
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4500
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4501
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4502
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4503
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4504
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4505
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4506
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4507
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4508
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4509
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4510
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4511
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4512
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4513
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4514
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4515
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4516
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4517
MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4518
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4519
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4520
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_4521
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4522
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4523
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4524
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4525
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4526
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_4527
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4528
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4529
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4530
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4531
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_4532
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4533
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4534
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4535
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4536
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4537
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4538
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4539
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4540
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4541
CHARGER

AutoCAD SHX Text_4542
ELECTRIC CAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4543
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4544
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4545
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4546
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4547
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4548
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4549
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4550
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4551
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4552
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4553
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4554
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4555
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4556
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4557
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4558
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4559
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4560
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4561
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4562
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4563
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4564
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4565
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4566
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4567
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4568
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4569
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4570
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4571
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4572
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4573
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4574
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4575
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4576
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4577
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4578
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4579
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4580
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4581
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4582
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4583
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4584
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4585
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4586
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4587
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4588
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4589
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4590
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4591
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4592
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4593
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4594
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4595
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4596
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4597
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4598
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4599
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4600
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4601
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4602
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4603
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4604
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4605
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4606
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4607
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4608
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4609
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4610
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4611
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4612
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4613
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4614
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4615
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4616
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4617
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4618
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4619
MARKET HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4620
TOWN HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4621
PLECK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4622
BLACKBURN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4623
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4624
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4625
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4626
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4627
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4628
HATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4629
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4630
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4631
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4632
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4633
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4634
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4635
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4636
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4637
134.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4638
134.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4639
134.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4640
134.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_4641
135.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4642
135.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4643
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4644
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4645
135.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_4646
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4647
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4648
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4649
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4650
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4651
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4652
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4653
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4654
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4655
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4656
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4657
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4658
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_4659
135.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4660
134.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4661
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4662
134.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4663
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4664
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4665
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_4666
FL134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4667
134.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_4668
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_4669
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4670
134.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4671
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4672
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4673
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4674
134.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_4675
FL135.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_4676
135.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4677
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4678
135.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4679
135.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4680
FL135.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4681
BUS SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_4682
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4683
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4684
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4685
CL134.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_4686
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4687
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4688
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4689
135.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4690
135.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4691
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_4692
134.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4693
134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_4694
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4695
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4696
134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4697
134.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4698
135.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4699
135.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4700
G134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4701
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4702
134.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4703
134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4704
134.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4705
134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4706
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4707
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4708
134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_4709
133.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_4710
134.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_4711
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4712
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4713
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4714
134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4715
134.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4716
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4717
134.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4718
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4719
134.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4720
134.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4721
134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4722
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_4723
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_4724
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_4725
CL134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4726
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4727
134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4728
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4729
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4730
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4731
134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4732
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4733
134.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4734
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_4735
FL134.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4736
FL134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4737
CL134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4738
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4739
134.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4740
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4741
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4742
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4743
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4744
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4745
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4746
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4747
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_4748
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4749
134.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4750
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_4751
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4752
134.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4753
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4754
FL134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4755
134.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4756
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4757
134.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4758
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4759
135.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_4760
FL135.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4761
135.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_4762
135.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4763
135.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4764
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4765
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4766
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4767
CL134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4768
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4769
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4770
134.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4771
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4772
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4773
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_4774
134.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4775
134.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_4776
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4777
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4778
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4779
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_4780
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_4781
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_4782
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4783
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_4784
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4785
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4786
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4787
133.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_4788
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_4789
ARMCO

AutoCAD SHX Text_4790
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4791
CL133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_4792
CL134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_4793
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4794
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4795
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4796
135.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_4797
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4798
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4799
G134.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_4800
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4801
135.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_4802
135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_4803
134.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_4804
134.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_4805
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4806
134.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4807
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4808
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_4809
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4810
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_4811
133.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4812
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4813
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4814
133.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_4815
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4816
134.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_4817
134.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4818
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4819
135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_4820
135.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4821
135.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_4822
134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_4823
134.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_4824
134.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_4825
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4826
EL144.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4827
EL143.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4828
EL142.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4829
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_4830
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4831
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4832
134.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_4833
135.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_4834
135.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4835
135.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_4836
RL146.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4837
EL142.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_4838
EL143.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_4839
EL143.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_4840
134.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4841
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4842
135.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4843
135.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4844
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4845
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4846
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4847
RL148.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_4848
133.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_4849
133.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_4850
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4851
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4852
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4853
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4854
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4855
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4856
134.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4857
134.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4858
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4859
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4860
134.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4861
134.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4862
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4863
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_4864
RL147.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_4865
RL148.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_4866
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4867
134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_4868
134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_4869
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4870
134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4871
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_4872
134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_4873
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_4874
CL134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_4875
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4876
G134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_4877
CL134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_4878
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4879
134.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4880
134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4881
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4882
G134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_4883
CL134.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_4884
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4885
G133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_4886
G134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_4887
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_4888
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_4889
CL134.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_4890
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4891
G134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_4892
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4893
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4894
CL134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4895
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4896
134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_4897
134.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_4898
134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_4899
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4900
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4901
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4902
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4903
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_4904
RL146.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_4905
EL143.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4906
EL142.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4907
RL144.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4908
EL142.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_4909
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_4910
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4911
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4912
134.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4913
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_4914
135.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4915
135.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4916
135.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4917
135.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_4918
134.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4919
134.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4920
134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_4921
134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_4922
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4923
134.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_4924
134.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4925
135.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4926
135.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4927
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4928
135.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_4929
EL144.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4930
RL146.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_4931
RL140.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_4932
RL139.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4933
EL139.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4934
EL143.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4935
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4936
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4937
136.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_4938
136.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_4939
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_4940
136.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_4941
136.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4942
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4943
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4944
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4945
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_4946
136.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4947
136.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4948
136.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4949
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4950
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4951
(137.89)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4952
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4953
136.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_4954
136.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4955
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4956
135.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_4957
136.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_4958
CL136.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4959
CL136.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_4960
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4961
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4962
CL136.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4963
CL135.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_4964
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4965
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4966
CL136.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_4967
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4968
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_4969
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4970
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4971
136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4972
SNP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4973
CL136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4974
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4975
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4976
BUS SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_4977
BUS SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_4978
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4979
CL136.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_4980
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4981
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4982
G136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4983
G136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4984
136.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4985
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4986
136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4987
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4988
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_4989
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_4990
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4991
G136.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_4992
G135.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4993
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4994
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4995
135.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4996
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_4997
135.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4998
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4999
BUS SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_5000
CL135.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_5001
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5002
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5003
135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5004
135.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5005
135.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_5006
136.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_5007
135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5008
135.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5009
135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_5010
137.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5011
137.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5012
FL138.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5013
FL137.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5014
137.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_5015
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_5016
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5017
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_5018
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5019
136.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_5020
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_5021
137.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_5022
137.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_5023
137.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_5024
FL136.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5025
EL143.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5026
RL145.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_5027
RL144.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5028
EL142.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5029
EL143.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_5030
RL147.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_5031
137.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5032
137.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5033
137.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5034
137.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5035
137.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5036
137.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5037
137.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_5038
CL137.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5039
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5040
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5041
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5042
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5043
137.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5044
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5045
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5046
137.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5047
137.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5048
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5049
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5050
137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5051
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5052
137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5053
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5054
137.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5055
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5056
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5057
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5058
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5059
137.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_5060
137.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5061
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5062
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_5063
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5064
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5065
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5066
136.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_5067
137.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5068
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5069
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5070
136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5071
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5072
136.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_5073
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5074
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5075
136.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5076
136.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_5077
136.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_5078
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5079
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5080
136.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_5081
136.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5082
136.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5083
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5084
136.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_5085
136.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_5086
136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5087
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5088
FL136.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_5089
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5090
G136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_5091
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5092
136.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5093
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_5094
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_5095
G136.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5096
G136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_5097
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5098
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5099
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5100
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5101
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5102
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5103
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5104
CL136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5105
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5106
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5107
136.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_5108
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5109
136.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5110
136.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5111
136.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_5112
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5113
136.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5114
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5115
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5116
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5117
135.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_5118
135.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_5119
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5120
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5121
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5122
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5123
136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5124
136.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_5125
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5126
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5127
136.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_5128
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5129
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_5130
137.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_5131
136.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_5132
136.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5133
136.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5134
136.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_5135
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5136
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5137
136.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5138
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5139
136.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5140
136.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_5141
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5142
136.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5143
136.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5144
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_5145
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5146
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5147
136.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5148
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_5149
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5150
136.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_5151
136.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_5152
136.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5153
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5154
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5155
136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5156
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5157
135.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5158
135.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5159
135.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5160
138.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5161
138.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5162
137.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_5163
137.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_5164
138.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5165
138.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5166
137.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5167
137.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_5168
138.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5169
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5170
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5171
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5172
137.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5173
136.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5174
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5175
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5176
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5177
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5178
136.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5179
136.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5180
136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5181
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5182
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5183
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5184
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5185
136.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5186
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5187
136.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_5188
136.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5189
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5190
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5191
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_5192
136.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5193
136.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_5194
137.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5195
137.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_5196
137.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5197
137.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5198
137.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5199
138.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5200
CL137.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_5201
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5202
137.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5203
137.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5204
137.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5205
137.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5206
137.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5207
137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5208
137.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5209
137.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5210
137.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5211
137.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5212
137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5213
(137.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5214
137.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_5215
CL137.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5216
ICP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5217
FL137.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5218
137.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_5219
137.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5220
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5221
137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5222
137.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5223
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5224
CL137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5225
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5226
CL137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5227
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5228
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5229
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5230
137.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5231
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5232
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5233
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5234
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5235
G137.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5236
G137.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5237
G137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5238
137.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5239
137.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5240
137.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5241
137.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5242
137.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5243
137.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5244
137.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5245
137.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5246
137.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5247
137.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5248
138.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5249
138.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5250
138.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_5251
138.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5252
137.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5253
137.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5254
137.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5255
137.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5256
137.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_5257
137.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5258
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5259
137.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5260
137.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5261
137.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5262
135.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_5263
135.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5264
136.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_5265
136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5266
136.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5267
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5268
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5269
136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5270
136.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5271
136.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5272
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5273
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5274
135.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5275
135.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5276
135.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_5277
135.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_5278
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5279
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5280
135.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5281
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5282
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5283
134.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5284
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_5285
134.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5286
134.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_5287
134.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5288
134.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5289
134.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5290
134.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_5291
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_5292
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_5293
133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_5294
133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_5295
133.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5296
FL136.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5297
CELLAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5298
135.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5299
135.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_5300
CL135.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5301
ICP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5302
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5303
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5304
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5305
EL140.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5306
RL143.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5307
138.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5308
137.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_5309
137.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5310
137.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5311
137.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5312
137.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5313
137.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_5314
137.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5315
136.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_5316
136.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_5317
136.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5318
136.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_5319
136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5320
136.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5321
136.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5322
136.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5323
136.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5324
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5325
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5326
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5327
136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5328
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5329
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5330
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5331
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5332
136.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_5333
137.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_5334
137.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5335
137.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5336
137.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5337
137.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5338
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5339
137.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5340
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5341
G137.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5342
137.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5343
138.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_5344
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5345
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5346
CL138.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5347
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5348
138.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_5349
138.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5350
139.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_5351
139.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_5352
139.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_5353
139.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5354
139.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5355
139.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_5356
138.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5357
138.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_5358
138.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_5359
138.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5360
137.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5361
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5362
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5363
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5364
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5365
136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5366
136.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_5367
136.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_5368
136.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5369
136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5370
136.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_5371
136.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_5372
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5373
136.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5374
136.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5375
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5376
136.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_5377
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5378
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5379
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5380
136.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_5381
137.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_5382
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_5383
136.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_5384
COBBLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_5385
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5386
COBBLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_5387
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5388
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_5389
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5390
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_5391
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5392
137.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5393
137.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_5394
137.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5395
137.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5396
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_5397
136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5398
136.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5399
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_5400
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_5401
136.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_5402
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_5403
CL136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_5404
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5405
136.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5406
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5407
FL136.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_5408
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5409
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5410
137.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_5411
137.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_5412
137.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5413
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5414
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5415
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5416
137.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5417
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5418
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5419
137.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5420
137.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5421
137.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5422
G137.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5423
137.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5424
137.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5425
137.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5426
136.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_5427
136.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_5428
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_5429
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5430
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5431
136.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_5432
136.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5433
136.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5434
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5435
136.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_5436
136.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5437
136.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_5438
CL136.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5439
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5440
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5441
137.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5442
137.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5443
137.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_5444
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5445
136.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5446
136.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_5447
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5448
136.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5449
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5450
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5451
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5452
137.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5453
SNP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5454
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5455
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5456
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5457
136.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_5458
136.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5459
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5460
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5461
136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5462
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5463
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5464
G135.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5465
135.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5466
135.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5467
HERAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5468
EL134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5469
EL134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5470
EL149.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5471
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5472
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5473
136.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5474
136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5475
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_5476
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5477
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5478
RL142.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5479
EL141.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_5480
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5481
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5482
136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5483
136.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5484
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5485
136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5486
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5487
136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5488
136.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5489
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5490
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5491
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5492
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5493
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5494
136.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5495
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5496
CL136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5497
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5498
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5499
136.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_5500
136.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5501
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5502
CL136.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_5503
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5504
136.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5505
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5506
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_5507
136.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5508
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5509
136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5510
136.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_5511
136.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_5512
136.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5513
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5514
136.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5515
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5516
135.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5517
135.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5518
135.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5519
135.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5520
135.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5521
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5522
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5523
FL135.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_5524
135.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5525
135.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5526
136.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_5527
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5528
135.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5529
135.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5530
135.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_5531
135.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_5532
136.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5533
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5534
136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5535
FL136.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_5536
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5537
FL136.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5538
G135.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5539
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5540
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5541
FL136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5542
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5543
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5544
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_5545
136.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5546
136.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5547
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5548
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5549
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5550
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5551
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5552
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5553
G0.15ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_5554
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5555
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5556
CL136.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5557
ICP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5558
FL136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5559
CL136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5560
CL136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5561
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5562
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5563
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5564
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5565
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5566
EL143.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5567
RL146.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5568
RL144.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_5569
EL141.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5570
136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5571
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5572
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5573
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5574
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5575
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5576
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_5577
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5578
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_5579
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5580
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5581
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_5582
137.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5583
137.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5584
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_5585
136.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5586
136.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5587
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_5588
136.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_5589
136.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_5590
136.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5591
136.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5592
136.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5593
136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5594
136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5595
136.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5596
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5597
136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5598
136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5599
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5600
137.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5601
137.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5602
136.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_5603
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5604
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5605
136.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5606
136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5607
136.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_5608
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5609
FL136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5610
G136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5611
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5612
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5613
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5614
136.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5615
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5616
136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5617
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5618
G0.11ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_5619
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5620
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5621
G136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5622
CL136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5623
CL136.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5624
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5625
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5626
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5627
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5628
136.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_5629
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5630
136.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5631
136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5632
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5633
FL136.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5634
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5635
136.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5636
136.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5637
137.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5638
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5639
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5640
CL136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5641
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5642
G136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5643
G136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5644
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_5645
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5646
136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5647
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5648
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5649
136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5650
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5651
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5652
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5653
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5654
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5655
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5656
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5657
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5658
134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5659
134.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_5660
135.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5661
135.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5662
RL146.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5663
METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5664
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5665
135.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5666
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5667
PAVIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5668
135.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5669
135.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5670
135.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5671
135.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_5672
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5673
136.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_5674
EL148.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5675
EL147.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5676
EL145.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5677
EL145.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5678
135.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5679
135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5680
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5681
135.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5682
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_5683
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_5684
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_5685
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5686
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5687
FL135.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_5688
FL135.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_5689
FL135.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_5690
FL135.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5691
FL135.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5692
FL135.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5693
FL135.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5694
133.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5695
133.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5696
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5697
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_5698
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_5699
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5700
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5701
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_5702
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5703
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5704
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5705
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_5706
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5707
134.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5708
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5709
134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5710
134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5711
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5712
134.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5713
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_5714
134.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_5715
134.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_5716
134.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5717
134.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_5718
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_5719
134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5720
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_5721
134.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_5722
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_5723
135.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5724
135.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5725
135.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5726
135.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5727
135.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_5728
135.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5729
135.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5730
135.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_5731
135.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_5732
135.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_5733
135.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5734
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5735
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5736
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5737
136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5738
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5739
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5740
136.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5741
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5742
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5743
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5744
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5745
136.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5746
136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5747
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5748
136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5749
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5750
136.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_5751
135.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5752
135.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5753
G135.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5754
136.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5755
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5756
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5757
135.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5758
135.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_5759
135.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_5760
135.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5761
135.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5762
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_5763
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_5764
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5765
134.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5766
134.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_5767
134.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5768
134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5769
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5770
CL135.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_5771
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5772
CL135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5773
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5774
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5775
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5776
G135.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_5777
135.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5778
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_5779
135.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5780
135.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_5781
135.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_5782
135.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5783
135.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5784
135.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_5785
CL135.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5786
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5787
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5788
G135.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5789
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5790
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5791
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5792
CL135.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5793
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5794
135.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5795
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5796
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5797
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5798
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5799
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5800
G135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_5801
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5802
136.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5803
135.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_5804
135.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_5805
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5806
135.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5807
135.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5808
134.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_5809
134.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5810
135.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5811
135.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5812
135.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5813
135.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_5814
135.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_5815
FL135.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_5816
135.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5817
135.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5818
FL136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5819
135.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_5820
136.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_5821
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5822
135.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_5823
135.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5824
135.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5825
FL135.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5826
135.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5827
135.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5828
135.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5829
135.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5830
135.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5831
134.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5832
134.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5833
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_5834
135.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5835
135.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5836
135.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5837
135.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5838
135.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5839
135.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5840
135.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5841
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5842
137.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5843
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5844
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5845
136.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5846
136.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5847
136.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5848
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5849
135.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_5850
135.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5851
135.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5852
135.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5853
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5854
134.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5855
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_5856
CL134.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_5857
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5858
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5859
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5860
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5861
CL135.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5862
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5863
G135.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5864
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5865
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_5866
135.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5867
135.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5868
135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5869
135.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5870
135.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5871
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5872
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5873
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5874
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5875
135.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_5876
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5877
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5878
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5879
G135.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5880
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5881
CL135.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_5882
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5883
G135.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5884
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5885
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5886
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5887
135.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5888
135.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5889
135.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5890
134.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5891
G134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_5892
137.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5893
136.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_5894
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5895
137.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5896
137.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5897
137.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5898
136.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_5899
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5900
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5901
136.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5902
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5903
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5904
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5905
137.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5906
137.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5907
137.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5908
137.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5909
137.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5910
137.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5911
137.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_5912
137.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5913
137.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5914
137.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5915
137.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5916
137.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5917
137.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5918
137.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5919
137.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5920
137.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5921
137.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5922
137.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5923
137.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5924
137.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5925
137.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5926
(138.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5927
G137.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5928
CL137.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5929
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5930
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5931
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5932
G137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5933
137.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5934
136.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_5935
136.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5936
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5937
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5938
135.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_5939
134.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_5940
135.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5941
135.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5942
135.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5943
135.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5944
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5945
136.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5946
136.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5947
136.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5948
137.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5949
137.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_5950
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5951
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5952
G136.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5953
G135.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_5954
136.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_5955
136.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5956
136.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_5957
136.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5958
136.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_5959
136.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_5960
136.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5961
135.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5962
135.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5963
135.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_5964
135.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5965
G135.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5966
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5967
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_5968
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5969
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5970
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5971
134.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_5972
134.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5973
134.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5974
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5975
134.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5976
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5977
135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_5978
136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5979
137.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_5980
137.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_5981
135.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5982
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5983
136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5984
137.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_5985
137.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_5986
FL136.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5987
FL137.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_5988
FL137.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5989
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5990
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5991
CL136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5992
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5993
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5994
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5995
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5996
137.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_5997
137.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5998
136.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_5999
136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6000
135.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6001
135.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6002
135.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6003
CL135.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_6004
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6005
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6006
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6007
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6008
G135.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6009
135.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6010
135.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_6011
135.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_6012
136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6013
136.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6014
137.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6015
133.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6016
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6017
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6018
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6019
133.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6020
133.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_6021
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_6022
133.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6023
133.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6024
133.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6025
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_6026
CL133.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6027
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6028
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6029
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6030
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_6031
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6032
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6033
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6034
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6035
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_6036
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6037
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6038
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_6039
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6040
133.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_6041
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6042
133.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6043
133.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6044
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_6045
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6046
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6047
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6048
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6049
CL133.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6050
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6051
G133.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6052
CL133.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6053
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6054
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6055
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6056
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6057
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6058
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6059
133.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6060
133.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6061
133.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6062
133.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6063
133.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_6064
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6065
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6066
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6067
G0.25ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6068
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6069
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6070
133.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_6071
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6072
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6073
133.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6074
133.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6075
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6076
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6077
G133.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6078
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6079
133.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_6080
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6081
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6082
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6083
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6084
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6085
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6086
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6087
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_6088
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6089
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6090
CL133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6091
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6092
FL133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6093
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6094
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6095
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6096
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6097
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6098
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_6099
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6100
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6101
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6102
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6103
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6104
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6105
CL133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6106
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6107
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6108
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6109
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_6110
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6111
134.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6112
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_6113
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6114
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6115
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6116
135.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6117
135.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_6118
135.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_6119
136.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_6120
136.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6121
136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6122
136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6123
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6124
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6125
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6126
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6127
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6128
136.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6129
136.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6130
136.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6131
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6132
136.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_6133
135.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_6134
135.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6135
135.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6136
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6137
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6138
135.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6139
135.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6140
135.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6141
135.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6142
135.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6143
135.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6144
135.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6145
135.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_6146
134.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_6147
134.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_6148
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_6149
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6150
134.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6151
134.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6152
134.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6153
134.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6154
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6155
134.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6156
134.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6157
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6158
134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6159
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6160
134.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6161
134.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6162
134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6163
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_6164
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_6165
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_6166
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6167
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6168
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6169
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6170
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6171
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6172
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6173
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6174
133.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6175
133.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6176
133.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6177
G133.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6178
133.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6179
133.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6180
133.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6181
133.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6182
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6183
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6184
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6185
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6186
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6187
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6188
CL134.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_6189
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6190
G133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6191
CL134.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6192
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6193
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6194
CL134.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6195
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6196
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6197
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6198
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6199
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6200
134.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6201
134.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6202
134.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6203
CL134.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_6204
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6205
FL134.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6206
FL134.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_6207
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6208
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6209
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6210
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6211
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6212
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6213
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6214
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6215
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6216
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6217
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6218
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6219
134.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6220
134.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_6221
134.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6222
134.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_6223
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6224
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6225
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6226
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6227
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6228
134.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6229
134.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6230
134.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_6231
134.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6232
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6233
134.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6234
134.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6235
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6236
134.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6237
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6238
134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6239
134.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6240
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6241
134.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_6242
134.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6243
134.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6244
134.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6245
134.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6246
134.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6247
134.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6248
134.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_6249
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6250
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6251
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6252
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6253
134.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6254
134.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_6255
134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6256
FL135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6257
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6258
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6259
134.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6260
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6261
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6262
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6263
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6264
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6265
134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_6266
134.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6267
134.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_6268
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6269
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6270
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6271
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6272
134.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6273
134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6274
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6275
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6276
134.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6277
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6278
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_6279
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_6280
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_6281
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_6282
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_6283
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6284
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6285
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6286
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6287
134.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6288
134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_6289
134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_6290
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6291
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6292
134.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6293
134.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6294
134.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6295
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6296
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6297
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6298
133.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_6299
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6300
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6301
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6302
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6303
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6304
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6305
133.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6306
133.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6307
133.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6308
133.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6309
133.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_6310
133.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6311
133.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6312
133.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6313
133.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6314
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6315
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6316
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6317
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6318
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6319
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_6320
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6321
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6322
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6323
134.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6324
134.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6325
134.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6326
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6327
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6328
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6329
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6330
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6331
134.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6332
134.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6333
134.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_6334
G133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6335
133.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_6336
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6337
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6338
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_6339
133.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_6340
134.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_6341
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6342
134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6343
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6344
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_6345
134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6346
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6347
G134.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6348
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_6349
FL134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6350
CL134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6351
CL134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6352
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6353
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6354
CL134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6355
CL134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6356
CL134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6357
CL134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6358
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6359
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6360
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6361
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6362
134.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6363
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6364
134.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6365
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6366
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6367
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6368
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6369
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6370
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6371
134.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6372
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6373
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6374
G134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6375
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6376
CL134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6377
CL134.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6378
CL134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6379
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6380
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6381
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6382
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6383
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6384
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6385
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6386
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6387
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6388
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6389
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6390
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6391
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6392
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6393
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6394
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6395
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6396
CL133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_6397
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6398
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6399
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_6400
133.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6401
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_6402
134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6403
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_6404
G133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_6405
134.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6406
CL134.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6407
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6408
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6409
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6410
G134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6411
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6412
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6413
134.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6414
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6415
134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6416
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6417
(134.97)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6418
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6419
FL134.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_6420
134.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6421
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_6422
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_6423
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_6424
134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_6425
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_6426
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_6427
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6428
134.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6429
134.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6430
CL134.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6431
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6432
FL134.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6433
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6434
G134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6435
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6436
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6437
135.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_6438
CL135.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6439
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6440
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6441
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6442
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6443
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6444
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6445
134.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6446
134.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_6447
135.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_6448
135.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6449
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6450
135.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6451
135.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_6452
136.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6453
136.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_6454
136.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6455
137.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6456
G134.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6457
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6458
134.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6459
134.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6460
134.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6461
135.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6462
CL134.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6463
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6464
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6465
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6466
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6467
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6468
CL134.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6469
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6470
CL134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6471
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6472
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6473
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6474
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6475
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6476
134.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6477
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6478
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6479
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6480
134.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6481
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6482
134.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6483
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_6484
134.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6485
134.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6486
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6487
134.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6488
135.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_6489
135.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6490
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6491
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6492
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6493
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6494
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6495
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6496
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6497
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6498
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6499
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_6500
134.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6501
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6502
134.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6503
134.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6504
135.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_6505
135.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6506
135.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6507
135.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6508
134.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_6509
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6510
134.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6511
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6512
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6513
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6514
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6515
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6516
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6517
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6518
CL134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6519
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6520
G134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6521
G134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_6522
137.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6523
137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_6524
136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6525
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6526
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6527
136.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6528
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6529
136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6530
136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6531
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6532
136.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6533
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_6534
136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6535
136.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6536
136.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_6537
135.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_6538
135.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_6539
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_6540
135.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6541
135.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6542
135.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6543
135.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6544
135.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6545
135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6546
135.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_6547
135.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_6548
135.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6549
135.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6550
135.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6551
134.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_6552
134.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_6553
134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_6554
134.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_6555
134.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6556
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_6557
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_6558
134.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6559
134.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6560
134.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6561
134.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6562
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6563
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6564
134.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6565
134.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6566
134.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6567
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6568
134.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6569
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6570
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6571
134.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_6572
134.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_6573
134.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6574
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6575
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6576
134.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6577
134.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6578
134.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6579
134.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_6580
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6581
134.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_6582
134.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_6583
135.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6584
135.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6585
135.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6586
135.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6587
135.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6588
135.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_6589
135.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6590
135.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_6591
135.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_6592
135.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6593
135.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6594
135.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6595
135.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6596
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_6597
135.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_6598
136.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_6599
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_6600
136.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_6601
136.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6602
136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6603
136.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6604
136.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6605
136.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_6606
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6607
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6608
136.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_6609
136.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6610
137.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6611
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6612
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6613
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6614
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6615
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6616
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6617
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6618
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6619
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_6620
133.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_6621
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_6622
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_6623
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_6624
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_6625
133.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_6626
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6627
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6628
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6629
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6630
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6631
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6632
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6633
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6634
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6635
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6636
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6637
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6638
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6639
133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6640
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6641
CL133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_6642
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6643
134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_6644
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6645
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6646
134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6647
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6648
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6649
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6650
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6651
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6652
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_6653
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6654
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_6655
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_6656
134.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6657
134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6658
134.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6659
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6660
134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6661
134.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6662
134.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6663
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6664
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6665
133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_6666
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6667
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6668
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6669
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_6670
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6671
CL133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6672
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6673
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6674
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6675
(134.30)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6676
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6677
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6678
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6679
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6680
CL133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6681
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6682
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6683
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6684
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6685
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6686
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6687
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6688
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6689
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6690
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6691
FL134.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6692
FL134.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6693
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6694
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6695
RL146.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_6696
RL152.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6697
EL149.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6698
EL146.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6699
EL145.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6700
EL143.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6701
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_6702
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_6703
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6704
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6705
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_6706
134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_6707
134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_6708
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_6709
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_6710
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_6711
133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_6712
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_6713
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6714
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6715
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6716
133.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_6717
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6718
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6719
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6720
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_6721
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_6722
G1.0ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6723
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6724
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6725
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6726
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6727
133.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6728
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6729
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6730
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6731
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6732
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6733
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6734
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6735
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6736
133.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_6737
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_6738
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6739
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6740
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6741
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6742
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6743
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6744
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6745
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6746
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6747
TACTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6748
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_6749
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_6750
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_6751
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_6752
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_6753
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_6754
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6755
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6756
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6757
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6758
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6759
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6760
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6761
133.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6762
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6763
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6764
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6765
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6766
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6767
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6768
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6769
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6770
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6771
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6772
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6773
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6774
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6775
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6776
133.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6777
133.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6778
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6779
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6780
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6781
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_6782
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6783
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6784
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6785
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6786
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6787
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6788
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6789
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6790
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6791
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6792
133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_6793
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6794
CL133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6795
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6796
CL133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6797
CL133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6798
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6799
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6800
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6801
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6802
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6803
G134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_6804
G134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_6805
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_6806
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6807
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6808
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6809
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6810
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6811
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6812
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6813
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6814
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6815
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6816
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6817
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6818
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6819
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6820
(134.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6821
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6822
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6823
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6824
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6825
G133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6826
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6827
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6828
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6829
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6830
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6831
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6832
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6833
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6834
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6835
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6836
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6837
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6838
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6839
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6840
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6841
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_6842
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6843
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6844
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6845
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6846
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6847
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6848
134.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6849
134.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6850
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6851
134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_6852
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_6853
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6854
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6855
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6856
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_6857
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6858
G133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6859
G133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6860
133.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6861
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_6862
133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_6863
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_6864
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6865
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_6866
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_6867
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6868
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6869
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_6870
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6871
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6872
FL133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_6873
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6874
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6875
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_6876
133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_6877
133.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_6878
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_6879
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6880
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6881
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6882
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6883
G134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_6884
G133.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_6885
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6886
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6887
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6888
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6889
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6890
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6891
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6892
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6893
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6894
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6895
CL133.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_6896
CL134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_6897
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6898
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6899
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6900
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6901
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6902
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6903
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_6904
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_6905
134.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6906
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6907
134.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6908
134.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6909
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6910
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6911
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6912
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6913
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6914
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_6915
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6916
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6917
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6918
133.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_6919
CL133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6920
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6921
G133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6922
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6923
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6924
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6925
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6926
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6927
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6928
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_6929
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6930
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6931
G0.2ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_6932
CL133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6933
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6934
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6935
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6936
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_6937
133.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6938
133.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6939
133.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6940
FL133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6941
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6942
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6943
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6944
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6945
G133.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6946
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6947
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6948
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6949
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6950
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6951
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6952
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6953
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6954
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6955
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6956
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6957
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6958
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6959
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6960
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6961
133.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6962
133.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6963
133.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6964
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6965
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6966
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6967
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6968
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6969
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6970
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6971
FL133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6972
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6973
CL133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6974
CL133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6975
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6976
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6977
135.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_6978
135.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6979
135.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_6980
135.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6981
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_6982
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6983
136.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6984
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6985
CL136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6986
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6987
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6988
136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6989
136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6990
135.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6991
135.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6992
CL136.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6993
CL135.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6994
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6995
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6996
G135.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6997
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6998
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6999
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7000
135.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7001
135.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_7002
135.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7003
135.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7004
135.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7005
135.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7006
136.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7007
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7008
136.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7009
136.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7010
136.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7011
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7012
136.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7013
136.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7014
136.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_7015
136.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_7016
135.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_7017
135.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_7018
135.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_7019
135.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7020
135.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_7021
134.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_7022
135.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7023
135.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_7024
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_7025
136.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_7026
136.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_7027
136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7028
136.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7029
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7030
136.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7031
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7032
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7033
136.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7034
136.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7035
135.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7036
135.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7037
135.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7038
135.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_7039
135.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_7040
FL135.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7041
FL135.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_7042
135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_7043
135.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7044
135.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7045
FL135.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_7046
135.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7047
135.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_7048
135.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_7049
135.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_7050
135.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7051
135.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7052
CL135.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7053
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_7054
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7055
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7056
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7057
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_7058
134.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_7059
CL135.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7060
CL135.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7061
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7062
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7063
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7064
133.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_7065
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_7066
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7067
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_7068
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_7069
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_7070
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7071
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7072
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_7073
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7074
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_7075
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_7076
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_7077
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_7078
135.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7079
135.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7080
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7081
136.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7082
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7083
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7084
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7085
136.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_7086
135.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_7087
135.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_7088
135.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7089
135.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7090
135.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7091
135.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7092
134.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_7093
134.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_7094
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7095
134.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7096
134.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7097
134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7098
134.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7099
134.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7100
134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7101
134.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_7102
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_7103
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_7104
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_7105
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7106
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7107
136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7108
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7109
136.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7110
135.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7111
133.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_7112
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_7113
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7114
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_7115
FL135.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_7116
FL134.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_7117
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7118
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7119
134.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_7120
ELB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7121
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7122
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7123
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7124
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7125
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7126
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7127
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_7128
135.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7129
135.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7130
134.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7131
134.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7132
CL134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7133
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7134
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7135
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7136
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7137
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7138
133.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_7139
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_7140
134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_7141
134.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_7142
134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_7143
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_7144
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7145
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7146
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7147
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7148
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7149
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7150
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7151
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_7152
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_7153
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_7154
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_7155
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_7156
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_7157
133.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_7158
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_7159
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_7160
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_7161
134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7162
134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7163
134.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7164
134.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7165
134.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7166
FL134.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7167
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_7168
134.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_7169
134.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_7170
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7171
134.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7172
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7173
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7174
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7175
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7176
CL133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7177
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7178
133.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_7179
133.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_7180
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_7181
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_7182
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_7183
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7184
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7185
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_7186
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7187
134.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7188
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7189
134.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7190
134.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7191
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7192
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_7193
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_7194
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_7195
133.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_7196
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_7197
133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_7198
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_7199
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7200
134.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7201
134.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7202
133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_7203
133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_7204
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_7205
133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_7206
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7207
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7208
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7209
FL133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_7210
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_7211
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_7212
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7213
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_7214
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_7215
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_7216
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7217
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_7218
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_7219
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7220
133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7221
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_7222
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7223
133.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_7224
133.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7225
133.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7226
133.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7227
133.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7228
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7229
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_7230
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7231
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_7232
FL133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_7233
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7234
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7235
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7236
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_7237
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_7238
133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7239
133.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_7240
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_7241
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7242
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7243
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7244
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7245
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7246
G133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7247
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7248
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7249
G133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_7250
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7251
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7252
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7253
CL133.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7254
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_7255
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7256
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7257
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7258
133.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7259
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_7260
FLOWER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text_7261
133.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7262
133.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7263
133.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7264
133.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7265
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7266
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7267
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7268
FL133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7269
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7270
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7271
G133.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7272
G133.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7273
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7274
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7275
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7276
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_7277
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7278
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7279
133.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7280
133.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7281
133.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7282
133.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7283
133.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7284
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7285
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_7286
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_7287
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7288
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7289
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7290
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_7291
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7292
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7293
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_7294
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7295
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_7296
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_7297
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_7298
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_7299
133.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_7300
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7301
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7302
133.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7303
133.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7304
133.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7305
133.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7306
133.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_7307
133.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7308
133.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7309
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7310
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7311
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7312
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_7313
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_7314
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_7315
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_7316
G0.5ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_7317
CL133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_7318
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7319
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7320
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7321
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7322
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7323
G133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7324
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7325
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_7326
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_7327
133.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7328
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_7329
133.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_7330
133.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7331
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7332
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_7333
133.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7334
CL134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_7335
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_7336
RL140.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_7337
EL137.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_7338
134.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_7339
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_7340
133.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_7341
134.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_7342
134.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_7343
134.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7344
134.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7345
134.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7346
CL133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_7347
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7348
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_7349
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7350
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_7351
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_7352
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7353
134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_7354
135.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7355
136.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_7356
136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7357
137.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7358
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_7359
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_7360
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7361
133.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_7362
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_7363
133.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_7364
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_7365
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_7366
G0.1ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_7367
G0.3ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_7368
G.03ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_7369
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_7370
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_7371
133.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_7372
133.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_7373
133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7374
133.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_7375
133.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_7376
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_7377
133.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_7378
G133.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7379
CL133.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7380
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7381
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7382
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7383
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7384
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7385
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7386
CL133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_7387
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7388
G133.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_7389
G133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_7390
134.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7391
134.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_7392
133.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_7393
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_7394
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_7395
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7396
133.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_7397
133.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_7398
133.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_7399
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7400
133.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7401
133.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_7402
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7403
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_7404
133.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7405
133.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7406
133.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7407
133.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_7408
133.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_7409
133.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7410
133.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7411
133.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_7412
133.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7413
133.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_7414
133.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_7415
133.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7416
133.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_7417
133.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_7418
133.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_7419
133.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_7420
133.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_7421
134.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_7422
EL143.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7423
EL141.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7424
EL144.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7425
EL144.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7426
136.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7427
136.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7428
135.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_7429
136.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7430
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7431
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_7432
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_7433
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_7434
FL136.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_7435
RL145.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7436
EL141.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_7437
EL141.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7438
EL142.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7439
EL145.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7440
EL145.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7441
135.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7442
135.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_7443
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_7444
135.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7445
135.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7446
135.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7447
135.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_7448
136.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_7449
136.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7450
136.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7451
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7452
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7453
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7454
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7455
136.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7456
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7457
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7458
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7459
136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7460
D.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_7461
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7462
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7463
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7464
FL136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7465
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7466
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7467
FL136.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7468
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7469
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7470
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7471
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7472
CL136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7473
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7474
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7475
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7476
G134.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_7477
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7478
135.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7479
135.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_7480
135.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_7481
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7482
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7483
G136.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_7484
136.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7485
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7486
136.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7487
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7488
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7489
FL137.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_7490
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7491
CL136.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7492
CL136.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_7493
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_7494
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_7495
136.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7496
136.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7497
136.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7498
G136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7499
G136.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7500
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7501
136.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_7502
136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7503
136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_7504
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7505
136.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7506
136.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7507
136.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7508
136.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7509
136.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_7510
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7511
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7512
G136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7513
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7514
136.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7515
136.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7516
136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7517
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7518
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7519
136.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7520
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7521
136.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_7522
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_7523
136.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_7524
136.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7525
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7526
136.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_7527
136.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_7528
136.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7529
136.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7530
136.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_7531
135.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_7532
135.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7533
135.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_7534
135.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_7535
135.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7536
135.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_7537
135.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_7538
135.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7539
135.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7540
135.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7541
135.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7542
135.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7543
135.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_7544
135.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_7545
136.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7546
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7547
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7548
136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7549
136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7550
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7551
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7552
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7553
136.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_7554
136.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7555
136.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7556
136.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7557
136.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7558
136.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7559
136.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7560
CL136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7561
CL136.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7562
CL136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7563
CL136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7564
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7565
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7566
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7567
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7568
136.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7569
136.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7570
136.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7571
136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7572
136.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7573
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7574
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_7575
136.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_7576
136.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_7577
136.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7578
136.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_7579
136.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7580
136.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7581
136.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_7582
136.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7583
136.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_7584
136.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_7585
136.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7586
136.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7587
136.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7588
136.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7589
136.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7590
136.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7591
136.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7592
136.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7593
136.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7594
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7595
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7596
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7597
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7598
WST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7599
G136.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_7600
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7601
136.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_7602
136.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_7603
136.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7604
136.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7605
G136.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7606
CL136.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7607
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7608
CL136.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7609
ICP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7610
136.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7611
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7612
CL136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7613
COM

AutoCAD SHX Text_7614
G136.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7615
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7616
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7617
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7618
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7619
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7620
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_7621
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_7622
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_7623
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_7624
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_7625
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_7626
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_7627
DP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7628
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7629
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7630
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7631
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7632
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7633
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7634
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7635
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7636
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7637
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7638
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7639
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7640
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7641
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7642
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7643
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7644
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7645
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7646
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7647
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7648
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7649
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7650
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7651
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7652
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7653
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7654
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7655
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7656
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7657
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7658
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7659
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7660
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7661
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7662
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7663
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7664
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7665
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7666
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7667
0001

AutoCAD SHX Text_7668
134.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7669
0003

AutoCAD SHX Text_7670
134.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7671
0002

AutoCAD SHX Text_7672
134.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7673
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7674
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7675
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7676
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7677
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7678
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7679
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7680
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7681
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7682
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7683
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7684
Hyd

AutoCAD SHX Text_7685
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7686
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7687
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7688
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7689
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7690
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7691
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_7692
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_7693
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7694
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_7695
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7696
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7697
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7698
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7699
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7700
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7701
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7702
I/R

AutoCAD SHX Text_7703
I/R

AutoCAD SHX Text_7704
I/R

AutoCAD SHX Text_7705
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7706
Hyd

AutoCAD SHX Text_7707
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7708
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7709
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7710
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7711
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7712
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7713
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7714
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7715
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7716
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7717
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7718
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7719
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7720
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7721
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7722
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7723
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7724
I/R

AutoCAD SHX Text_7725
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_7726
I/R

AutoCAD SHX Text_7727
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7728
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7729
Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_7730
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7731
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7732
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7733
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7734
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7735
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7736
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7737
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7738
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7739
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7740
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7741
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7742
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7743
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7744
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7745
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7746
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_7747
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7748
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7749
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_7750
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_7751
TPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7752
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7753
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_7754
TPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7755
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_7756
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7757
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7758
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_7759
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_7760
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7761
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7762
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_7763
Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_7764
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_7765
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_7766
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_7767
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7768
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_7769
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7770
TPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7771
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_7772
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7773
TPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7774
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7775
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7776
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_7777
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_7778
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7779
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7780
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7781
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_7782
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_7783
Drainage Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_7784
Drainage Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_7785
Drainage Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_7786
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7787
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7788
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7789
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7790
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_7791
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7792
Drainage Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_7793
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7794
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_7795
Setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7796
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_7797
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7798
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7799
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7800
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7801
I/R

AutoCAD SHX Text_7802
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_7803
52 50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7804
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7805
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7806
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_7807
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7808
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_7809
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7810
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_7811
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7812
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7813
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_7814
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_7815
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7816
EAGLE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_7817
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7818
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_7819
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_7820
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7821
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7822
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7823
Offices

AutoCAD SHX Text_7824
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7825
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_7826
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_7827
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7828
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7829
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_7830
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7831
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7832
Municipal

AutoCAD SHX Text_7833
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7834
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7835
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7836
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7837
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7838
2 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7839
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_7840
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7841
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7842
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_7843
Carnegie

AutoCAD SHX Text_7844
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7845
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_7846
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_7847
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7848
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7849
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7850
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7851
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7852
Market Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_7853
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7854
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7855
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7856
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7857
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7858
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7859
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_7860
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7861
11 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7862
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7863
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7864
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_7865
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7866
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7867
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_7868
25a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7869
DUTTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_7870
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7871
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7872
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7873
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7874
Town Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_7875
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7876
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_7877
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_7878
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7879
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7880
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7881
119a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7882
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7883
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7884
Gladstone Heights

AutoCAD SHX Text_7885
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7886
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_7887
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7888
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7889
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7890
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7891
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_7892
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7893
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7894
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_7895
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_7896
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7897
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7898
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7899
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7900
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_7901
140.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7902
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7903
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7904
76a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7905
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7906
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7907
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_7908
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7909
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7910
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7911
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7912
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7913
Public Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_7914
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_7915
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7916
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7917
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_7918
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7919
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_7920
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7921
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7922
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7923
WILLOW STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_7924
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7925
Car

AutoCAD SHX Text_7926
UNION STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_7927
EDGAR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_7928
Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_7929
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_7930
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7931
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7932
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7933
29a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7934
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7935
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7936
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7937
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7938
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7939
13 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7940
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7941
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7942
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7943
27 29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7944
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7945
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7946
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7947
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7948
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7949
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7950
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7951
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7952
Broadway

AutoCAD SHX Text_7953
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7954
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7955
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7956
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7957
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7958
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7959
8 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7960
8 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7961
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7962
Telephone

AutoCAD SHX Text_7963
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7964
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7965
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7966
Exchange

AutoCAD SHX Text_7967
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7968
Regency Bar

AutoCAD SHX Text_7969
2 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7970
Arndale

AutoCAD SHX Text_7971
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_7972
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7973
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7974
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_7975
55 to 59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7976
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7977
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7978
Empire House

AutoCAD SHX Text_7979
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7980
ED & Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7981
10 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7982
Chambers

AutoCAD SHX Text_7983
Equity

AutoCAD SHX Text_7984
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7985
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_7986
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7987
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7988
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7989
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead

AutoCAD SHX Text_7990
the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office Crown Copyright.

AutoCAD SHX Text_7991
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of

AutoCAD SHX Text_7992
Lancashire County Council. Licence No 100023320.

AutoCAD SHX Text_7993
to prosecution or civil proceedings.


Page 132



ltem 11

Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 15 June 2017

Report of the Director of Community Services

| Part |

Electoral Divisions affected:
Ribble Valley South West;
and South Ribble East

40mph Speed Limit Revocation Order Branch Road, Mellor Brook, Mellor
(Appendices 'A' and 'B' refer)

Contact for further information:
Matthew Hargreaves, (01772) 531254, Operations Engineer
matthew.hargreaves@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

This report sets out a proposal to revoke a 40mph Speed Limit Order (SLO) along
the entire length of Branch Road, Mellor Brook, Mellor. The road is signed as a
30mph limit and has been for many years. Following enquiries from the police, the
original 40mph SLO has been found but a corresponding 40mph Revocation Order
cannot be located. In order for police enforcement to take place, a new 40mph
Revocation Order is required. Branch Road will revert to restricted road status
(30mph speed limit) by virtue of its existing system of street lighting. No objections
have been received. A copy of the proposed 40mph Revocation Order is attached at
Appendix 'A' and the extents are shown on the plan at Appendix 'B'.

This is deemed to be a Key Decision and the provisions of Standing Order No. 25
have been complied with.

Recommendation
The Cabinet is asked to approve the making of a 40mph Revocation Order which

revokes the existing 40mph Speed Limit Order along the whole length of Branch
Road, Mellor Brook.

Background and Advice

Lancashire County Council has received requests from the Police to confirm a
30mph speed limit on Branch Road to allow for speed enforcement activity to take
place following community concerns. The original 40mph SLO for this length of road
is to hand but a 40mph Speed Limit Revocation Order that would support
enforcement of the signed 30 mph speed limit cannot be located so it is proposed to
make a new 40mph Speed Limit Revocation Order to confirm the extinguishment of
the 40mph speed limit. This will have the effect of confirming a 30mph speed limit on

Lancashire

County dfe%.
Page 133 Council tﬁgg



mailto:matthew.hargreaves@lancashire.gov.uk

Branch Road by virtue of the existing system of street lighting in accordance with
section 82(1) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. The proposal makes no
changes to the existing extents of the signed 30mph speed limit although some
minor changes to the existing signs on Branch Road are required. The proposal will
allow Lancashire Constabulary to enforce the speed limit and thereby address
community concerns regarding vehicles driving too fast along Branch Road.
Consultations

e Informal Consultation
No informal consultation has taken place as this proposal makes no material
changes to the existing speed limits as signed on Branch Road and seeks to correct
an anomaly within the current SLO records.

e Formal Consultation
A formal consultation was carried out between 6 April 2017 and 4 May 2017 for the
40mph Revocation Order by way of an advert which was placed in the local press.
The County Councillors, District Councils and the Police were informed. The
consultation raised no objections.
Implications:
This item has the following implications, as indicated:
Risk management
The proposal seeks to remove an anomaly within the existing traffic regulation order
records for Branch Road. Failure to implement the recommendations set out in the
report would prevent the Police from being able to enforce the speed limit which
could lead to the County Council being criticised for not supporting the Police or the
local community.
Financial

The cost of the changes to the existing signage will be met from the 2017/18 Ribble
Valley District Existing Signs and Road Markings Revenue Budget.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 134



Appendix ‘A’

ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984
LANCASHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
(BRANCH ROAD, MELLOR BROOK, MELLOR, RIBBLE VALLEY AND SOUTH
RIBBLE BOROUGH) (REVOCATION) ORDER 201*

The County Council of Lancashire (“the Council”) in exercise of its powers under
Section 83(2) of and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984,
as amended (“the Act”) and of all other enabling powers, after consultation with the
Chief Officer of Police in accordance with Part Ill of Schedule 9 to the Act, hereby
make the following Order: -

1. Revocation
The "The Lancashire County Council (40 M.P.H. Speed Limit) (No. 1) Order
1978" is hereby revoked in full.

2. Commencement of Order

This Order shall come into force on the and

may be cited as the “Lancashire County Council (Branch Road, Mellor Brook,
Mellor, Ribble Valley And South Ribble Borough) (Revocation) Order 201*”.

*kkkkkkk

Dated this ** day of ***.

THE COMMON SEAL of the Lancashire County
Council was hereunto affixed pursuant to the
Scheme of Delegation to Chief Officers [BR
following a decision made on **/**/**** by the
Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport

Authorised Signatory

Page 135



Page 136



Appendlx B

Hawthorn
Cottages

~L_/
LoweryBroadtree J
ZFarm

M

-
LN

L F]
-" 4

o -
| Q lssues

e, Lower Intack Jh_ 7 T
Farm ! £ =
- B kY
e . P =
i, Sks b 'S
\! ~ g

lssuesy -._._j3=‘-’c.¢r

W ERETE R
e e /J
i

0l f
LI BRANCH ROAD

Tl

L
:

TR
= |""ll ||| \ ;Ill""l' '”‘l
'lltll b ;I.‘.-I"'\.L 't (RRRRR O \ \Ln“r 'l"ll;l'
1" 15 _,T.-\ I

J i, _|| | |

%jqurjdll |q| "\ ki.“li‘.,ﬂﬂ'fﬁp’lﬂpu. 'ﬁjpu \r,j_ 'I
| ', "" | I|I ! I|I g i

I | ¥, |/ ! ‘. L W
iR "'. '-, B ". ISR

s

b

0 305

LmrECu-_rlr_,'Caml Mmdﬂrﬂé}mﬁmn@mm1mm 1'.'

Balshan

Branch Road, Mellor Brook, Mellor Ribble Valley/South Ribble Districts

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
[ d
. of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.
Lancash‘ [E | Date: 15/03/2017 | o/Herviafsys Saneny Offce ©) Coun Copron.
'3 Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
County :’ ¢ Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C
Y
l

Council ;; Centre of map: 364031:430820

\




Page 138



ltem 12

Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 15 June 2017

Report of the Director of Corporate Commissioning

| Part |

Electoral Divisions affected:
Rossendale South; and
Rossendale West

Upgrade of Existing Zebra Crossing to Puffin Crossing — Broadway,
Haslingden
(Appendices 'A' and 'B' refer)

Contact for further information:
Martin Sephton, (01772) 533717, Highways Design Engineer
martin.sephton@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

A proposed scheme to upgrade the existing Zebra Crossing on Broadway,
Haslingden to a Puffin crossing was originally included in the 2015-16 Road Safety
Programme.

There are long queues of traffic at busy times of day on Broadway due to the many
pedestrians using the existing zebra crossing outside Haslingden High School. A
pedestrian Puffin Crossing at this location will better manage the current conflict
between pedestrians and traffic.

The proposal has an approved capital allocation of £58,000 in the 2015/16 Road
Safety Programme.

This is deemed to be a Key Decision and the provisions of Standing Order No. 25
have been complied with.

Recommendation

The Cabinet is asked to give approval for the removal of the existing Zebra Crossing
and construction of a new Puffin crossing and associated road markings on
Broadway Haslingden, from a point 5.5m east of the centreline of Devon Crescent
for a length of 41 metres eastwards as shown on the plan at Appendix 'B'. The
proposal has an approved capital allocation of £58,000 in the 2015/16 Road Safety
Programme.

Lancashire

County =D
Page 139 Council {ts'-'@.'g{)

»



mailto:martin.sephton@lancashire.gov.uk

Background and Advice

The proposal shown at Appendix 'A' was developed to reduce conflict between
pedestrian and motorised users of the highway and improve traffic flow on
Broadway, Haslingden, outside Haslingden High School.

There are long queues of traffic at busy times of day on Broadway due to the many
pedestrians using the existing zebra crossing outside the school. A signal controlled
pedestrian Puffin Crossing will improve traffic flow whilst reducing the current
pedestrian/vehicle conflict at the crossing.

Under current design guidelines a new signal controlled crossing would have to be
sited further away from the junction of Broadway with Devon Crescent, compared to
the existing Zebra Crossing position. It was recognised that this would lead to a
small reduction of parking spaces on the south side of Broadway compared to the
existing situation.

The scheme is included in the 2015-16 approved Road Safety Programme with an
allocation of £58,000.

Consultations

The proposal shown at Appendix 'A' was advertised in the local press and by site
notices between Friday 17 February and Friday 17 March 2017.

Consultees included:
1. County Councillors for the divisions affected
2. Police/Fire/Ambulance services.
3. Local Residents,
4. Haslingden High School and Haslingden Broadway Primary School

Two objections were received:-
Objection No.1

A resident of Broadway objected on the grounds that the new crossing would impede
access to his driveway and that he would lose the ability to park conveniently outside
his house.

Response

The proposed crossing point is well away from the resident's driveway and so does
not impede access. Although the zig-zag markings for the proposed crossing do run
across his driveway they do not impede access. The resident cannot currently park
directly outside his house due to the zig-zag lines associated with the current zebra
crossing, which prohibit parking at any time. Currently, on the north side of
Broadway, there is room for 2 cars to park legally within 20 metres of the resident's
property, without obstructing the resident's access. Under the proposal, this will be
reduced to one space. There will still be on-road parking available on the south side
of Broadway. The property does have an existing large driveway/garage.

Page 140



Objection No. 2

A parent of a child attending Broadway Primary School has complained about loss of
parking spaces on the south side of Broadway, between Devon Crescent and the
Primary School, due to the proposal. She states that there is limited parking in the
area, and that the proposal will make parking more difficult at busy times.

Response

The existing parking bay on the south side of Broadway between Devon Crescent
and the Primary School is not marked out for individual spaces. However, by
observations and based on the overall length of this bay, it is estimated that 20
average size cars could park here. The proposal shown at Appendix 'A" would
reduce this by 5-6 cars compared to the existing situation.

In light of the objection, the design has been revised to minimise the parking loss on
the south side of Broadway. The revised design at Appendix 'B' would result in 2
parking spaces being lost compared to the existing situation. It is felt that this is a
reasonable arrangement in view of the benefits to traffic flow and reduction of
pedestrian/vehicle conflict at the crossing.

There is further parking provision available opposite the Primary School on the north
side of Broadway and in Knowsley Road, as well as further west than Devon
Crescent on Broadway, and in Grasmere Road to the east of the Primary School.

The Primary School also benefits from a school crossing patrol, to help pupils cross
Broadway, which operates at the start and end of the school day.

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

Without implementation of the proposals detailed in this report, the current conflict
between pedestrian and motorised Highway users will continue at this site, with
ongoing risk of pedestrian injury. This proposal will improve the flow of traffic along

Broadway, Haslingden, at busy times of day.

Financial

The proposal has an approved capital allocation of £58,000 in the 2015/16 Road
Safety Programme Capital Budget.

List of Background Papers
Paper Date Contact/Tel

None

Page 141



August 2016 Martin Sephton 01772-
533717

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 142



N 2 N — . . J 4
Based on Ordnance Survey Mapping with the Permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office Crown a nt I - S kl d L
Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. OS

N License 100023320.

Tank

surfacing

parking
bay

anti-skid

‘ surfacing
\/\/

D

5-6 parking
spaces lost

new (red)

Puffin
Crossing

- remove old
Zebra
Crossing

€

10
I

[ L e |
Eul.nr‘g"ﬁ‘c!d
| i

B
o

H] P,

N P

NOT TO SCAL

et | abed

425‘—53'“‘
orih Hag,
] 1

BROADWAY
PRIMARY
SCHOOL

.

No.| DATE | AMENDMENT DETAILS CHECKED BY DRAWN BY

REVISIONS
Lancashire

County ‘%’?-
Council S@f

Design & Construction

PROJECT TITLE

BROADWAY HASLINGDEN
PROPOSED NEW PUFFIN CROSSING
DRAWING TITLE
GA & LOCATION DRAWING CABINET REPORT APPENDIX A
HAS LI N G D E N DRAWN BY PROJECT No.

MWS

HIGH SCHOOL APP L N D |X A CHECKED BY DRAWING No.

BROP‘O . \/ DATE 58.02.17 CH M1PW418
| ~ NOT TO SCALE | 1= e nomounmes "8 o 01 oF o1
LI

410




Page 144



G| abed

N\ NN N\ ANEAN

Based on Ordnance Survey Mapping with the Permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office Crown
Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. OS
License 100023320.

anti-skid
surfacing

N

parking
bay

anti-skid
surfacing

2 parking

new spaces lost

Crossing NOT TO SCAL

- Puffin
e >> e
/

)

; HASLINGDEN

~ HIGH SCHOOL

, 2
—

BROADWAY
PRIMARY

SCHOOL

.

APPENDIX B
NOT TO SCALE

- = : R s‘l,ﬁ'.f?’“: d
B "'__

' LOCATION PLAN} =

el

U
i

Tl
Crakenhead:
< Waod:

b g

+ Possengale 1
3 Goff Club y

No.| DATE | AMENDMENT DETAILS CHECKED BY DRAWN BY

REVISIONS

Lancashire
County ‘@’?-
Council %gzg;})

Design & Construction

PROJECTTITLE BROADWAY HASLINGDEN

PROPOSED NEW PUFFIN CROSSING

DRAWING TITLE

GA & LOCATION DWG- CABINET REPORT APPENDIX B

DRAWN BY MWS PROJECT No.
CHECKED BY DRAWING No.
CHM1PWA418
08.02.17
S .
SCALE@ AL |NDIVIDUAL PANELS HEET No
CLIENT No. SHEET NO. 01 OF 01




Page 146



ltem 13

Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 15 June 2017

Report submitted by the Director of Community Services

| Part |

Electoral Division affected:
Mid Rossendale;

Burnley Road and Goodshawfold Road, Loveclough - Prohibition and
Restriction of Waiting
(Appendices 'A' and 'B' refer)

Contact for further information:

Brenda Garside, (01772) 531274, Community Services (Lancashire Highway
Services)

brenda.garside@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

This report sets out a proposal to introduce a Traffic Regulation Order to Prohibit
Waiting at Burnley Road and Goodshawfold Road, Loveclough and to Restrict
Waiting at Burnley Road, Loveclough as shown on the attached schedule at
Appendix 'A" and location plans at Appendix 'B', and to which objections have been
received.

Recommendation
The Cabinet is asked to approve the making of a Traffic Regulation Order which

prohibits waiting and restricts waiting as set out in the schedule attached at
Appendix 'A' and as shown on the plan at Appendix 'B'.

Background and Advice

The junction of Burnley Road with Goodshawfold Road in Loveclough has a Traffic
Regulation Order (TRO) to restrict waiting but the road markings do not accurately
reflect the descriptions in the TRO. After receiving requests to re-mark the
restrictions, it was considered necessary to consult with residents who would have
become accustomed to the existing layout and may have been unaware of the actual
extents of restrictions as set out in the TRO. This represented an opportunity to
review the junction requirements and prepare a new TRO to meet the needs of
highway users from both a safety and community viewpoint. The proposals are to
introduce a 'prohibition of waiting' (double yellow line) at the junction of Burnley Road
and Goodshawfold Road and a 'restriction of waiting' (single yellow line) on Burnley
Road. The existing TRO would be revoked. The proposals put forward seek to
improve safety for all highway traffic, both vehicular and pedestrian.

Lancashire

County dfe%.
Page 147 Council zﬁ:___gg



mailto:brenda.garside@lancashire.gov.uk

The proposals were supported by the police who attend the Rossendale Traffic
Liaison meeting prior to informal and subsequently formal consultation.

Consultations

Requests have been received for a restriction to be made to prohibit waiting at the
junction of Burnley Road and Goodshawfold Road from residents of Goodshawfold
who had experienced visibility difficulties when accessing Burnley Road due to
parking near to the junction. Investigations revealed that there is an existing Traffic
Regulation Order (TRO) which includes a restriction of waiting (single yellow line)
operating on Monday to Saturday between 8am and 6pm on the west side of Burnley
Road extending to a point 20 metres north and 20 metres south of the centre of the
junction and into Goodshawfold Road on both sides for a length of approximately 18
metres when measured from the centre of Burnley Road. However, a road safety
scheme has been introduced in this vicinity which has inadvertently affected the
integrity of the TRO road markings.

An informal consultation was carried out in January 2016 which proposed to
reinstate the existing order, refresh the single yellow lines on site to reflect the
original lengths and descriptions and also refresh the hatching and junction give way
markings in order to improve the sight lines and increase safety for highway users.
The informal consultation included the Police, County Councillor and Rossendale
Borough Council.

The informal consultation received 11 responses in favour of the proposal and no
responses in objection. Of the 11 responses in favour, 5 requested that the order
include upgrading the existing single yellow lines to double yellow lines (prohibition
of waiting) on Goodshawfold Road at the junction as they had experienced access
difficulties at certain times of the day, evening and night. The informal consultation
and responses followed by the revised proposals were discussed with the Police at
Rossendale Traffic Liaison meetings in November 2016 and March 2017 and the
proposed changes to the original order, which would address the residents'
concerns, were supported.

This proposal was the subject of a formal consultation and was advertised in the
local press and on site between 7 April 2017 and 5 May 2017 and is the subject of
this report. The schedule of the proposal is attached at Appendix 'A' and a location
plan is attached at Appendix 'B'. The County Councillor, District Councillors and
Rossendale Borough Council were consulted.

Two letters of objection were received in response to the formal consultation, both
from residents of Burnley Road to the south of the junction with Goodshawfold Road.

Objections
Objection 1

1. Access to and from the junction could be improved by a reduction in the speed
limit which is currently 40mph on Burnley Road.

2. The proposed restrictions outside his property will have a detrimental effect on the
property value.

Page 148



3. Parking will still be required by the residents and nearby businesses.
4. Some drivers may now choose to park on the opposite side of Burnley Road thus
facing an increase in risk as they would need to cross this busy main road.

County Council Response

1. A reduction in the speed limit would not be supported as a comprehensive review
was carried out in 2008 of all category 'A' and 'B' roads in Lancashire and no
changes were recommended for this length of Burnley Road (A680).

2. The objector's property is adjacent to the existing section of hatching which tapers
from the junction in both directions. The proposal does not introduce any waiting
restrictions outside this property and therefore their claim of a reduced value is not
supported.

3. The proposal changes the existing restriction from a single yellow line to a double
yellow line (prohibition of waiting) for a length of 10 metres in each direction along
Burnley Road when measured from the centreline of Goodshawfold Road. This is
consistent with the advice and rules given in the Highway Code in relation to parking
near junctions.

4. There is no history of pedestrian collisions at this location on Burnley Road. If
residents choose to park in a different location then they must take appropriate
precautions when crossing the road as they do now.

Objection 2

1. The proposals will increase parking along Goodshawfold Road resulting in more
traffic down a very narrow road which is used regularly by large vehicles and HGV's
2. The proposals will force traffic to park further down Burnley Road thus blocking
the view out of the junction even more. Currently drivers park near the junction, but
further down there are no dwellings and the view for traffic is clear thus drivers can
time when to manoeuvre out of the junction. If the restrictions are introduced, cars
will park lower down Burnley Road and the clear section around the junction is not
enough for vehicles to access safely.

3. The problem with this road is its speed limit, not the parking.

4. Accidents at this junction are as a result of bad driving and not due to parked cars.

County Council Response

1. The proposal does not change the overall extent of the restricted sections on
Burnley Road or Goodshawfold Road. The proposal upgrades a section of the
existing single yellow line restriction to a double yellow line (prohibition of waiting) for
a length of 10 metres in each direction along Burnley Road when measured from the
centreline of Goodshawfold Road. It also upgrades the existing single yellow lines on
Goodshawfold Road to double yellow lines. The proposal will improve access at the
junction for all traffic and has taken into consideration the regular HGV traffic along
this road.

2. The critical sight lines are those located immediately around the junction as
vehicles approach and these have been calculated using nationally adopted
guidelines to assess junction visibility requirements. On-street parking further away
from the junction should not impact on the safe operation of the junction.

Page 149



3. A reduction in the speed limit would not be supported as a comprehensive review
was carried out in 2008 of all category 'A' and 'B' roads in Lancashire and no
changes were recommended for this length of Burnley Road (A680).

4. The proposed restrictions have been considered as part of the safety review which
includes collision data shared by Lancashire Constabulary. Driver error is often cited
as a contributory factor to collisions on the highway and it is unlikely that this will be
completely removed. However the proposals seek to improve visibility in order to
reduce the opportunities for driver error at this junction.

Conclusion

The proposals have taken into consideration the requirement of the residents of
Burnley Road for on street parking whilst addressing the concerns of many residents
of Goodshawfold Road who access this junction on a daily basis. There is no change
to the total length of the restrictions or the length of hatched areas and the upgrading
of sections of single yellow line to double yellow line meets residents' requests and
the sight lines have been maintained.

The proposal seeks to reinstate the extent of the original order with some additional
prohibitions at the junction to improve the sight lines and increase safety for highway
users.

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Financial

The cost of the proposal will be met from the 2017/18 Rossendale New Signs and
Road Markings Revenue budget.

Risk management

The prohibition of waiting and restriction of waiting proposals are sought to maintain
sight lines and manoeuvring space at the junction and thus improving the flow of
traffic along sections of highway in Rossendale and increasing safety for all users of
the highway.

If the proposals are authorised, the works on the highway will be carried out in
accordance with LCC Health and Safety Policy and Guidelines.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 150



LIST OF SCHEDULES

10.01 No Waiting at Any Time
11.075 No Waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm

Schedule No 10.01  No Waiting at Any Time
Burnley Road,

the west side from a point 10 metres north from its junction with the centre line of Goodshawfold
Road for a distance of 20 metres in a southerly direction

Goodshawfold Road,

both sides from its junction with the centre line of Burnley Road for a distance of 18 metres in a

westerly direction

Schedule No 11.075 No Waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm

Burnley Road,

(1) the west side from a point 10 metres north from its junction with the centre line of
Goodshawfold Road for a distance of 10 metres in a northerly direction

(i1) the west side from a point 10 metres south from its junction with the centre line of

Goodshawfold Road for a distance of 10 metres in a southerly direction

SCHEDULE OF REVOCATIONS

Items to be revoked from:

LANCASHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL (ROSSENDALE AREA) (ON STREET PARKING
PLACES, PROHIBITION AND RESTRICTION OF WAITING) CONSOLIDATION
ORDER 2009

No Waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm
Burnley Road

(1) the west side from its junction with Goodshaw Fold Road for a distance of 15 metres in a
southerly direction

(i1) the west side from its junction with Goodshaw Fold Road for a distance of 15 metres in a
northerly direction

Goodshaw Fold Road

both sides from its junction with Burnley Road for a distance of 10 metres in a westerly direction

Page 151



Page 152



9'.Lfeﬁe.

Braeside

NO WAITING MON-SAT
8AM-6PM

NO WAITING MON-SAT
8AM-6PM

k "‘ADB'UR'N[EY‘ROAD“"”'

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

———— No Waiting At Any Tim
No Waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm

|

- . Burnley Road jucntion = S 1:500
LEI"IEEShII’E Goodshawfold Road Community Services DATE 09/03/2017
Cm n.ty F;F‘}b LOVGClOUgh Phil Barrett DRAWING No.
o (et Rossendale Director Community Services
CGUHCH E:E:'J P.O. Box 100, County Hall, s
PRESTON PR1 OLD




Page 154



ltem 14

Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 15 June 2017

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services

| Part |

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Report of Key Decisions taken by the former Leader of the County Council,
Deputy Leader of the County Council and Cabinet Members

Contact for further information:
Janet Nuttall, (01772) 533110, Business Support Officer
janet.nuttall@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Key Decisions taken by the then Leader of the County Council, Deputy Leader of
the County Council and Cabinet Members, since the previous meeting of Cabinet
held on 19 January 2017. The key decisions set out below were considered by the
Executive Scrutiny Committee at its meetings on 17 and 31 January 2017, 7 March
2017 and 4 April 2017.

Recommendation

The Cabinet is recommended to note the decisions detailed below.

1) Key Decisions taken by the former Leader of the County Council
The following decision was taken on 19 January 2017:
Provision of PAT Testing Services to Lancashire County Council

The Leader of the County Council approved the recommendation as set out in
the full report.

This report was dealt with under Part Il. The full report is not available for
publication as it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. The report contains
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information). It is considered that in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

i
Lancashire

Page 155 Council ('9‘333



mailto:janet.nuttall@lancashire.gov.uk

2)

The following decision was taken on 4 April 2017:
Core Systems Implementations and Funding Requirements

The Leader of the County Council approved the recommendations as set out in
the full report.

This report was dealt with under Part Il. The full report is not available for
publication as it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. The report contains
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information). It is considered that in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Key Decisions taken by the former Deputy Leader of the County Council
The following decisions were taken on 9 March 2017:
Procurement of Water and Wastewater Retail Services

The Deputy Leader of the County Council approved the recommendations as set
out in the full report.

This report was dealt with under Part Il. The full report is not available for
publication as it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. The report contains
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information). It is considered that in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

County Hall Complex
The Deputy Leader of the County Council approved:

(i) The investment of £1.586m in order to fund several elements of works
classified as in need of immediate attention due to a high risk of failure, or as
a regulatory requirement of the redevelopment works currently underway to
the County Hall Old Building as part of the ongoing redevelopment of the
County Hall Complex; and

(i) The use of three funding sources as set out in the table in section 2 of the
report to fund this investment.

The following decisions were taken on 13 March 2017:

Page 156



3)

4)

Capital Funding for 30 Hours Extended Entitlement
The Deputy Leader of the County Council approved:

(i) that the Early Years Capital Grant Funding received from the Education
Funding Agency be added to the 2017-2018 Children and Young People's
block of the Capital Programme;

(ii) that the Early Years Capital Grant Funding is distributed in line with the legal
agreements.

Pension Fund - Re-profiling the Council's contributions

The Deputy Leader of the County Council approved the recommendations as set
out in the full report.

This report was dealt with under Part Il. The full report is not available for
publication as it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. The report contains
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information). It is considered that in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Key Decision taken by the former Deputy Leader of the County Council, the
former Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing and the former Cabinet
Member for Children Young People and Schools

The following decision was taken on 1 February 2017:
Delivery of the Healthy Child Programme

The Deputy Leader of the County Council, the Cabinet Member for Health and
Wellbeing and the Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools,
approved the recommendations as set out in the full report.

This report was dealt with under Part Il. The full report is not available for
publication as it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 3 and 5 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. The report contains
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information) and information in respect of
which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal
proceedings. It is considered that in all the circumstances of the case the public
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing
the information.

Key Decisions taken by the former Deputy Leader of the County Council
and the former Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport

Page 157



5)

The following decision was taken in 1 February 2017:
Skelmersdale Rail Link

The Deputy Leader of the County Council and the Cabinet Member for Highways
and Transport approved the recommendations as set out in the full report.

This report was dealt with under Part 1l. The full report is not available for
publication as it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. The report contains
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information). It is considered that in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

The following decision was taken on 10 April 2017:

Procurement Report - Request for Approval to Commence Procurement
Exercises

The Deputy Leader of the County Council approved the commencement of the
procurement exercise for the provision of insurance services for the Farington
and Thornton Waste Recovery Parks.

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport approved the commencement
of the procurement exercise for the supply and delivery of street lighting
materials.

Key Decision taken by the former Deputy Leader of the County Council and
the former Cabinet Member for Environment, Planning and Cultural
Services

The following decisions were taken on 9 March 2017:

Assessment of Applications for the Countryside Sites and Implications for
the County Council

The Deputy Leader of the County Council and the Cabinet Member for
Environment, Planning and Cultural Services

(i) Approved the proposals with a view to effecting transfers as soon as
practicable for 13 of the 84 sites to five organisations; and that the seven
individuals/organisations who have not met the agreed criteria be thanked for
their interest and informed that their proposals will not be taken forward.

(i) Approved the proposals in relation to the 71 countryside sites for which the
County Council has not received any acceptable expressions of interest; and
that the County Council manages the assets at minimum cost where public
access is maintained and the sites are safe and free from liability whilst these
recommendations are progressed.

Page 158



6)

(iii) Approved the updating of the County Council's Medium Term Financial
Strategy for managing the retained assets at a net cost of £0.197m per
annum from 1 April 2018.

(iv)Authorised officers to continue to develop proposals to further reduce costs
for maintaining the retained sites by, for example, generating income,
attracting grants for the sites and continuing to work with other organisations
who may be able to assist with maintaining the sites.

Operation of Household Waste Recycling Centres and Waste Transfer
Stations from April 2018

The Deputy Leader of the County Council and the Cabinet Member for
Environment, Planning and Cultural Services approved the recommendations as
set out in the full report.

This report was dealt with under Part Il. The full report is not available for
publication as it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. The report contains
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information) and Information relating to any
consultation or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, in
connection with any labour relations matter arising between the authority or a
Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority.

Key Decision taken by the former Deputy Leader of the County Council and
the former Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services

The following decision was taken on 27 March 2017:

Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) Grant Funding
for Refuges, Specialist Accommodation Based Support and Service Reform

The Deputy Leader of the County Council and the Cabinet Member for Adult and
Community Services approved the recommendations as set out in the full report.

This decision was implemented immediately for the purposes of Standing Order
34(3) as any delay could have adversely affected the execution of the County
Council's responsibilities. The reason for this is that some of the providers named
in the bid, who will provide the services through SLA's with their district councils,
are in a position where they need the agreements, or the work to develop the
agreements, to start from 1 April 2017 at the latest.

This report was dealt with under Part Il. The full report is not available for
publication as it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. The report contains
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information). It is considered that in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Page 159



7)

8)

9)

Key Decision taken by the former Cabinet Member for Children, Young
People and Schools and the former Cabinet Member for Adult and
Community Services

The following decision was taken on 23 January 2017:

Procurement Report - Request for Approval to Commence Procurement
Exercises

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools and the Cabinet
Member for Adult and Community Services approved the commencement of the
procurement exercises in respect of:

(i) The Supply of Maintained Equipment Services

The Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services approved the
commencement of the procurement exercises in respect of:

(i) The Provision of Crisis Services in Central Lancashire

Key Decision taken by the former Cabinet Member for Adult and
Community and the former Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and
Schools

The following decision was taken on 8 March 2017:

Funding for Supported Housing for Care Leavers and Young People who
are Homeless

The Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services and the Cabinet Member
for Children, Young People and Schools approved:

(i) The pooling of £1.35M of Supporting People funding and £3.6M of Children's
Social Care funding for supported accommodation for young people;

(i) That services can be accessed by 16 to 21 year olds to whom the County
Council owes, or has previously owed, a statutory duty under the Children Act
1989 and that in exceptional circumstances, where there is capacity, other
young people who find themselves homeless between the ages of 18 and 21
years old can access services on a time limited basis.

Key Decision taken by the former Cabinet Member for Highways and
Transport, the former Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services,
the former Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing and the former
Cabinet Member for Environment, Planning and Cultural Services

The following decision was taken on 8 March 2017:

Page 160



Procurement Process Approval

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport approved the commencement
of the procurement exercises in respect of:

(i) The Refurbishment of Greyhound Bridge, and
(i) The Supply, Installation and Management of Electric Vehicle Charging Points.

The Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services approved the
commencement of the procurement exercises in respect of:

(iii) The Provision of Hospital Aftercare Services

The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing approved the commencement of
the procurement exercises in respect of:

(iv)The Provision of North and Central Lancashire Recovery Oriented Adult
Substance Misuse Services

The Cabinet Member for Environment, Planning and Cultural Services approved
the commencement of the procurement exercises in respect of:

(v) The Provision of Services for the Acceptance and Composting of Green
Waste Arising in the East of the Administrative County of Lancashire, and

(vi)A Multi-provider Framework for the Acceptance and Recovery/Disposal of
Residual Waste Arising in the Administrative County of Lancashire and
Blackpool.

10)Key Decision taken by the former Cabinet Member for Children, Young
People and Schools

The following decisions were taken on 18 January 2017:
Chorley Youth Zone - County Council Grant

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools approved the
proposals as set out in the full report.

This report was dealt with under Part Il. The full report is not available for
publication as it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. The report contains
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information). It is considered that in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information

Page 161



Schools Budget 2017/18
The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools:

(i) noted the report, including the 2017/18 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)
allocation, the final budget proposals for each funding block and any
comments made by the Lancashire Schools Forum;

(ii) authorised the Head of Service Financial Management Development and
Schools to submit the final Schools Block budget proforma for 2017/18 to the
EFA by 20 January 2017, on the basis set out in this report;

(iii) approved the 2017/18 budgets for the Early Years and High Needs Blocks;

(iv)agreed that the Dedicated Schools Grant Reserve underwrite the
uncertainties around the Early Years and High Needs Blocks.

This decision was implemented immediately for the purposes of Standing
Order 34(3) as any delay could have adversely affected the execution of the
County Council's responsibilities. The reason for this is to ensure that the
necessary proforma can be submitted to the Education Funding Agency ahead of
the required deadline.

The following decisions were taken on 6 February 2017:

Additional Primary Places in Euxton, Chorley - Proposal to Expand Balshaw
Lane Primary School Chorley

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools:

(i) considered the information in this report;

(i) conditionally approved the proposal to make a prescribed alteration to
Balshaw Lane Primary School by permanently expanding the number of
places available from 45 to 60 pupils for reception year in September 2018
and in subsequent reception years, subject to the granting of planning
permission under Part 3 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990; and

(iif) approved that an appropriate statutory decision letter be sent out as specified
under legal requirements to give the reasons for the decision to those who are
to be informed of them.

Co-ordinated Admissions Scheme 2018/19 - Determination of the Qualifying
Scheme

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools:

(i) Approved that the scheme be adopted as the qualifying scheme for
admissions to Lancashire primary and secondary schools and academies for
2018/19; and

(i) Approved that the Director for Children's Services shall seek to secure the
adoption of the scheme by the governing body of each Lancashire voluntary
aided and foundation school and academy in order to inform the Secretary of
State that a scheme has been introduced in Lancashire.

Page 162



The following decisions were taken on 8 March 2017:

The Future of Lytham St Annes Technology and Performing Arts College's
Post 16 Provision

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools:

(i) considered the information in this report.

(i) approved the proposal of the Governing Body of Lytham St Annes
Technology and Performing Arts College (LSATPAC), as detailed in the
statutory notice, to discontinue its post 16 sixth form provision at by
permanently lowering its age range from 11-18 years to 11-16 years, with
effect from 31 August 2018. The proposal is based on concerns about the
long term financial viability of the whole school and is linked to the reducing
number of students in the sixth form.

(iif) approved that an appropriate statutory decision letter be sent out, as specified
under legal requirements, to give the reasons for the decision to those who
are to be informed of them.

Proposed Capital Programme for Regularising Primary School Admission
Numbers Phase 2

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools, approved the
recommendations as set out in the full report.

This report was dealt with under Part Il. The full report is not available for
publication as it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. The report contains
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information) and information in respect t of
which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal
proceedings. It is considered that in all the circumstances of the case the public
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing
the information.

Determination of Admission Arrangements for Lancashire Community and
Voluntary Controlled Schools - 2018/19

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools approved:

(i) the admission numbers for community and voluntary controlled primary
schools, secondary schools and sixth forms for 2018/19

(ii) the criteria for admission to community and voluntary controlled primary
schools, secondary schools and sixth forms for 2018/19

(iif) that the admission numbers and criteria for admission, together with the other
information included on the Authority’s website and in its admissions booklets,
shall constitute the admission arrangements for 2018/19.

Page 163



The following decision was taken on 5 April 2017:

Capital Strategy for Schools - Condition Led Capital Investment
Programme, 2016/17 and part 2017/18

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools approved the
proposed list of maintenance schemes in Lancashire Schools, totalling £15.950m
as a further phase of high priority school repairs.

11)Key Decisions taken by the former Cabinet Member for Highways and
Transport

The following decisions were taken on 23 January 2017:

The University of Central Lancashire Masterplan and Associated Highway
Modifications

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport:

(i) Approved the addition of this scheme, and the estimated £157,000 design fee
to the highways block of the County Council's 2016/17 capital programme;

(i) Noted that further approval will be sought for the construction and site
supervision costs to be added to the Capital Programme when the full extent
and scope of the works has been identified and that all costs will be fully
funded by UCLan under a Section 278 Agreement.

Proposed Speed Limit Reduction on Various Roads in West Lancashire

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport approved the proposals for the
introduction of reduced speed limits on the roads detailed in the report.

A678 Blackburn Road, Rishton and A679 Blackburn Road Oswaldtwistle,
Hyndburn Borough, Revocation, 40mph and 50mph Speed Limit, 30mph
Restricted Road Status, Order 201

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport approved the making of a
Speed Limit Order which introduces 50mph speed limit, 40mph speed limit and
30mph restricted road status on A678 Blackburn Road in Rishton and the 50mph
speed limit along a length of the A679 Blackburn Road, Oswaldtwistle (and
associated revocations).

The following decisions were taken on 13 March 2017:

Proposed 2017/18 Highway Maintenance, Road Safety and Public Rights of
Way New Starts Capital Programme

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport:

(i) Approved the criteria for project selection

Page 164



(i) Approved the proposed 2017/18 list of projects relating to;
- £20.514 million for highway maintenance
- £0.500 million to address road safety issues
- £0.250 million to address structural repairs on the Public Rights of Way
network
- £1.718m Pothole Action funding.

(iii) Approved that further reports including proposals relating to the additional
£0.500 million awarded for road safety projects and a draft Cycling
Programme be brought forward for consideration in due course.

Skelmersdale Rail Link Grip 3 study
The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport:

(i) Approved that Network Rail is commissioned to carry out the GRIP 2 refresh
and the GRIP 3A feasibility study into the Skelmersdale Rail Link project at an
estimated cost of £5.1m with the costs met by the County Council, £4.335m
and Merseytravel, £0.765m.

(i) Approved that the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services be
authorised on behalf of the County Council to enter into the 'Development
Services Agreement (DSA)' between Lancashire County Council and Network
Rail for the commissioning of the GRIP 2 refresh and the GRIP 3A feasibility
study.

(iii) Approved that the Director of Community Services and the Director of
Governance, Finance and Public Services be authorised on behalf of the
County Council to enter into a 'Funding Agreement' with Merseytravel.

(iv)Approved that the additional £0.955m required to be funded by LCC to be the
first call on the 2018/19 Department for Transport (DfT) transport allocation;

(v) Approved the addition to the capital programme of £0.765m funding from
Merseytravel.

Haslingden Town Centre Parking Restrictions and Various Locations in
Rossendale

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport approved the making of a
Traffic Regulation Order.

20mph Speed Limit Order Mellor Langho and Longridge

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport approved the sealing of the
order in respect of the installation of the proposed 20mph speed limit.

Making Permanent of Experimental Traffic Orders - George Slynn Way,
School Street, Service Yard, Accrington, Hyndburn

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport approved the making
permanent of two Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders which introduced
Prohibition of Vehicles (except buses and loading), Prohibition of Driving (except
buses), No Entry and One Way Traffic and Suspension, Prohibition of Waiting,
Prohibition of Loading and Limited Waiting Loading Bay at the new George

Page 165



Slynn Bus Station, School Street and the Service Yard to Nos. 29-41 Union
Street, Accrington (and associated revocations).

The following decisions were taken on 10 April 2017:

Procurement relating to Framework Agreement for Professional and
Technical Services

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport approved the recommendation
as set out in the full report.

This report was dealt with under Part Il. The full report is not available for
publication as it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. The report contains
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information). It is considered that in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Proposed Zebra Crossing and Contraflow Cycleway, Lancaster Road/South
Road, Morecambe

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport approved the installation of a
zebra crossing on Lancaster Road and a contraflow cycleway on South Road,
Morecambe.

Proposed Traffic Regulation Order (Prohibition of Waiting and Limited
Waiting, including Revocations) within St Annes Town Centre Area

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport approved that the
Experimental Order 2015, is made permanent by the making of a Traffic
Regulation Order.

12)Key Decision taken by the former Cabinet Member for Adult and
Community Services

The following decision was taken on 23 January 2017:
Adult Social Care Fee Uplifts - 2017/18

The Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services approved, with effect
from 3 April 2017, the following uplifts:

(i) Residential & nursing care (all client groups) — 4.17%

(i) Homecare (all client groups) — 4.37%, increasing the approved rates for
homecare services to £13.30 per hour / £7.14 per half hour.

(iii) Supported Living — 4.52% for waking hours and 5.39% for sleep in hours,
increasing the approved rates for supported living to £13.98 and £9.03
respectively.

(iv)Extra Care — 4.37%

Page 166



(v) Direct Payments (including direct payments for respite) — No increase. If a
person is no longer able to meet their needs within the current budget they
should contact the County Council for a review of their needs.

(vi)Carers —4.17%

(vii)Shared Lives — 4.17%

(viii)Day Care —4.17%

(ix)Rolling Respite & Provider Brokerage — uplift in line with the relevant service
(e.g. homecare / residential care).

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 167



Page 168



ltem 15

Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 15 June 2017

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services

| Part |

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Report of the Waiver of Procurement Rules by the former Deputy Leader of the
County Council

Contact for further information:
Janet Nuttall, (01772) 533110, Business Support Officer
janet.nuttall@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Action taken by the former Deputy Leader of the County Council under Procurement
Rule 14.2 (Waiver of Procurement Rules). Such actions are required, under
Procurement Rule 14.5, to be reported to Cabinet for information.

Recommendation

The Cabinet is recommended to note the report.

Background and Advice

In accordance with the provisions of Procurement Rule 14.2, the former Deputy
Leader of the County Council agreed the following:

Procurement of Water and Wastewater Retail Services
Waived Procurement Rule 9 as set out in the full report

The full report is not available for publication as it contains exempt information as
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.
The report contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information). It is considered
that in all the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

i
Lancashire

Page 169 Council (v,‘gg



mailto:janet.nuttall@lancashire.gov.uk

Waiver of County Council Procurement Rules for Option and Design Proposal
for the Farrington Link Railway Bridge and Woodfield Railway Bridge

Waived Procurement Rule 9 as set out in the full report

This report was dealt with under Part Il. The full report is not available for publication
as it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule
12A to the Local Government Act 1972. The report contains information relating to
the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority
holding that information). It is considered that in all the circumstances of the case the
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

None

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 170



ltem 18

THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (EXECUTIVE ARRANGEMENTS) (MEETINGS AND
ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (ENGLAND) (REGULATIONS) 2012

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN PRIVATE

Notice is hereby given in accordance with Regulation 6 of the Local Authorities
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2012 that the following meeting is likely to move into private session for
part of the meeting to consider various reports:

| MEETING: Cabinet

| DATE OF MEETING: 15 June 2017

The reason that the meeting is likely to move into private session is that it will involve
the disclosure of exempt information as defined within Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.

(A final decision on whether the meeting shall move into private session will be taken
during the meeting).

Should you wish to make any representations in relation to the meeting being
held in private, please contact:

Josh Mynott, (01772) 534580, josh.mynott@lancashire.gov.uk

Notification of an urgent Private meeting to be held under Regulation 6

On this occasion it has been impracticable to publish a notification of the intention to
hold the meeting in private 28 days in advance, the reason for this is that it was only
possible for Full Council to make appointments and the necessary constitutional
arrangements for Cabinet at its meeting held on 25" May 2017, therefore, it has not
been possible to publish a notice in time for the Cabinet meeting scheduled to be held
on 15t June 2017.

Permission from the Chair of the Scrutiny Committee has been obtained for the report
to be considered in accordance with Regulation of the Local authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Lancashire
County ‘@%.
Council @g‘.g

CY
2/
Page 171 u‘)


mailto:josh.mynott@lancashire.gov.uk

The following representation(s) have been received about why the meeting should
be held in public:

None received.

The County Council's response to the above representation(s) is as follows:

N/A

Lancashire
Page 172 ouncll S&Ze




ltem 20

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972. It is considered that all the circumstances

of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information.

Document is Restricted

Page 173






By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972. It is considered that all the circumstances

of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information.

Document is Restricted

Page 181






By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972. It is considered that all the circumstances

of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information.

Document is Restricted

Page 183






ltem 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972. It is considered that all the circumstances

of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information.

Document is Restricted

Page 191






By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972. It is considered that all the circumstances

of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information.

Document is Restricted

Page 199






ltem 22

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972. It is considered that all the circumstances

of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information.

Document is Restricted

Page 201






ltem 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972. It is considered that all the circumstances

of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information.

Document is Restricted

Page 205






	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 19 January 2017
	Lancashire County Council Cabinet
	1. Apologies for Absence
	2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
	3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 8 December 2016
	4. Executive Scrutiny Committee - Report of the Chair
	5. The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council - Year Ended 31 March 2016
	6. Money Matters - The Financial Strategy
	7. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000: Annual Report to Cabinet
	8. Report of Key Decisions taken by the Leader of the County Council, the Deputy Leader of the County Council and Cabinet Members
	9. Urgent Business
	10. Date of Next Meeting

	4 Annual Reports of the County Council's Former Champions 2016/17
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F

	5 Procurement Report - Request Approval to Commence Procurement Exercises
	Appendix A

	6 Report on the Outcome of the Office of Surveillance Commissioner's Triennial Inspection
	Appendix A1 (Covering letter)
	Appendix A2 (OSC Inspection)
	Appendix B
	Appendix C (Shadow RIPA Surveillance Policy)

	7 Appointments to Outside Bodies 2017/18
	Appendix A

	8 Residential Strategy
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	9 Department for Transport (DfT) 2017/18 Highway Incentive Fund
	Appendix A

	10 Accrington Townscape Heritage Initiative – Proposed Public Realm Improvements to the Town Square, Blackburn Road and Peel Street
	Appendix A
	Sheets and Views
	A1



	11 40mph Speed Limit Revocation Order Branch Road, Mellor Brook, Mellor
	Appendix A - Draft Order
	Appendix B - Plan

	12 Upgrade of Existing Zebra Crossing to Puffin Crossing  - Broadway, Haslingden
	Appendix A
	Sheets and Views
	Broadway Haslingden-cabrep APP A dwg


	Appendix B
	Sheets and Views
	Broadway Haslingden-cabrep APP B dwg



	13 Burnley Road and Goodshawfold Road, Loveclough - Prohibition and Restriction of Waiting
	Appendix A (Schedule)
	Appendix B (Location Plan)

	14 Report of Key Decisions taken by the Leader of the County Council, the Deputy Leader of the County Council and Cabinet Members
	15 Report of the Waiver of Procurement Rules by the Deputy Leader of the County Council
	18 Notice of Intention to Conduct Business in Private
	20 Acquisition of Household Waste Recycling Centre Infrastructure
	Appendix A (Infrastructure Valuation)
	Appendix B (Independent Container Valuation)

	21 National productivity Investment Fund - Approval to Submit a Funding Bid
	Appendix A

	22 Fleetwood to Knott End Ferry Service
	23 Relocation of Youth Offending Team (Preston and South)

